OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED GBWA!

-NOTICE OF THE MEETING

Natice is heraby given ihat the Twanty Third Annual General Maaling of tha Mamberg of Ogwal Chemicals & Ferlilizars Limitad will be held on Saturday the
24th Septembar, 2005 at 10:00 a.m. ai the Ragistered Ctfice of the Cempany at Villaga Piprola, Jalalabad Aoad. Shahjahanpur-242 001 {LL.P) to transact the
following business :

To recsive, consider and adopt the Bafance Sheet as at 31* March, 2005 and Prafit & Loss Account for the yeas ended on ihal date and the Directars’
ang the Audilors’ Repons thereon. .

To appoint & Diractor in place of Shri Anil Bhalla who ratlres by rotation and being aligible offers himselt for rg-appointment.

To appoint Auditors of the Company to hold offica from the conclusion of this Annual Gereral Masling unlit the goenclusion of the next Annual Genaral
Meeling cn 1ha remunpration as may be fixed by the Board, /s T.R. Chadha & Co. Chartered Accountants. the rotiring Auditors of the Compary, are eligible
and offar themselves for re-appoiniment.

To consider and, if thought fil, to pass wilh or withoul modification(s}, tha following rasolution as a Special Resclulian :
“AESOLVED THAT pursuami to Saction 188, 26, 300 and 310 and cther applicable provisions, if any, of the Companias Act, 1356 including Schaduls XIIl
to the said Act as amanded 1o dale anc subject to the approval of Central Govarnment and Financial Ir itutions, as may ba y, consont of the

Gomglany ba and is hereby accorded 1o the re-appointment of Shri Abhey Oswal as Managing Director of the Company for a furthar pariod of three years
w.e.l 01.04.2005 (whose pariod of office shall nat be lable o datermination by reticoment of Diractor by rotation) on the terms and conditions as {o
rgmunaration and porquisiles as set out in tha E: y Stafament ¢ lo this notice with tha authorily to the Board of Diregtors ta alter, vary,
increase or enhance such remunaralion subjact 10 1he ovorall calling specified in Schedule Xl of ihe Companias Acl, 1958 read with Sections 188, 309
and all ciher applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 1958 or any amondmenis therato of re-onaciments theraof as may be agreed batween the Board
and Shri Abhey Oswal.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant 10 Section 198 (4) raad with Scheduls Xl and the notifications issued under thal schedulo of the Companies Acl.
1956 subject to such app is as may ba y, the remuneration and parquisiles as to1 out in the Explanatory Stalement anngxad to this notice
may be paid as the minimum remuneration to Shri Abhey Oswal, Managing Direclor. in tha absenca of or inadaquacy of profit in any Financial Yoar
To considar and. if thought fit, to pass wilh or without mogilication(s), the following Aasclulion as a Special Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant io Sections 198, 269. 309 and 310 and ather applicable provisions, it any, of the Companies Act, 1956 including Scheduls
XIIl to 1he said A<l as amended o dale and subject to 1ha approval of Central Government and Finaneial Institutions 26 may be necessary, consenl of
tho Company be and is heraby accordad to tha re-appointmant of Shri Aanjan Sharma as Directer [Finance) in whole-time employment af Lhe Company
tor a turther pariod of three years w.al 01.04.2005 {whose pericd of oftice shall be liable to daterminalion by ralirement af Diraclor by solalion) on the
1arms and condilions as 1o remuneration and perquisiles as sel oul in tha Explanalory Statement annexed io Ihis notice with 1ha authority 1o the Board
of Directors 1o alier, vary, increase of enhance such remuneration subjoct 10 the ovarall ceiling specified in Schedule XIlI of the Companias Act, 1956
rand with Seclions 188,309 and all olher applicabia provisions af tha Companies Act, 1956 or any amandmants there1o or re-anactments tharack as may
be agread between the Board and Shri Ranjan Sharma,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 198 (4) read wilh Schedule Xiil ang the notifications issued undaer that Schedule of tha Companias Act,
1956 and subjoct to such approvals as may ba necassary, the remuyneration and perquisites as set out in the Explanatory Stateman! annexed ta 1his
notice may be paid as the minimum remuneration o Shri Ranjan Sharma, Director {Finance), in the absence of or inadequacy of profit in any Financial Year”
To considar and, i thought fil, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resottion as a Special Resclution @

"RESOLVED THAT pursuani to Saclions, 180, 269, 309 and 310 and olhor applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 including Schedule
%Il 1o the said Act as amendad 1o date and subject Lo the appravol of Gentral Governmeni and Financial Instilutions, as may ba noecessary, censent of
the Company be and is hareby accorded 1o the ra-appoiriment of Shri Anil Bhalla as whola-tima Director of Ihe Company lor a furlhor period of three years
w.a.l, 01.04.2005 (whose pariod of offica shatl be liabla to determination by satirement o! Direclor by rofation) ¢n the lerms and conditions as ta
remungralion and perquisites as set oul in the Explanatory Staternent annexed 1o this notice wilh the autharity to the Beard of Directors 1o afer, vary,
increass of enhanca such remuneralion subject 1¢ tho overall ceiling spacified in Schedule XIIl of the Companies Act, 4056 read with Sections 198,309
and all othar applicabls provisions of the Companias Act, 1956 or any amandmants thareto or re-enacimenis iherpo! 4s may be agreed between the Board
and Shii Anil Bhalla. .
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant o Socticn 198 (4) read with Scheduls Xl and the nolifications issued under thal scheduls of the Companies Act,
1956 and subjact to such approvals as may be necessary, ihe remuneration and parquisiles as sot oul in lhe Explanatory Slalement annexed 10 this
nolice may ba paid as the minimum remuneration 10 Shri Anil Bhalla, Whale-tima Diractor, in the absance of or inadegyacy of prolit in any Financial Year”
To consider and, if thought fit, 1o pass with or without modification(s), the following Assolulion as an QRDINARY RESOLUTION :

“RESOLYED THAT pursuan 1o saclion 94 and all other applicable pravisions, if any ol the Companies Acl, 1856 the Authorised Capital of the Campany
be incraased from Re.775 Groses 1o Rs 1255 Crores {Rupees Ona Thousand Two Hundred Fitty Five Croras only} by creation of i} 25 crores Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/~ each and i) 2,30,00,000 0.01% Oplional Caonvertible Cum iva Redoemable Praforence Shares of Rs. 100/ each.”.

To consider and, i thought fit, to pass wilh ar without medification(s}, the f ing Resclution as a8 SPECIAL RESOLUTION -

a) "RESOLYED THAT 1ihe existing clause V of the Memarandum of Association of the Company be  altared by substiluting the same with 1he following

Clause V and the existing Clause V shall always be deamed to have been subatiluied by 1he following :

The Aulharisad Capital of the Caompany is As. 1255.00.00.000. (Rupess One Thousand Two Hundreo Filty Five Crores only} divided into :

i} 52,50,00.000 (Sixly two crores fifty lakhs) Equily Shares ol Rs. 10/ pach: and
2,75.00,000 (Two crares sevenly five lakhs) Redeemabla Prefargnce Shares of As. 100/ gach: and

i) 1,25,00,000 (Ona crore 1wenty live lakhs) 0% Cptional Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/ each; and

i¥)  2,30,00,06C (Two crore thifty lakhs) 0.01% Opticnal Convertible Cumulaliva Redeemable Prelarence Shares of Rs. 100/~ sach”

5) "AESOWED FURTHER THAT the oxisting Article 3 of 1ha Articles of Association of tha Company be allerad by substiluling the same with the
following Aricls 3 and 1he exigling Article 3 shall always be deemed to hava been substiluled by the following :

The Autherisad Share Capilal of tha Gompany is Rs. 1255,00,00,000 (Ryupeas one thousand fwe hundred fifty five crores only) dlvided into :

b 62.50,00,000 (Sixly iwo crores filly lakhs) Equity Shares of As. 10/- sach with power 1o increass and/or reduce the Capilal of tha
Company in Becordance wilh 1ha provisions of the Act and to divide tha shares in 1he incraased capital inlo several Clauses and altach
ﬂl\i{a:n taspoctively.such praferential, qualified or spacial rights. priviteges or condilions in such mannar as may be parmittad {ar the
Lk 51N Hnd

i) 215000800 jerly tlve |lakhs) Redeemable Praference Shares of Rs. 100/ each; and

) 1,25,00,000 Om anty five lakns) 0% Optional Convertibla Preferance Shares of RAx. 100/- sach, and

i) 2.30,00,000 (Two crora thirty takhs ) 0.01% Optional Convertible Redesmable Cumulative Prefarance Shares of As. 100/- each.”

Tha Prolerance Share shall ba eligible 1o such rate of dividend and will subject to such tems and conditicns as may be dacided by the Board of

Diraclors of the Company at tha time of issue of such shares and shall rank in priofily to the Equily Shares in tha event ol winding up of the company
but shall not be anlitlad to any participation in the profit or surplus assets of the company.
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9.

To considar and, & thought fil, to pass wilh or withoul modification(s), the following resolulion as a Special Resoiution :

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with Seclion 8t (1A} and other applicable provisions if any, of 1ha Companios Acl 1956 and in accardance with the
Guidelines prescribed by Securilies and Exchange Board of India, the Hesarva Bank of Indla, the ralevamt provi of the & durn and Aricies
of Association of the Company and the provisions of the lisling agreement with Slock Exchange(s} and subject 1o all such apgrovals, parmissions,
sanctions and consanis 43 may be required and nacessary and subject o such medifications & condilions as may be prescribed by such Autherilies,
Bodias and Agenciss and accepied.dy the Board of Direclors of the company (heceinalter ratérred 1o as “the Board®, which lerm shatl includa any
committes which the Board of Diractors of the Company may have corsliluled of may haraaher conslitute) the cansent of the Company, be and is heroby
accordad to the Board of Dirociors to oHter/allotfissus lrom time to timé in one ¢r more 1ranches to Financial Ingtitulions/Banks, whathar o¢ nol thay are
mambars of the company (thal i3 to say withoul first offering them to the mpmbers of the Company whose namas sland segisiored in the Ragisier of
Membara of ihe Campany on the date of tha cHar) uplo 1,06,00,000 0% Optionally Convertible Praference Sharas (OCPS) of As.100/- {Rupaes One
Hundrad onty), each lully paid-up at par for &n aggregate a.mounl of As. 108 crores by way of prefarential issua on private placement basis/ through offer
latter and far clrcutar and/or Intarmation memorandum and’er such documenisiwrilings and in such manner as may be determined by the Board, fowards
compansalion on NPV basis far interest dilferantial on account of interast rese! on Inans granied by Financial Institutions & Banka to 1he company
pursuant 10 the terma & sonditions of tha !miler Ne.BY.COR 2100 dated 8% August, 2003 a5 modified vide their istler No, BY.CDR 37 dated 6% Apl, 2005
issued by the Corporate Debi Restructuring (COR) Cali.

RESOLVED FURTHER That the Relovam Date in relalion to the shares for the purpose of determining the issue price under SEBI (PIF) Guidalines 2000
for praferoniial issue of OCPS shal! be thirty days pricr 1o the dato of Annual General Maating #cheduled te be held on 241h Sepiamber, 2005 i.e. 25th
August, 2005 and that for Equity Shares Convartible from the alorasaid OCPS will ba & date 30 days prioz to tha, date on which the holder(s) bocome
entitiad a8 per the tarm of issue to apply for conversion into Equity Shares,

RESOLVED FURTHER That for the purnoan of glmng nﬂect to lha above Hnsciuhun iha Board be and is haraby autharized 1o do and pedom all such
acta, deads and things & it may, in its desm ¥, ar apprapriate to sattla any questian, difficuily or doubt that may
arise in regard 1o the issuo of OCPS as it may think fit, and 1o accept on bshalf of the Company such canditions and madifications, if any, refaling te tho
issue of DCPS which may ba imposad, required ar suggasted by any regulatary authority/Financlal Institulfons/Banks and which the Board in its
discration thinks fit and prapee.

AESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board ba and is hereby awthorized to sccept any modaf ca1ronts) 0 or lo modity the larms of issue of the said OCI
subjact 1o the provisions of thoe Companies Act, 195§ and SEBI Guideli / RBt gulati withoul being required Lo sask any furihér
consent or approval of the company in general rnlnllnq N v

Yo consider and, if thought fit, 10 pags wilh or without madgification(s], the {ollowing Rasclution as a Special Resolution :-

"RESQLVED THAT in accordance with Secton B1 (1A) and other applicabla provisions il any, of the Companies A¢1, 1958 and in accordance with (he
Guidalinas prescribed by e Socunities and Exchangs Board of India, 1he Reserve Bank ol India, the relavant provisions of the Memarandum and Asticles
of Associalion of tha Company and tha provisicns of tha listing agreement with Stock Exchange{s) and subject to ail such approvals, peimissions,
sanctions and consenta as may be required and necessary and subject to such modilications & conditiens as may be prascribed by such Authorities,
Bodies and Agencias and acceplad by the Board af Direclors of the company (herainafler refarred ta as “ike Baad®, which term ahall include any
committa® which {he Bgard of Direstors of the Company may hava constiluted or may hareater constitule) the consent of tha Compary, be and is heraby
accorded to the Board of Directors to ofles/allotissus from time 1o tma in cne e more irenches to Fingncial Inglitutiona/Banks whather or nol they aro
membars of the company {Ihat is %o say without first offering them ¢ the members of the Gompany whose names siand ragisterad in the Aagistar ol
Membars of the Company on tha dale of tha affer} upta 2,28,00,000 3.01% Optionally Convanitle Cumulaiive Rateemabie Pratarance Shares (3.01%
OCCRPS) of Rs.100/-(Aupass One Hundrad.only), each fully paid-up at par for an aggregate amount of Rs. 228 croraa by way of prafersntial issue on
private placerment basisthrough offar lawar and /or circutar and/or Information memorandum and/or such documentd/wiilings and in such manner as may
be datermine¢ by the Board, by convertion of 50% of Fundad Interast Tarm Loans in respect of each of the Financia) Institulicns/Banks, appearing in tho
Books of he company &s tn 33.03.2005 {subject te reconcliation) pussuant to the terms &nd conditions of the latter No. BY,.CDR 37 dated 8" April, 2005
issued by the Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) Cell.

RESOLVED FURTHER that tha Ralovani Date in relation to tha shares for the purpase of determining the issue price unger SEBI (DIF) Guidglines, 2000
for praferantial issus ol 6.01% OCCRPS sha!l be thirty days priot to the date of Annual Gencra) Mesling scheduled o be hald on 24th Saptember, 2005
j.0. 25th August, 2005 and 1hat for Equity Shares Canvortibie from the aforosaid 0.01% QCCAPS will be a dale 30 days prior to tha date on which the
holdaris) bacoms entitied as par ibe torm of issua 10 apply for conversion inle Equity Shares.

RESOLVED FURTHER Thal for the purpase of gmng eltect 1o tha abovs Hnmu\wn 1he Board be and is hereby aulhonzed to do and parform all such
acts, deeds and things as il may, in its absel tion deemn Y priala 1o sellle any queslion. dilliculty or doub! that may
arise In ragard to the jssue of 0.01% OCCAPS as it may think fit, and 10 accept on hohali ul the Gompany spch onditions and modilications, it any,
relating 1o the isswe of 0.01% OCCAPS which may be imposed, required aor suggested by any regulatory authorityflenders  and which the Beard in itz
discretion thinks ™ &nd proper.

AESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is haraby authorized to accept any modification(s} 1o or 12 modify tha larms of issua of the said 0.01%
OCCRPS subject to the provisions of tha Companiss Act, 1958 and SEBI Guidakines / RBI Guidelinas/ regulations wilhour being raqunr-d 1¢ 6ask any
fusther consent or approval of \ne company in genaral meeting”

By Ordor uf tho Bosard
For OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZEAS LIMITED

Se/-

Place : New Dalhi R {H. K. GUPTA)

Datg

1 27.07.2005 COMPANY SECAETARY

HOTES

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPQINT PAOXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD QF HIMSELF/
HEASELF AND THAT THE PROXY NEED NQOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY IN ORDER TO RE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DEFOSITED
AT THE REGISTEAED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY, DULY STAMPED AND SIGNED, NOT LESS THAN 48 HQURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
WMEETING.

Tha Registor of mambara and the Shara Transisr Books of the Company shall remain clesed from 215t Septamber, 2005 1o 241h Seplember, 2005 (both
days inclusive),

An Explanatery Slalamurﬂ pursuant to Section 173 (2) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of l1erm Ne. {s) 4 to 19 is enclesed harewith and forms pan
of this Notica, .

Shargholders interestad In giving neminations in respect of 1ha shares held by them can do so by obtaining nominalion forms fram 1he Campary.
Company's Equity Shares are compulscry iraded in Damat Form and therefore sharehoiders are requastad to get thair shares demalatialized by cpaning
20 account with a Depository Parlicipant through “National Securilias Depository Ltd” {NSDL) or “Cantral Depository Services Lid” (CDSL),
Sharaholders ars requasied te nata tha if Demat Aequast Fomna (ORF) and shase certificains elc. are nol raceived 4om Ihgr DPN by the Company within
a pericd of 30 days fom tha data of generalicn of the DAN for demaiesialization, the DAN will be treated as rej d. Upon roj

ol the DRN, a frash DRF has to be {orwarded alongwilh the shate narullcalan by lhe DPs to lhe Company.
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED CiISWAL,

7. interm of tha provisions of Saction 2G5A cf tha Companias Act, 1958, as amended, 1he Company has already transferrad the urclaimed intarimdfinal
dividand for the financial yaar 1896-97 1o the Invesior Educstion and Protection Fund n\ablnsheu by the Gantrad Guvcmment The Gompany would be
fransfaring tho Unclaimaa final dividond for 1he financial year 1887-28 ta the | to and Pretection fund blished by the Cantrat
Govarnmant. Tho mambars, wha hava not racaived tha dividend for (Financial Year 1997-98) are requestad to ¢laim i from the Company, immedialely. it
may bo noted ihat ance 1he unclaimad dividand is transterred to the Cantral Governmant Accaunt in Investor Educaiion and Peotaction Fund, no Claitm
shall lio In rospesct theraof.

8. Tho Ragister of Ditaclors’ sharsholding in tha Company shall romain open lor inspeclion to the Membars and Debanturehclders ¢f the Company during
10.00 a.m, 1o 12.00 neon on each working day baginning wilh 14 days prior to 1ha date of annual genaral meeting and ending 3 daye after the data of its
congiualon a1 the Repislerad Office of tha Company.

2. Tha Invastars may send the documents jor Uransfer of sharas and other comespandance/quaries calaling 1o shares diraclly ta 1he registrar and share
iransfar agoni of the Company M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt Ltd,, 123, Vinobapuri. Lajpat Nagar-ll, Naw Delhi 10024,

10, Mombers holding &hares in the d i mede arg req d 1o inlimate all changes with respact to their Bank Dotails, Mandala, Powsr of Attomay
or addrase for cortaspondenca 10 thair respogtive Depositary Participan) (DP). Thesa changes will be automatically refllected in the Campany's records
through Elactianic Connectivily with NSOL/CRSL.

t1.  In all corraspondenca with the Company. members are reguastad to quola thair acsount ¢ falis numbarg and in ¢case their shares are haid in the
dematarialized lom, they musi quote thair clisnl 0 number and their DP 1D number.

AS REQUIRED UDNER CLAUSE 48 (VI} OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT GIVEN BELOW ARE THE DETAILS OF THE DIRECTGRS WHO ARE RETIRING
By ROTATION AND ARE ELIGIBLE FOR RE-APPOINTMENT,

Shri Anit Bhalla is having vasi expariance, adminisirative skills and valuable contribution In ihe Massive expansion & growth of the Company. Shri Anil
Bhalla has mada valuable contribution al aff the level, for bright prospects of the Company. He is & director in twd othar bodiss corporata. Ha is a membar
of {i} Share Transtor Commiitee {il) Invasior Grievance Committea and (ili} C of Di; of your G y

LARATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 FORMING PART OFTHE NOTICE INRESPECT OF ITEM NO. 4t 10

M NO. 4.
Shri Abhey Otwal was appoinied as Chairman & Managing Director w.e.l. 1% April, 2002 tor a pariod of 3 years. His tarm of office has axpired o0 314 March,
2005. Shri Abhay Oswal has baen instrumantal in setling up mega Fenifizer Projecis at Shahjahanpur and Paradeep. il is propased to ra-appoint him as
Wanaging Ditacior for & jurthar pariod of three years wal. 1% Apdl, 2005 The Board has approved his re-appointment for a further pariod of 3 years
rotrospactivaly w.e.l. 1 Aprl, 2005 ¢ the folowdng tarms, ditions and & ion a5 approved by ihe Ramuneralion Committee. Pursuant 10 saclion
198 raad with seslion 309,310 and Schedyle-XIIl of the Companies Acl, 1956 tht re-appoiniment ol Managing Dirsclor and his remuneration is required to be
approved by thg Shareholdara by passing s Special Resolution,

1. PERIOD
Thies Years (From 1~ April, 2005 1o 31% March, 2008}
2. SALARY:

1,56,000/- per month.

3. COMMISSION :
Commizsion on Net Profit : An amount &8 may be decided by 1he Boasd of Directors from year to year pravided thal ths tota) remunaration inciuding salary
and parquisites shall ba subjact to the ovarall limits as faid down in Section 198 and Seclion 309 read with ampnded Scheduls X)) of the Companias Act,
1058,

4. PERQUISITES :
Perquisitas. will be allowad in addilion to satary and commission uplo an amourd oquas fo Rs. 18.00,0007- per annum. For this purpesa parquisites will be
as follows :
i) Asnidential Accommodstion - Aent free furnished accammodation wilh Gas, Elaciricily and waler. The expenditure incurred by the company on

Gas. Elsctricity and Watar shall be valued 89 per Income Tax Aules and shail ba subijact ¢ a ceiling of 10% of the salary.
1iy - E incurrad for self and tamily subject 10 & ceiling of one maonth's salagy in a year or threa month's salary over

& period of thrag years

Hiy  Leave Trave! Concession - For salf and family onca in a year in accordance with the rulas specified by the company.

iv} Club Foas - Fees of Clubs subject to & maximumn of two clubs. This will nof include admission and lita membarship fee.

¥)  Pertonal Actident Inaurance - For an amounl,  the annual premium of which doss not excosd Rs. 4000/-
Shed Abhoy Oswal, Chairman & Managing Dirgclor shall also be eligible 10 1he following perquisites which shall not bae includad in the computaticn
of the cailing of remunaration ay specified abova,

1. Provident Fund, Suparannuation Fund and Anauity Fund - The Company’s contribution 1o the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Annuity
Fund will be in accordance with Ihe rules and regulations of the Campany. Such contributions will not be included in 1he computation of tha ceiling
ol parquisiles to 1he exient thase eilher singly or put togethar are nol taxable under tha ingome Tax Acl, 1861,

2, Gruluily — Graiuity al the rale not axceading half a momh's salary for each compleied year of servica,

3.  Earned/Privilage Leave - On full pay and allowances as per the rules of the Company. Leave accumulated but not availed of, during his 1enure,
may be allowed 10 ba sncashed as par the ries of the Company.

4. Car and Telephone - Car for use on the Company's business and ialephona at his residence. The persanal long distance cafls on tha telephone and
use of car for privale purposas shall be biled by tha Company.
The abave salary and perquisiles are within 1he limits specified in Schedula-XH!
Tho Board commende the passing of the Rasolulion as set out in the Notice. None of the Oireclors except Shri Abhey Oswal is intarasted or
concgrnad i resafution Na. 4,
The abova may also be ireated as compllance under Secticn 302 of tho Companias Acl, 1856.

ITEM HO, 5

Shri Ranjan Sharma s holding offica as Whela-tima-Dirgetor (Finance ) sinca 1% Agril, 2002. Hia term of cflice a% Whola-time-Director has expirad on 31 March,
2005. Ho is actively invoived in tha projecl financing & setling up the Company's Faril Projecls alL Shahjahanpur & Paradeep. In view of his valuable
contribugion in tha growth of the Company. it is propesed 1o ra-appoint him as whols-lima-Director for & furlhe: period of throe years from 14 April, 2005 to 3%
March, 2008. Tha Board has approved his re-appoiniment for a furtiar period of 3 years ratrospeciivaly w.d. 1" April, 2005 on 1he following arms, conditions
and at remureration as approved by the Remunermion Commitiee.

Pursuan to saction 198 read whh Section 309, 310 and schedule XIfl of tha Companias Act, 1556 the re-appoiniment ¢f Whote-Time-Director and his
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remynaration is raguired to be approved by the Sharsholders by passing & Spacia! Aesolution. Tha Remunaration a3 approved by the Remuneration Commites
by way of salary and perquisites of Shrt Ranjan Sharma iz as follows -
1. SALARY:
1,560,000/ par month,
2. PERQUISITES :
Perquisitas wilt be allowasd in addi'on 1o wadary upio an amount aqual to Hs. 18,00,000/- per annum. For this purpose perquisitas will ba ns follows :

i) Rutldentlal Accommodation — Actual Expandilure incurred by the Company on hirfing furpished accommodation ar Mouse Rant Allowance subfuc!
to & ceiling of B0 % of the Salary and provision of Gas. Electricily and Watar which shall bs valued as per Incoms Tax Rules & shall be subject
ta & coiling af 10% of the salary.

3] ical Reimb: t - E: Incurred for self and tamily subject to a ceiling of one menth’s  salary in a yoar or thres monih's salary over
& period of thres yuars

fi}  Lesve Traval Concession — For na¥f and lamily once in a year in accordance with 1he rules specified by the company.

iv) Ciub Foos - Fess cf Clubs subject to 2 maximum of twe clubs. This will nol inciude admission and life membership fea,

v}  Perscral Accidont insurance - For an amount, the annual premium of which does not excead Rs. 4000/-

Shri Aanjan Sharma shall als¢ be sligible 1o the following perguisites which shall not be included in the compuiation of the celling ot ramuneraticn
a5 specilied above.

1 Providant Fund, Supsrannuation Fund and Annuity Fund - The Compary™s  centribution to the Providant Fund, Superannuation Fusd and Annully
Fund will be in accordance with the ryles and regulalions of the Company. Such ibutions will not ba included in the comp! 1 of lhe cailing
of parquisilas o the exlent these eithar singly o7 put together ara nol taxable under tha income Tax Act, 1961,

2.  Gratuity - Gratuity &1 1he rate not sxcaading hall a month's salary for each complated year of tha servico.

3.  EamediPriviloge Leave - Cn full pay and allowanges as per 1ha rules of ihe  Compary, Leave accumulated but ool availed of, during s tonute,
. may be allowsd ip b# encashed a3 pe! the rules of the Company. .

4. Car and Telephono ~ Car for use on the Company’s business and talpphone at residence. The personal long distance calla on the telaphone and
of car far privale purposes shalt be billad by the Cempany.

The abova salary and parquisites are Wwithin tha limits specified in Schedule-X!it

Tha Board commands the passing of the Resplution as 3ot out in tha Nolice. None of 1he Directors, except Shri Ranjan Sharma is interasiad ar
concarnad in the resolulion No. 5.

The above may alsc ba irealad as campliance under Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956.
ITEM NO. &

Shri Anil Bhalta is Director on the Board of the Company o7 ias1 16 years apd has been nmlvely ialod wilh various eciivities of the Companry, The valuablo
guidance provided by bim fram me 1o lime ¢eniributed immansely 10 Lha growah af the Company. In view of his valuable contribution in the growih of the
company , it is proposed lo re-appoint him as whola-time-director fo1 & further pariod of three yaarg from 1+ April, 2005 1o 31" March, 2008. The Board has
approved his e-appoinimant far a fuclher pariod of 3 yeas talcospactively w.el 3% April, 2005 on 1he following terms, conditions and at remunaration ay
approved by ihe Remuneration Committea.

Pursuan! to Section 198,309 and 310 read with Schedule XIII of the Company Acl, 1956 the appoiniment of Shi Anil Bhalla as Whola-Time-Diracter is requirod
to be approvad by lhe Shargholders by passing a Spacial Resolution. The Pemunesation as approved by tha Remuneration Committce by way at salary and
* perquisiles of Shn Aril Bhalla is as follows:-
1. SALARY:
1,50,000/- per monlh.

2. PERQUISITES:
Parquisites will ba allowed In addilion to salary upie an amount equal 1o A3. 18,00,0004 per annum. Far Lhis purpase perquisites will ba as follows :

1) Aosidantial Accamemodalion — Aciual Expenditure incurred by 1he Company on wiring fumished acsommodation or House Aenl Allowance subjoci
10 a ceiling of 60 % of tha Salary and provision of Gas, Electricily and Water which shall ba valued as par Income Tax Rulas and shall b# subjaci
1o a cailing of 10% of iha salary.

t)  Medical Reimbursemant — Expensas incurrad for self ;ne family tubjoct 10 & ¢ailing of ong monih's salary in & yaar or three manth's talacy over

2 puniod of Ynree yoars

ili} Laave Travel Concossion — For geif and lamily once iv a year in accordance with 1ha rules spacified by the company.

iv} Club Feos - Fees of Clubs subject to & maximum of two clubs. This wall not include admission and lifo membership oo,

v}  Pertonal Accident Insurance — For an amounl, the annual precium of which does nel sxceed Ra. 4000/

Shri Anil Bhalla shal also be eligible 1 the following perquisites which shall nol be included In the computalion of the ceiling of remuneration sz
spocitiad abova.

1. Provident fund, Supsrannuation Fund and Annully Fand - The Company's  conlribution 16 the Praviden! Fund, Suparannuation Fund and Annuity
Furd will ba in accordance wilh the rules and  reguiations of the Company. Such contributions will not be includad in the compulation of the ceiling
of perquisites to the exient these eilher singly Or put 1egether ara nol taxable under tha Income Tax Acl, 1961,

2, Gratulty - Gralwity at the rate not exceeding el 3 monih's salery for sach complored year of service.,

3.  Earmed/Privilege Lenve ~ On full pay and aliowances as par the rules of the Company. Leavae nccumulnlad but not avallad ¢, during his enure,
may be allowed ta be encashed as per the rules of the Campany.

A, Car and Teiophone — Car for usa on the Company's business and lelephone at residencn. The personal long distance calls on 1he telephona ond
use of car for privatg purposes shall ba billsd by tha Company.

The abova salary and parquisites are within 1he limits spacifiad in Schedule- Xl

The Board commends the passing of the Resolution as sat oul in tha Notice. None of the Diractors, axcept Shri Anil Bhalla is intereslad of
concarnad in the resolution No. 8.The above may alsc be treated as compliance undar Saclion 302 of 1ha Companies Act, 1956,

Statoment as por Part-1l, Section-lI(f}iv) of Schadule-Xlil of the Companies Act, 1956 (Relatad with Item no.is) 4, 5 & 5 of the notica)
1. GENERAL INFORMATION :
{1) Naturs of indusiry
- Farlilizar Ingustry
i2) Daie of axpected dale of commencament gl commarcigl production-already in production since 1995

{3} In casa of new companies, exp date of col it of aclivities’ a3 per project approved by financial institulions appearing in lhe prospecius
- Net Applicable




OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED _ciswaL

¥, Intorm of the provisions of Section 205A of the Companias Acl, 1956, as amanded, tha Gompany has alteady vansferred the unclaimed interiméinal
dividend tos tha financial year 1986-97 to 1he Investor E ian & ion Fund tshed by the Central Government, The Company would be
{ranstarring the Unclaimed finol dividend for the tinanciol yoar 1997-98 to the Invesier Education and @rotaction fund asiablishad by the Centrat
Govornmont. The mambers, who have not raceived the dividend for (Financial Yaar 1§97-88) are raquested ta claim il tram the Company, immediataly. It
may ba notad that ance the undlaimed dividend js iransfarred 10 the Central Govemment Account in Invostor Education and Protection Fund, na Claim
shalt lig in rospact Lherool.

§.  The Ragister of Diractars” sharsfhoiding in tha Company ghall remain cpan far i iar 10 the M and Deb of the Company during
10.00 a.m. [0 12.00 noon an each warking day beginning with 14 days prios 10 the dale of annual general meeling and ending 3 days after the date of its
conclusien at the Registered Office of the Company.

§.  Tho invastors may sdnd the documents for transtsr of sharea and other cosrespondence/querios rolating to shares diractly 1o tho ragisirar and share
ranafer agant of the Company M/ Skyline Financial Sarvicas Pwvi Lidt., 123, Vinobapuri, Lajpal Nagar-1l, Naw Delht 110024.

10, Mambaors holding sharas in 1hy dematerialized modo are requesied to Inlimals all changss with respact to their Bank Details, Mandate. Power of Attomay
or addrags lgr corraspondancy to their respeciiva Daposifory Participant {DF). These changes will ba autcmatically teflected in the Company's records
thraugh Eleciranic Conneclivily with NSDL/CDSL.

11.  In all carrezpondanca with tha Company, membars are raquesied 16 quote thair accaunt / folie numbers and In casa thaeir shares are held in the
damaterializad form, \hey musi guote theit client 1D numbar and their OP 1D number,

AS RECUIRED UDNER CLAUSE 49 (V1) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT GIVEN BELOW ARE THE DETA!LS OF THE DIRECTORS WHO ARE RETIRING
BY ROTATION AND AKE ELIGIBLE FOR RE-APPOINTMENT.

Shri Anit Shalfa 8 hayving vasi exparience, adminisirative skills and val coniribution In 1he massivb axpansion & growth of the Gompany. Shii Anil
Bhalla has made valuable contribution at all 1ha lavel, tor bright prospacts of the Campany. Ha is a diractor in two oihsr bodies corporata. He is a member
ol {i) Shars Transtar Commillag (i) Invesior Grigvyanca Commingn and {ili) Commlitteo of Dirsciers of your Company.

LAMATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 (2} OF THE COMPARIFS ACT, 1956 FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE (N RESPECT OFITEMNG. 415 §0

NO, 4.
Shei Abhoy Dswal was appointed as Chail & Monaging Oirector w.q.1. 1% Aprii, 2002 for a poriad of 3 yaars. His tarm of cffica has expired on 31" March,
2005. Shri Abhey Czwal has been insirumenial in Geniing up mega Feriilizer Projecls at Shahjuhanpur and Paradesp. N is proposed to re-appeinl him as
Managing Director tor a furthar pariod of thres yaars w.e.l. 1 April, 2005. The Board has approved his re-appointment far a lurther period of 3 yoars
totrospactivaly w.o.f. 1* April, 2005 on 1he failowing tarms,conditions and at remungration s &pp d by the R lan G Pursuant 10 seclion
188 read wilh soction 309,310 and Schadute. Xilt of the Companies AGY, 1958 the ra-appointmon o) Maraging Diregler and his remunssation it reguired to be
approved by Iha Shareholders by passing a Special Resolulion,
1. PERICD

Throe Yaars (From 1% April, 2005 to 31 March, 2008)

2. SALARY:
1,50,000/- par manth,

3,  COMMISSION ;
Commission on Net Profil : An amounl as may be decided by the Board of Directora fram year to year provided that the tolat remunaration including salary
and parquisites shall be subject 10 the overall limits as laid down in Section 198 and Seclion 309 read with amended Schadule XIIi of the Companiey Agl,
19356,

4, PERQUISITES :
Parguigilas will be allowsd in addition 1o salary and commission upto an ameunt equal 1 Ra. 18,00,000% per annum. For this purposs parquisiles will be
as follows © .
1] Rasldantinl Accommodatlon - Rant free fumlshed accemmodation with Gas, Electricity and water. The expenditure incurred by the company on

Gas. Elociricily and Water shall ba valued as psr Incoms Tax Rulas and shall be subjact 1o a ceiling of 10% of the salary. .
i} dical Reimti 1t - Expenses i far sell and family subjeet 10 & ceiling of o monit's salagy in & yekr or threg monih's salary over

a period of three yoars

lii}  Leava Traval Concession - For sall and family once in a year in accordance with the rules spacitied by the company.

v} Ciub Foes - Fogs of Clubs subjoct fo 8 maximum of two clubs, Thig will not include admistion and fita membership lee.

v)  Parsonal Accident tnsurance — For an amount.  the annual pramium of which does notl exceed Rs. 4000/
Shri Abhay Oswal, Chairmen & Managing Director shall also be aligible to the fallowing pargulsiles which shail not ba inctuctad in the computation
of 1ha ceiling of remunaration as spacifieg abova.

1. Providont Fund, Superannuaticn Fund and Annuity Fund — Tha Company's contribution 1o #e Providant Fund, Superannuation Fund and Annuily
Fund will ba in accordance with the rulos and regulations of the Company. Such conlributions will not be included in the compulation of 1he ceiling
of perquisiles 1o the extoni theso either Zingly ar put togathar are not taxable under the income Tax Act, 1961,

2. Gratuity - Graluity at the rala nol exceeding half a monih's satary for each completad year of service,

3. Earncd/Priviloge Leave - On full pay and aflowances as per tha rules of tha Company, Leave accumulated but not availed of, during his tenura,
may ba atlowsd (¢ be sngashed as per the rulps of the Company,

4. Car and Telephono ~ Car for use on the Company's business and 1slephone a1 his resldence. Tha parsonal long distance calls on the {elephone and
uss of car lor privale purposes shall be billed by the Company.
‘Tho above salary and porquisiles are within ihe fimits spocitied in Schedule-XH!
The Board commends tho passing of tha Aasalulion as $at out in the Nolice. None of the Dirsctors excapt Shi Abhwey Qswal is intargsted or
concarngd in resolution No. 4.
The above may also bo ireated as compliance undaer Soclion 302 of the Companies Act, 1956,

ITEM NO. 5

Shi Ranjar Shamme is holding oflice as Whels-tima-Ditector {Finante ) tinca 1% April, 2002. His lerm of office as Whols-ime-Diractar has expired on 31* March,
2003, Ha is aclively involvad in the project financing & satting up 1ha Campany's Fartilizar Projecis @1 Shahjahanpur & Paradeep. in view of his valuables
coniribution in the growih of the Company. it is proposed to re-appoint him as whole-lime-Director for a furihar paricd ol thrae years from 1" Agril, 2005 to 31%
March, 2008. The Board has approved his re-appointment for a furiher pariod of 3 yaars retrospectively w.a.i. 1% April, 2005 on tha following 1a/ms,conditions
and al rem ion ak app by tha Ai an G It .

Pursuant to saction 198 read with Seclion 309, 310 and schedula X!l of the Companies Acl, 1956 tha re-appaintmen; of Whele-Tima-Ditector and his
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remunoration is required to ba approved by the Sharehalders by passing a Special Pasolution. Tha Ramungralion a3 approved by the Ramunoralon Commiitao
by way of safary and perquisites ol Shri Ranjan Sharma s as foilows ;-
1. SALARY :

4,50,0004- per month.

2. PERQUISITES :
Parquisites will be allowed in addilion to salary upte an amount equal 10 As. 10,00,000/ per annum, For this curpese parauisitos will be as foliaws

i) Residantial Accommodatien — Aclua! Expenditura incurrad by the Company on hiring furnishad accommoddalion ar House Ront Allowanca subjoct
to & cailing of 80 % of the Salary and pravision of Gas, Eloctrigty and Watar which shalt bs valuad as per Incomeg Tax Aulgs and ghall be subjoct
fo’a cailing of 10% of tha satary.

0] Meodical Reimbursement — Expanses incutrad tor seif and tamily subjact to a ceiling of ona month's  salary in a year or (hraa monih's salary over
& period of thres years

i) Lsave Travel Concassion - Fo: xelf and family onge in a year in accordanca with the rules specified by the company.

iv) Club Feos - Faas of Clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will not include admissicn and fila merbarchin tes.

v) Parsonal Accident Insurance — for an amounl, the annual pramium of which dogs nol gxcead RS. 4000/

Stii Ranjan Sharma shall also be siigible 10 the following perquisites which shall not be {rciuded in the compuiation of tha calling of remuneration
as spocifiad above.

1 Provident Fund, Supsrannuation Fynd and Annuity Fund - The Company's  egntribution to the Providem Fund, Superannualion Fund ang Anpudty
Fund will be in accordance with tha rules and regulations of the Company. Such ians will not ba ingl in the + of the calling
of perquisites to the extant thesa allhar singly or put fogethar are nol taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1§6t.

Gratuity — Gratuity al lhe rate not exceeding half a month's salary far #ach completed year of the sarvica.

3,  Earned/Priviloge Leave — On fll pay and allowances &5 par \he ndas of Ihe  Company. Laave accurmulaied bui not availed of, during his tanure,
may be aliowod to bs encashed as pas tha rules of the Company. .

4.  Car and Telaphons -~ Car k¢ use on the Company's businesa and telephono at residence. Tha parsonel long distanca calls on the lelephone and .
ol car fgr private pyrposes shall be billed by tha Company,

The above 1alary and perquisites are within the Kmits specified in Schodule-XiM

The Board commends the passing of the Rasolulicn as §81 out in the Nolice. None of Ihe Direcioss, axgept Shri Banjan Sharma is inlarested of
concamed in the ratolulion No. 5,

The sbove fay alse be \reated as compliance under Saciion 302 ol the Companies Act, 1858.
ITEM NO. &

Shri Anil Bhatla is Dirsctor or the Board of tha Company for last 16 vears and has been actively iatnd with varigus activitles of the Company. The valuatit
guiance provided by him Iram tima to lime conlribuled immensely to the growih of the Company. I view of his valuable contribution in the growih of the
company , it is proposed to re-appoint him as whole-tima-direcier for a further paried of threo years from 1% April, 2005 to 33 March, 2008, The Board has
npprnved his ra- appomlrnent for & lurlher peariod of 3 years rarospectively w.a.f, 1" April, 2005 on the fallowing terms, condilions and al remungration as
app by the R C

Fursuant to Section 198,309 and 310 read with Scheduls XlII of the Company Act, 1856 she appointmgni of Shri Ani! 8halla as Whole-Time-Diracior 13 reguired
o be approvac by Ihe Shareholdars by passing 2 Spacial Resolution. The Remuneration as apptoved by tha Aemuneration Camminea by way of salary and
* perquisilas of Shn Anil Bhalla iz as flowe:-
1. SALARY:
1.50,000/- per manth,

‘2. PERGWISITES:
Perquigites will bl allowed in addition to salary upto an ameun? aquat 1o As. 18,00.0004- per annum. For this pufpose perguisites will ba as follows :

1y idential A dation - Aciual Expendi i d by tha Company on hiting turnished accommodation o7 House RAent Allgwance subject
to 8 cailing af 80 % of the Salety and pidvisich n( Gan, 'Elnc'lncﬁy and Water wiich shall be valued as per Income Tax Rules and shall ba gubject
1o & cailing of 10% of the salary.

i) Medical Rei semont — E incurred for sell and famity subject to a ceiling of one monih's Esafary in a year of three month's snlary over
& period of three years .

11} Lemve Travel Concession - For sall and family once in & year in accordanca with the rules spocified by tha company.

Iv) Club Feas — Fees of Clubs subject to @ maximum of (wo clubg. This will not include admission and lifa membership loe.

vy Perscnal Accidant Insurance - Far an amount, the annual pramium of which does not exceed Ry. 40004

Shri Anil Bnafia shall alsc to eligidie 1o the following perquisites which shall nol e included in the comgputation of the ceiling 0! remunoration as
spocifind abova,

1.  Provident Fund, Suparannuation Fund and Annuity Funﬂ Tha Company's ¢ontribution Io the Providem Fund, Supnramuaunn Fungd and Annuity
Fund will D@ in accofdante with the rules and [ 18 of the Company. Such col will not ba includad’in the computation ol Iha ceiting
of perquisiles to the exient thase eilhar singly or put logather are not laxabin under tha Incema Tax Acl, 1961,

2. Gratuity ~ Gratuily al 1he rate not axceeding hall a month's salary for sach compleled vear of service. .

3. Enrnecd/Privilege Loave — On full pay and aliowances as por he rulas of the  Company. Leave actumuiated bat not availed of. during his tenure,
may be aliowed to ba ancashad as par lhe rules of Ihe Company.

4.  Car and Telephone — Car for use on the Company’s business and (elephtne al residence. The parsonal 1ang dislance calls on the tolephana pod
us® of car Tor privale purposas shall be biiled by the Cempany,
Tho abaove salary and perquisites are wilhin the limits spacified in Schedule-XIls

The Board ds iha passing of tha Rasclulion as sel out in the Nolica. Nene of tha Direclors. oxcep! Shri Anil Bhalla ix interasted or
concermaed in the resciution Nu EThe above may also be treaiad as compliance under Soction 302 of the Companies Act, 1856,

Sialomant ue per Part-ll, Section-H{B)(Iv) of Schadule-XIll of the Companies Act, 1956 {Aelated with itam no.(s) 4, 5 & § of tho natlea)
I, GENERAL INFORMATION :

{1 Nalure of industry
- Fertlilizer Indusiry

{2) Date of led date of nent of commarcial production-alraady in production since 1895
(3)  In casa of naw companies, sxpected dale of comnmaencemeni of activilios as per project approved by financial instiutions appearing in the prospactus
— Mot Applicable
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{4)  Financial perfarmanca
{Rs.in Laca}

FINANCIAL RESULTS - 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03
Grosa Prolit/(Loss) belore deprecialion and 1ax, {14489) {10690} {1583%)
Dapraciation (18774) (17545) {1BB43)
Proiit/{Loss) betore Tax {31263) (28235) (34882)
Dalarred Tax Gradit (written offi/provided - (102) 12635
Prafitt{Loss] after Datarrad Taxation (31283} (28337) (22047)
Add : Balance brought torward Jrom las! year [EEB3T) {28500} {6453)
Balance in Prafit & Loss Account {88100} {56837) {25800}

{5] Exporl perlormance and net loreign exchange callabarations
— As par fatest Balanca Shaet

(8) Foraign invesiments or collaborators. if any.
- Not Applicable

1. INFORMATION ABOUT SHRI ABHEY QSWAL, 5HRI RANJAN SHARMA & SHRI ANIL BHALLA

{1} Background details
' — Shri Abhoy Oswal is 56 Years ol aga. He belongs 1o an Industrialist family. He has mora than 35 years experience in tha various fialds,
specilically in fortillzer secior. Shri Abhey Oswal &8 on the Board of Oswal Agro Mills Lid., Oswal Aluminium Lid and a Trustes of Aruna Abhey

Oewal Trust ,

- Shii Ranjan Sharma iz 48 yesrs old. Ho is gualliad Company Secrelary & Cosi Accounlant and also a law graduaie. He is having vast sxparience
in the field ¢f Projoct Finance. Accounting as well as in Comparty Law Matters. Ha is a director in Urban Imptovement Company Pvi. Lid. and a
Truslas of Aruna Abhey Oswal Trust.

= Shri Ani! Bhalla ts 55 years old. He is having vast axpaerionce in the Adminisirative lield, Ha is a diractor on board of the company from lasi 18 years.
Hae is a ditacior an 1tha Board of Lucky Star Entertainment Lid., Oswal Aluminium Ltd. and a Trustee of Asuna Abhay Qswal Trusf

{2) Past ramunerstion
- Sams rom ion in past, as propossd now.

(3} Rocognition or awards
=N

{4)  Job profila and his suitability
- Shri Abhey Oswal Js Chairman & Managing Director of The Company and is looking afer its overall aperalions al both tha plants of tha company
a1 Shahjaharpur {U.P) and Paradesp (Orissa).
- Stri Ranjan Sharma s Diretler {Finance) of the Gompany and iocks afler all the Fnancial and commarcial aclivitigs of the company on day 1o day
basis. He ia aclively invalved with both the plants of the company at Shahjhanpur (U.F} and Paradsen (Orissa).
- Shri Anil Bhaila is Whela-Timo Direcior of the Gompany and looks after 1he adminisirative acliviies.
(3}  Remuneratlan groposed.
- Az explainod nbove in the explansiory statement,
(0) Comparative remuneration profila with respact to industry.
- The propesnd remuneralions iy in line with e sgmuneralion, in tha industry.
{7)  Pecuniary refalionship diractly or indirectly with tha company or relationship wilh tha managarial persgnne?, if any.
—Nil
L. OTHER INFORMATION
{1 HAeasons of loas or inadaguate profils
al  Super Cycions of unpracedented velacity hit the @astam coast of India in Oclober, 1999, dus o that the DAP plant of the company was
affected. b) High Capital cast of DAP Plant and intarasi Fability of term loans and high dspreciation charges. ¢j fachnical prablams.
(2}  Sisps taken of proposad 1o be taken for improvemant
4} Technical problems faced arg baing resolved by implementing o do-boilenacking schems , 4} A debt reslructuring schema for loans for DAP
plant hava been approved hy lenders, c) Improvement in recovery of phosphoric acid hom rock phosphela. d} Flans under considaration 1o
maximize production of Uraa at its Shahjshappur plani. &) Wilh availability of ALNG in raquired quariily , the problam of shortage of natural
gas has been reduced.
(3} Expected increase in produclivily and profits in maasurabla terms
- Company is expeciad to achigvae positive resuita.
V. DISCLOUAES @

- The Sharsholders of tha company havs been informed aboul the remunaration of Shii Abhay Oswal, Shri Ranjan Sharma and Shri Anil Bhalla in the
explanatary sialement at llem na.{s) 4,5 & 8 part of the nolice of this Annual General Megting Btiached 1o the Annual Report.
ITEM NO{S) 7 & B
Since thy Authosizod Praferance Share Capital of tho Company ai prasent is only Rs.400 Croras, out of which Rs.240 Crores has afready been issued and
RAg.108 Crores 0% OCPS panding for issue. there is a noed to enhance the Authorized Preference Share Capilat to take care ol the aventual issue of OCCRPS
of Ra. 228 Crores, It is proposed lo increase the autharized preference capitn/ by As. 230 Crores by constituting GCCRPS. However, since the SCCRPS
proposed 1o be isyved are converlible into equily shares al. the optich of tha Fipancial instilwlions/Banks, there is a need 1o incraase the Authorized Equity
Sharos Capital of tha company as well by Rs. 250 crores (Fupaes Twe Hundred Fitty Crores) thareby making the 1otal Authorised Equity Shares Capital as Rs.
825 Crores. Tho revised tolg) Authorizod Copital will be Rs. 1255 Crores {Rupees One Thousand Two Hundrad Filly Five Croras only) after considering ha likely
impact of QCCRPS and Equity Shares &8 sialed sbova.
Yours Diraclars, tharefore, racommand to Sharsholdars for their approval for increase in Authorized Share Capital of tha Company as slateq at item no.s} 7
& & of the nalice. :
None of tha Direciors ia in any way concemed of Interested in the Rezolutien at ilem nofs) 7 & B axcept nominee Diraciors of the Financial Institutions/Banks
who will be ailottad QCPS/QCCRPS.
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ITEM NO 8

The company had approachsd the Corporale Dabt Resteucturing (CORY call for restructuring its debt. The COR call vide its Istiar no BY GDR 2100 daigd August
8, 2003 approved a rasiruciuring package kor the company. Subsequently in April 2005, the COR Gel! approveg modification to the restructuring packago vide
Istter Ne. BY GDR 37 dated Apeil B, 2005, The modified package inlar #lla envisages issue on private placemant basis 106,00.000 Zero parcent Optionglly
Convartible Praferance Sharas [OCPS} of Rs. 100/~ wach aggregating 1o A».106 crares to tha Financial Institutiona / Banks to compensala them an NPV basis
for interest diffgrentia) on account of Interest reset, UTI is not participating in iha CDA package, howavar the ligure of A%.106 Croras includes UTIs notional
entiflamant.

Ag per tho 1armg sanctioned by CDR Cell, these OCPS are Rodeemable al Par, 50% aach during the Financial Yaars 2016 and 2017. In casa lhe tompany
declares any dividend, it wil ba payabla aiso on thase OCPS aquivalant 1o the praterence / squity dividend rate, whichswver is highar, if decisrad in that particular
year.

This issue is in accordance with the SEBI Guidolines on Prafersniial Issves and amendments inareol and various disclosures raguired are as under:-

1. The object of tha isxsue : The object of the Issus i to faciltale tha financial restructuring of the company. The issues of QCPS is 1owards compansation
on NPV basls for interest differential on account of intarest resel on loans granted by Financial Institutions and Banks.

2. intentlon of Promotara/irectors/Key Managemen? persons 16 subacribo to tha offar

The praferential offar is being made to Financial Institulions and Banks in tarms of approved restructuring packaga and not té any pramotar/direcior ar
key management peikon.

3. Shareholding gattern batore and aflar the offer
The shateholding paitern of various calegories of sharsholders would ho as follows:

Catagoriay Pro-(ssus Fosl lssus afier convarsion of 0% OCPS l
No. of shares %age of hotding Ng. of shares %age af holding '
A. Promctars & Asscciales 13,92,07,452 421 13,92,07 452 38.37
B. Banks, Financial Institutions 2,32,53.425 9.05 12,92,53 425 35.62 ’
and Mulval Funds
C. Public 8.87 66,829 34.57 8.87,66,829 24,47
C. NAl /QCB/Flls 55.81.453 217 55,871,453 1.54
Tolal 25,68,09,159 100,00 38,28,09,15% 100.00

Tha poel issua sharshoiding as above is basad on the presumplion that all Financiai Institutions /Banks would exercise lhair. eplion 1o convert thair
holding of OCPS inlo squity shares,

The percentage of Shareholding of the Financial Instilutions/Banks, whose shareholdings will change  due to the exsrcise of this option balars and after
ihe offgr will be as lollow :

Nama of Financial institutions / Banks Prg: sy Post (ssue alar o

No. of shares %age of holding No. ol sharos %age ot holding
fFCI - - 26874840 7.4
[oiled] 2323859 0.90 1780289 a.zs
[[e):1] . - - 30749210 8.48
umn 14500 9.01 14500 Q.00
LIC . - 8047700 2.22
GIC N - 1395510 0.38
NIAC - - 1377830 0.38
uic - . 1085030 0.30
o110} - - 806180 0.22
NC . - BO7270 0.22
nsli - - 3$35050 110
s8I 4721300 1.84 12275200 3.38
5B0P BST7D0 0.34 3999810 110
uBi 4471800 1.74 7237920 1.99
Tolal 123991508 4.83 10428199 30.43

The company is now saeking approval of the shareholdsrs for alistmentissun of Zero paicent Qplionally Convertibla Preference Shares, convertible at
the option af Financial Insiitutions/8anks.

The documenta/latiar marlioned abova are ifable for I jon at the Registated oifice of the Gompany batwean 10,30 a.m. and 12.30 p.m. on any
working day prior (0 the Meeling.

Your Direclors recommend the rasolution far appeoval of Sharsholders at item No. § of 1he notics of The Annual Genaral Maeling.

Nane of the directors is in any way o d in tha R at item No. 8 except the Direclors nominaied by the Financial Institutions
and Banks on the Boaerd of tha Company 1o the extent of OCPS baing allollad 1o 1he concerned Financial Institutions and Banks.
1TEM NO 10
The company had approached the Corporale Dabt Restruciuring (COR) call for rastruciuing Its dabt, The COR cell” vids ila lenar ne BY CDR 2100 dated Augusi
6. 2003 approved & restructuring package for the company. Subsaquantly in April 2005, the CDR Cell approved medificalion 10 the resiruciuring package vide
latter No. BY COR 37 dated April 6. 2005. Tha modified packaga inter alia envisages issus on private placamant basis 226,00,000 0.01% Optionally Converlibia
Cumuiative Redeemabla Preferance Shares {OCCRPS) of Ra. 100/- each aggragating to As.228 Crores to lhe Financial Inatilutions / Banks. UTI is not
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paricipating in the COR package. howaver the figura of Ae. 228 Crores includes UTI's national entitliemam towards OCCRPS.This issue of OCCAPS is towards
1he senvarslon of 50% of Fundad Interast Tarm Lcans grantad by Financial Institutions/Banks 1o the Company. As per 1he terms approvad by the CDR Call
thesa OCCAPS are Rodeamablo in two oqual insaliments during financial yedr 2017 & 2014 &t a gremium of 30%.

This isaug is in sccordonce with the SEBI Guidelines on Preferantial lssuss and amendments thereaf and various discloswies requirad are ps under ;-

1.

2.

Date

The object of the issua: The objact of the issue ls 10 lacilinte the financial restrucluring of tha Company. The issus of OCCRPS is 1owards the Gorvarsion
of 5cns of Funded merest Term Loans granied tly varigus Finanelal lnstitutions/Banks,

f of Dl s/Kay M. t perscris to subscribe to the ofter:

The proforential offas is baing made to Financtal instilutions and Banks in terms of approvad restrugiuring  package and nol to any pramoteridirecior or
kay management parson.

Sharoholding pattern befora and sfter tho offar:

Tha shareholding pattern of various categorias af shargholdars would ba follows:

Catagorios Pre-1sauo Past Issus aiter convaorsion Pos Ixsue aftar conversion
of 0% OCPS of 0.01% OCCHPS
No. of  ahases * agw of holding | No. of Sharas | % ago of holding | No. of Shares | % ago ol helding
A. Promotors & Associalas 13,82,07 452 5421 13,92,07,452 38.37 13,82.07,452 23.57
B. Banrks, Financial 2,32,53,425 9.05 | 12,92,53.425 35.82 35,72,53,425 £0.47
Institutions and Mutual
Funds
€. Public 8,87,66,029 34.57 | 8,87,66.82¢ 24,47 8,87.66,829 15.02
0. NRls /OCB/Flis 55,81,453 2.7 55,801,453 1.54 55,817,453 0.54
Tolai 25,80,09,159 10000 | 36,28,09,159 100.00 59,08,09,158 160.00 ]
Tha post isgue shargholding as above is based an 1he prasumplion thal &l Financial Instify ks woudd isa thair optign (o conmvert thair halding

of OCPS and OGGRPS Info oquily shares.
Tho percentage af Shareholding of the lnsiilutiond&an}-, whoge sharehoiding will changa dus 10 the exercise of this option belore and alter tha offer
will be as follow :

Nams of Financial Pu-lal,ln_. Past Issuo after conversion Post lasue atter conversion
Institulions/Banks of 0% OCPS of 0.01% QCCRPS
No, of sharos % 200 of holding [No. of Shares | % aga of holding | No. of Sharos | %age of hoiding
IFCI - - 25874840 7.41 - -
(ciCt 2323859 [2X:]] 11780289 3.2 - -
el | . - 30749210 .48 - '
uTl 14500 0.01 14500 0.003 - -
Lic ‘ - - 8047700 2.22 . -
GIC . - 1385510 0.28 - .
NIAC - . 1377890 0.38 - -
une - - 1085030 0.30 - -
aic - - 808180 0.22 - .
NIC - . 807270 0,22 - -
1Bl - - 3985050 1.10 - -
sBl 4721300 . 1.84 12275200 3.38 - -
$80P BE7700 0.34 3966810 1.10 - .-
uB) 4471800 1.74 7237920 1.99 - -
Total 12390159 4.83 110436198 30.43 { *33,54,36,109 *57.28

“Wheraas olal atiatment would be lor about Re.228 ciores (ingiusive of sharas of UTI who is not perticipating in CDR package) . the shares to be
allocalad amengst the Financia® Instititions/Banks are eublnr:t te reconciliation of accaunts, hence the post lssuo datsils of individual membars ara ot
avallable. '

Thg campany i now seeking approval of 1he sharsholders for alioimentfissue of 0.01% Optianally Convartibla Cumulative Rad ble Prof Shares
(OCCRPS} convertibla ot the aptlon ol Financial Institulions/Banks.

Tha documentsAatiar mentionad above are availsble tor inspection al tha Ragistered offics of the Company batwasn 10.30 am, and 12.3C p.m, on. any
working day priar 16 the Meating.
Your Diraclors ' the resclution tor spproval of h i item No. 10 of the nolice of the Annual General Meoling.

Nono of the directors in in any way concerned or interesied In the Resolulion at ime Ne. 10 oxcnpl iha Dirgctors nominated by tha Financial
Inatitutions and Banks on tha Board ol the Gompany 10 the sxtgnt of ODCCRPS boing sllottad 1o the cencarned Fmancml Ingtitutiona
and Banks,

By Qrder of tha Boara
For OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

S
K, GUPTA)

1 B7.07,2005

Place ; New Deinl (#.
COMPANY SECRETAAY
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To,
T;e Membars.

Your Directors present the Twenly Third Annual Reporl along with Audited Staiemen of Accounts for the

Fipancial Year ended 31st March, 2005,

FINANCIAL RESULTS
{Rs.In Lacs}
20042605 2003-2004
Gross Profit/{Lcss) befere depreciation and 1ax (14489) {10690}
Depraciation {167T4) [17545)
Profit{Loss) before Tax {31263) (28235)
Deferred Tax Cradit (written off)/provided - (102)
Profi(Lass) after Dalerced Taxation {31263) {28997
Acd : Balance brought forward from last year (56837} (28500}
Balance in Profit & Loss Account (88100} (56837}

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
UREA DIVISION

Buring 1he yaar undar cwiew tha Urea plant produced
8.61 Lac MT of Urea as against 8.58 Lac MT of
Urea during \ha pravious year. The working of Urea
Division has resulted infc a cash profit of As.168.04
Grs. and net profit of As,123.85 Crs. during the
yearynder raview as againstcash profitof Rs.192.72
Crs. and net profit of As.139.59 Crs. respectively
during the previous year.

DAP DIVISION

Ouring the year undsr raview the Di-Ammanium
Phosphatic {DAP) Plant produced €.06 fat MT of
DAP/NP as against 3.31 lac MT of DAP/NP during
1he pravious year. The working of DAP plant has
resulted into a cash lpss of R5.311.33 Crs. duning
the year as againsi a cash loss ol Rs.299.71 Crs.
during the previous year.The net loss after
depreciation fer the year is As.429.19 Crs. as
against Re.418.18 Crs. during the pravious year.

OVERALL -

During the year the salss/turnover was highar
AsA546.08 Crs. s compared to Rs. 123074 Crs.
during grevious year. The year ended with a cash
loss of As. 144.88 Crs, and nel loss of Rs.312.63
Crs. as against cash loss of Rs. 106.90 Crs. and
netloss of As 282.35 Crs. during the previous year.

DEBT RESTRUCTURING SCHEME

(o August £003. & Debt Resinuctucing Schema for
Secured Loans of DAP division of the Company
was appreved by the Corporate Debt Restructuring
Call and ali landers other than Unit Trust of India.
The CDR Caell nas approved certain modilications
1¢ the existing Dabt Restructuring Scheme in April,
2005. These modifications pravige lor, amang other
reliels, raduction in rate of interest cn long term
lcans as wall as working capital, deferment cf
paymant of instaiments ete. The accounts of the
company for year 2004-05 have been prepared on
the basis of hese modifications. Unit Trust of India
is nota participant in the Debt Restructuring Schema
and has filad an application for recovery in
Dabt Aecovery Tribunal (DRY) against the Comgany.
The Gompany has filed a petition u/s 391 of the
Companies Act. 1956 betore The Hon'ble Allahabad
High Coun. The Allahabad High Coun vide one of
its ardar has resirained the DRT Lom passing
any order in raspect of the Interim/ling! reliet prayed
for by U7

DVICEND .

In view of Ne1 Loss, the Directors do not recommend
any dividend 1or the year.

DIRECTORS

Shri Anil Bhails retires by rotation and baing eligible
alfers himsel! for ra-sppeintmant. Nomination of Shri

U.P. Singh was withdrawn and Shri M.D.Jha was
appointed in his place by U.T.I. w.e.l. 18.01.2005.
Nomination of Shrl A. Karati was wilhdrawn by ICICI
and Shri Sandeep Bakhshi was appointed in his
place by ICICI w.e.l. 17.62.2005. Nominalion of Shri
R.Loonkar was withdrawn by IFC) and Shii LMishra
has been nominated as dirsciot in his plate wel,
30.06.2005. Your Dirsctors place on racord iheir
apprecialion of the services rendered by Shri LR
Singh, Shri A.Karati and Shri A.Loonkar during thair
1enure as Directors of the Company,

Tha tarms of effice of Shri Athey Oswal, Managing
Diractor, Shri Anif Bhzlla, Whola timg Diractor and
Shri Aanjan Sharma, Direclor (Finance; have expired
on 3t March, 2005. They are proposed (o be re-
appointed for a further period of three years w.el.
1 April, 2005 a1 e ensuing Arnuai Generml Meating
on the exisling terms and condilions.

AUDITORS

M/s T.R. Chadha & Co., Chartered Accountants,
who are holding office as Auditors of the company
retire al the conclusion of tha ensuing Arnual
General Mesting and being sligivle oiter inemselves
tor re-appointrnant.

AUDITORS'S REPORY

The Auditars’ report ort audited accounis for the
year 2004-05 contains qualifications regarding
substdy refund due to downward revision of ratention
pricy for aather years which has bean slayed by
The Hon'ale Dalhi High Coud. non provision of
doubtful debts, accounting of mogitications of COR
package panding approval fram zesg lendars,
non redemption of debentures of UTI and non
payment af interest thereon and apgroval of Central
Govy. for payment of manageriat remungration.

The directors are aof the viaw that provision for
subsidy refundable will ba made as and when the
matter panding with Hon'bla Delhi High Court is
finally decided. The directors are conlident that all

debtors are fully reafizable. Approval of COR

packags from some of tha lgnders is awaited.
Regarding non redemption of debentvres and
interest thereon fo UTY, the company has filed a
petilion w's 391 of the Companias Act, 1956 before
The Hon'bla Allanabad High Count. Approval of
Central Govt. for payment of managaerial
remuneration has been sought.

FIXED DEPOSITS

Tha Company has not invited any lixed depcsits
from tha public during the year under reporl,

PARATMCULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION
The Iinformation required under Rule 11 of the
Companies {Disclaswa of particulars in the Repon

a

of 1ha Beard ol Directors) Rulas, 1988 relating to
the conservation of enargy and 1echnalogy
abserplion ara given in tha Annexura-| ferming pan
of the Report.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Directors are happy to state thal reletions
beiween the Company and its employess remalned
cordial threughout the yoear. The Directors exprass
theit Bppreciation lor the services rendarad by the
empioyess of tha Company at various levals,

PARTICULARAS OF EMPLOYEES

Paniculars of Employees in sccordance with the
provisions af Section 217 (2A) of tha Companlas,
Act, 1956, read with the Companias {Particutars of
emgloyoes) Rules, 1975 as amended aro given in
the Annexure-ll forming part of this report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In nccordance with the provisions of Section 2t7
(2AA} of the Companias Act, 1956, your Diractors
stato:

i) Thatinihe preparationof the Annual Accounl
the applicable accounting stangards ha
been followed slong wilh propar sxplanation
n case cf material departures;

li}  That the Dirgctors have seleciad such
accounling policies gnd appiied them
consisiently and mada judgemants and
estimates that are reasonabie and pruden
50 as 10 give a frus and fair view 0! the stats
of affairs al the Company as at 31= Masch,
2005 and of the prolittess of the company
for the year ended en 31* March. 2005;

i) That the Directars hava takan proper and
sufficient care for tha maintenance of
agdequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for saleguarding
the assets ol your Gompany and for
preventing and detecting fraud and ather
irregularities;

v} That the Directors have prepared the annual
aCcounts on a going concamn basis.

COAPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Clause 43 of tha listing agreement,
Corporate Governance Report and - Managament
Discusston & Analysis are gnclosed as Annexures
ERIE N A

DELISTING OF SHARES

As per SEBI Guidlines, 2003 for voluntary dalisting
of Securiiies of the Company, the equity Shares of
the Company have been delisted fram tha U.P. Stock
Exchange Association Lid {Regional Exchange of
the Comgpany), The Delhi Stock Exchange
Associalion Lid.. Ludhiana Siock Exthange
Assoctation Lid. and the Macras Stock Exchangs
Ltd. Applications for delisling of shares are pending
with Bombay Swek Exchangs, Calculta Stack
Exchange and Ahmedabad Stock Exchange. Tha
Equity Shares of the Company continue to be listed
with National Stock Exchanga of India Ltd. havirg
nationwide trading terminals. )
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS -

The Board of Directors wishes 10 thank variaus
agencias of Central and State Governments,
Financial Institulions and the Banks for axtanding
their co-operalian and continued suppert to tha
Compary.

For & an hehall of the Board

Place : New Delhi

|ABHEY USWAL)
Dale : 27" July, 2005

CHAIRMAN &
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Annexurs-

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 213{1) (E) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956, READ WITH COMPANIES {DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF
DIRECTURS} RULES, 1738 AND FOAMING PARY OF THE DIAECTORS REPGRAT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2005,

t CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

()  Enargy Consdfvalion Messures Taken -Thqunowhu boen conti hy ) through s dad twam of Engh to achisve high pi ivily and onstream
lﬂmy Tha Company's Technical Depar ly monitorg murgy in [ plunts and iakes cOmOClive MaasuTes Ir CORSEIVING eNOrGy.
(b} i and p
Thosela no major " on gor ion of enargy during h# yerr. Howsvar, some inhouse modifications are baing carrlac out in 1ha plants which will resuft in
consecvation of enargy.
Disclosurs of particulars with raspact 10 Conssrvaticn of Eneigy: EoAm-A
POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION Unit 2004-05 200304
1) Elctrichy
Purchased
Units MW H 31626 12107
To(nl Arnount Az A acs 1723.27 B17.585
Ot Ra /KWH 558 TS
)] Oml Gcnlrltlnn
14 Gas Turbine
Gu-nll y (Gross: MWH 126339 122407
nits Par 5M% ol Gas KWHISM? 454 4
unhs Par Kq of Naphtha KWH/KG 54 617
Cos Re./KwH 1 140

{)  Thro uw slum gﬂnoraudm waste hoat boilers and

coal fired boilors i DAP Unit KWH 125152 124859

Fu |Cnnln tion

A a " D fhp Gas (Ammonis-fusl, Powsr & Steam}

0OCSM? 133207 111129
Total Cos: Ra/Lacs B3AT.05 AST2T7
AalafUnit . Ra./DCOSM 475422 411483
b HNaphtha (S1eam and Ammonia - Fualy
Quan MT 105009 114101
Total Cost Ralacs P25
Costlnk Ry./MT 20112
€} Fumots Oil .
Cuani K.Lita 4915 25065
Totrl Cost AsAacs 683 11 334.69
Costlni. RsAire 1419 1293
q .
80\:""]4' MT 264054 145573
Tolal oost . Asfacs 271115 1%61.22
Costilin Ra.dT 1022 60 Jas.0e
o HSD.
Chaantity KL 1497 1102
TnulCos: RAsAace za67 211,97
Coslini AsAiva ze 118
CONSUMBTION PEH UNIT OF PRODUCTION
um
H.5.0. Litra/MT [shex] .04
Noture) Gas (Ammoni-Fual, Powsr & Stapm) SMYMT 154.65 12955
Nuphlha (Steam and Ammonia -Fuel) KgS. T 12081 13332
i
) Eluctr “!) KWHMT 257,69 41359
umlc' il Litra/MT 795 7.
oM 243 3
co¢| KoyMT Q706 439.56
L] TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION FORM-8
1, Fassarch & Development (RAD}
(8)  Spwcific Aread in which R & D carrisd out by the Company I EIgaTions werd mace ta use by-product Phaspit Gypisurh lor praduction ol Gypsum Soards

10 be used for consiruction o houses. Samplas of Phospho Gypsum sent to M/s Rapidwarl
Technolagy, Aust-ala have bawn ccepied for produntion of Gypsum Boards.

{t)  Bansfils certved ke a resuti ol Lho aocve RAC Compary has u-emd to tim An Agrasmant with Mis Aapidwall Tachnology. Australia for the
tochnalogy and peocurament of plant and machinery for production of Gypsum Boay

a1 Paradesp. This willnol m!rpmm-ulu rovenua for phospho gypsum, bul will 3150 give good

ihe sa'e of Aapidwad Boards and save ha on stacking of waste Gypsum
and pollulon problema and cost of its disposal.
(] Future Plan 8 Action Tha company will continue its offorts to minimize the snargy consumption and impzove the
afliciency of the plants in afl argas. .
(d}  Expendiwreon RAD No seperat ord for RAD lute Is kept as the work is L Iy
. undartaken by the Technica! Sarvicas Doptt.
2 T A i andh on :
(a}  Ekons,in brisf made towards technology absorption, Al Urea Plant, 1hs lnchnulugy o ammenia & uren mAnulagiure fas bean
agaptation and Inngvation, y lndnnmmlmsh.vebcw made o opiEmize
nd prods
{b)  Beneiisdorived &s a resull of the above afiorts 4.4, producl- Al Phnlphallc Fnlullznr Plant The tachnofogy provided bL'Lu'gl Matsliurgie of
imp . proguct L impon jon #ic. Garmany for Suiphyric Ackt Flant gnd J«:nusEnggrm‘oqowSA Prosphoric Acid Plant
hae botn lulty sboorbad.
. (6] Destalls oftechndlogy imported during the tast 5 ykars.
{i}  Technalogy The Phosptuu: Feriilizar Plant et Paradoesp is based on Ilchnalcgy provided by MJs Lurgl
Mata| Sulphusc Acid Plant snd M/ Jacobe Enginpening, USA lor the Phosphoric
Acid and Granulltm Plars.
W) Yearof Impovt Tha Pani has besn commissionad in Aps, 2001,
i) Has technoiogy beon fylly absorbed Tha toctinology has besn iy wbsorbad
v} Mot ully BDSOMEC, B3 who!s this B3 ot 1aksn
olace, rensons thereol und future pian of action Nol Applicebls
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO: RufLace
(s} Total foreign exchanga used tnd aarned 200405 200304
Used . E068.94 3376580
Eamad Nil Nil
For wnd on behall of the Board
Placo : Now Dathi "AshayCawal
Dag : 27 July, 2005 Chalrmln 4 Management Dirstlor
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ANNEXURE TQ DIRECTOAS' REPORT Annoxure -1
PAATICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS REGUIRED UNDEA SUB-RECTION [2A) OF SECTICK 217 GF COMPANIED ACT, 18346, READ WITH COMPANIES {PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES)
RULER, 1876 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REFORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317 MARCH, 2008,
5, NAME OESIGNATION ABE | QUALIFIGATION REMUNERATION OATE OF | EXPEFIENCE | LAST EMPLOYMENT
NC. {¥AS} AMDUNT COMMENCEMENT {¥YRS.) HELD & DEGIGNATION
{RS) OF EMPLOYMENT
1. Agrawal X % S, Vica Praskden 5 B.5c. iChemical Engg ) 2807987 $3.05.2001 7 Vice Pruld;rl. uas
Group, Dubal
2 Bhalta Anll Dirgcror (1] B.Cam 3527400 01.07.2000 34 Diracie, Cawal Agro MRs Ltg,
1 Quwsl &K, Chapah LWy 12 B. Cum IrRaNz 01.09. 1995 k] Managing Diecior,
Diractor Oxiwal gz Furnne Lid.
4, Shama Ranjan Diraclor-Floanze 4% B.Com, FICWA, 3527400 01.05.1930 7 Chisl Exacuilve,
FCS,LLA Dusesl Ao Furwa Ly
() Aemunaraiion a3 shown abows includes Satary, Macical Leave Traved Company's L. 1o Providard Fund & monelery vats of Parquisies.

[} All the above amploysss extept Mr. K K Agrawal &ré whols lime Direciors and none of tham i relatad 10 sach olhar,
) Ad appoicivans are coniraclusl suceit thal of M5 KK, Agrweal.

AUIHTORS' CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONY OF CORPORATE GOVERMANCE UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LATING AGREEMENT(S}
To The Mambery o
Oxwat Chimicsls & Fenitlzers Limitsa,

We have reviewed 1M of Corparma by Opwal Chemicals & Farlfizams Limiled during (e year encéd 31% March, 2005, with The releveril feconts and Gocuments maldined
by tha company, furnishad t5 uz fer sor review and Iha Mepdrt on Ceanile GOVeTNGE #1 3p0r0wed by the Board of Direcors.

The sompllance of conditlons. of corporale i3 e of tne Our axamis was fimiast 16 ane therwol, sdopled by the Campany for -m-’

Ihe compllence of the condiliond of I corparala pavemance. It 13 nefiher an audll nor an axprassian of apiniof on the fnAncial stalamanis of the Company. .
W fwiher siale thal ech comptlinde (3 nelthan &n Rs3VANCA &3 10 the Nty vistility of the Company nov the efficency or with which Ihe has condutted the sy &f Fa Camaany.

On inp pashs of our Mview e BGcoming |o e Information sid EXPERNIoNY givan to s, Ue condiions of Carporde Govermance as stipuialed in clause 49'ct I kating sgrirnemi(s) wilh Uhe stoch sxChange{s}
Rave. 209 1 Rema maniloned in parsgraphs () below:

M The hilormation o quirdwcly MUY wid 001 Fiacad 0n 1he webslle of (he company and e chaimmin of (he audit COrUTHIM hes ol Ascded We annual general masting of the Sorpeny hek) on August 24,
2004:

beqn cpmplied whh in afl malsrial respacts by the Compery and 1N 3 Investof DAsvEnces aré panding foc B percd exceading onw month sgains! the Compeny =3 cerliied by ha shire transfer sganl o1 the
Compary.
For T. R. Chidha & Go,
Chertered Accountenis

Placa; New Dathl {Kapil Kedsrt
Oxtad: 77 July, 2008

Parioar
M. No- 0902

Annexures - |1l
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
A dataiied repon on Corporale Govemanca as parthe lormai prescribed by SEBI & incompameied in Claves 43 of Iha Listing Agrasmen & given hstd below:
1A COMPANY'S PHILOSCPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company belaves n lolowing sound corparate praclicas 1o etsurs el v deafings of the company wih &4 s siskaholters aro direciad 10 0 Gieve Iis long tem comorsie goals. The

company wil sirive nol only lo mest the satidory 1 the C code r SEBland o5 in Glause 49 ol the Listing Agresmont whih tha
Stock Exchanges bu 10 go beyond tham and Ioflow iranipirent syStems and proceduray in lin with tha global irends.
Your & ;10 follow D and praction in conkmity with the code of Carparale L n thy Listing Ag

z BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY

Tha Strength of Board of Diractors is 11 as on 2158 Ma:ch, 2005, whoss com position ld given balow

Exacutive Dustiors H a{Thies)

Non-Exscutive Indopendert Dirsctors : 8{Eigh)

Indepancen Dinsciors apert from getting sming foes do not have any olher matesia! pecuniary relalionship or iranssctions with the Company, it Promolers, 1s Management of ts Assoclatos.
COMPOSITICN OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, NUMBER CF DIRECTGRSHIP INOTHER COMPANIES AND MEMBERSHIPS IN THE BOARD AND COMMITTEE OF OTHER COMPANIES:

ShNo. | Nameof Directors Posiion Calegory ol Divector No. of Diractorship No. ol Kambarship in
of othar Companies Board Commines
. Chairman Marm bt
1 Shri Abhay Oswal Chalrman & Managing Director Exscutive Dirsctor 2 NIL 1
2 Shri Anil Bhalla Whola-Tima Director -do - 2 L NL
A Shri Ranjan Sharma Dirseior (Finance) g 1 NIL NIL
4 Shri P.Xumar Independant Dirsctor Non Exscutive 1 NIL 2
Incegendent Cirector
5 Shri A Karati* {CIC) Nomineq -do- Nat avallable Mol available Mot vnilable
& Shii §.C. Marwaba SBI Nomiinee. -te- N NIL MIL
EA ShriC.M. Bhargay LIC Nomings o ML HiL WL -
a Shri 8.C. Bhandar | GICNominea ~do- 2 NIL NIL -
9 Shri LLP. Singh* UT| Nominee +do- HiL 1 2z
0 Strri . Lognkar IFCI Hominae o Nt avallabie Hoh wraliabie N avatathy
11 Shri C.P. Phili iDBI Nominaa -do- 2 NIL 4
12 Snri i.Duha UTI Nominsa o 1 NIL NIt
13 Shri Sandesp Bakhshi ICICINomines £ 1 i N
* Ceasediobe Diracior woe.l. 16.01.2005 ** Ceased tobe Director w.e.f. 17.02.2005

Tha Number of Non-Exscuthes Indspandent Directors are more than 50% of tolal numbsr of DireCtars.
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CISWAL,

ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR ATTHE BOARD MEETINGS AND AT LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Ng. o1 Board Maatings held

Mo. of Board Meetings attended

attendod last AGM

Name of the Dirsclors
Executive Diractor

Shri Abhay Oswal

5

Shri Anil Bhalla

Shri Ranjan Shama

o e

w

NO
NO
YES

Non-Exscutive Dlrectors

<
m
w

Shrt PKumar_
Shii S.C. Marwaha (SBI)

Shri A, Kamti (ICIG]) (e}

Shri .M. Bhargav (LIC)

Shri 8.C. Bhandari {GIC)

Shri U.P. Slagh (UTN) {a)"

Shrl A Loonkar (IFCH

Shri C.P. Philip {ID&Y)

Shri M.D. Jka {UT]) (b)*

= |en |en |& | ben |en [en [0

= o | |& | |0 & |0 &

Z|216(615|8(8|5|5

Shri Sandeep Bakhshi{ICICI)(d)
. {a)* Resigned w.e.f. 18.01.2005
(c)* Resigned w.e.f. 17.02.2005

o) Nominaled w.e.f. 18.01.2005 by UTI

(dy Nominated w.e.f, 17.02.2005 by ICICI
During the year under revisw, five Board Mealings ware heid as indicated below :

Date of Board Meetings

25.06.2004, 30.07.2004, 20.09.2004, 30.10.2004 & 31.01.2005 l

3. COMMITTEE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Beard of Directors had constiluted 5 Cemmitiees of the Board, namely Share Transfer Committes, Audit Commillas, investors Grievance Committee,
RAamuneralicn Committes and Project Managemant Committes. The Committass meet as cilen as required. The details of Committees and meetings thergol

are 88 lollows,

Dotalls of tho Moctings hald

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

Role & Aesponsibilities

Members

No. of Meetings held
during the year

No. of Meetings atiended

To approve transfer of Shares (PhysicavDemat), Shrl Abhey Oswal 24 10
issue of Duplicale/Consolidaled’ SplitDatace! Shri Anil Bhalla 24 24
Aemal Share Gertilicatas stc. Shri Ranjan Sharma 24 23
ALDIT COMMIATEE
AOLE & RESPONSIBILITIES

Overseaing the GCompany's Financial reporting process and the disclosure of its Financial Information

et and removal of axtarnal auditor, fixation of audit fee and othar payments 1o be made to him.

Recommending the appol

Reviewlng with Management the annual financial

tefore submission to the Board.

alo|alm

Revigwing wilh the Management, extemal and imema! auditors, the adequacy of internal Conlrol systerns.

of internal Audit.

o | Reviowing the adequacy of internat audit funclicn, including the structure of the intarnal audit department including coverage and fraquency

Giscussion with internal audigrs regarding any significant findings and tollow up theraon.

g- | Pevigwing the findings ol any intemal investigations by the internal auditors into matters whore thera is suspweted fraud or iregularity or 8
failure ol imemai conirol systams ol a material nature anc reporting tha matter 10 lhe Board.

of concern,

h Discussion wilh tha external auditors before the audil commences, nature and scope of audit and also to have posi Audit discussion for area

i Reviewing the company's financial and fsk management poficies.

} To_ laok into the reasons for defaull in payment to Depositors, Debentureholders & Sharshoidars and Creditors.

% | Toinvesligale any agiivity within its terms of reference and to seek Logal or Professional advise and any information from the Emplayees
of the Company or oulsiders having experlise as may be doomad necassary.

Details of Meotings held

No. ¢f Meetings hald Np.of Meating ded
Shri A Karati, (Chairman)* 4 ! 4
Shri P Kumar 4 i
Shri S G Marwaha 4 p)
Shi A Loonkar 4 2

Ceased Lo be mambar/chairman of committee on wilhdrawal of nomination by ICICI from the Board.

1"



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED HENWAL,
All the mambers of the Audit committes are Independent and Nen-Executive Directors, Al thesa Directors are having sufficient knowledge of corporate
finance, accounts and company law matiers. The Chairnan of the Cemmities is a Non-Execulive Indepandeni Dirgstor nominated by the Board. Diractor
{Finange) of the Gompany is pacmanant invitee at the maatings of the Committee and has vas\ knowiedge of Finance, Accounts and lagal matters. The
Statutary Auditors and the Internal Auditors are aise invited in the mesetings ol Committee from time fo time. The Company Secretary acls as the
Secretary of the Commiltes.

WVESTORS GRIEVANTE COMMITTEE

Invasiors' Grievance Committes was lormed by the Board of D prising of 3D out of which one is Non Executive Independent Diractor,
who is also the Chaiman of the Committss. Details of the Mestings held during the year are as under:-

Mamibers No. of Mootings held No. &f Mooting ded

Shri A, Karagi® 4 2

Shri Anil Bhalia 4 3

Shri Aanjan Sharma 4 %

'Ceasad"to e membar/ichalrman of committée on withdrawal of nomination by ICICI frem tha Board.
- REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remunaration Cormittea was farmed an 20.04.2003 by the Boand of Directors comprising of throe Non-Executive independent Directors. The
Aemuneration Committes has the pawers to detarmine and racommend ¢ the Board of the remuneration payabla to Execulive Directors. No maeling of
remuneralion committse was hetd during the year.
PROJECT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Project Management Gommittes was formed by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 31" January, 2005 undar tha chairmanship of Shri Abhe]

Oswal, Chairman & Managing Directos. Other mambars of the Commiliee are nominaa directers of ICIC, IDBI, IFCI and SBI. No mesting of Project
MWanagement Committes was held during the year.

4. COMPUANCE OFFICER:
Mr. H.K_ Gupts, Company Sacrotary is the compliance officer.

5. SHAREHOLDERS COMPLAINTS:

Ne.of compiainta recoived No. of complaints resclved to the No. of panding transier of shares
Buring 01.04.2004 tg 31.03.2005 safislaction of shareholders
779 757 Ni**
"R int Jaints wera r d during tha month of ApriMay, 2005

“* As on date there are no shares pending for iransiar axcepi disputed cases of whare restrain order is stil panding.
8. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS:

Partlculars 2001-2002 2002-2003 2003-2004
Oata & Time 21.09.2002 13.09.2003 25.08.2004
11: 00 AM. 11: 00 AM. 11:00 A.M,
Venue Village & PO. Piprola, Jatalabad Read, Shahjahanpur-242001, (U.P.)
3o, of Special Resclution passed NIL [ 7 1 1
POSTAL BALLOT:

Tha Company shail tollow iha ralevant provisions of law regarding Postal Ballot as and when required.
7. DISCLOSURES:
d  There were no transadtions in e company of matesist nature with its Direciors, Management or relalives eic. 1nat may have potential contlict with
the interest ot the company at large.
b Thare ware no cases of non-compliance By the company and no penalties and stricluras were imposed on the company by Stock Exchangos or BEBI
o any oiher Statutory authodTy on any matter relatad to capital markets during the last 3 years.
8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The company publishes its quarterly results in English Newspaper "Pigneer” having all India cicculation and Hindi Mawspaper “Amar Ujata (Kenput Edition)”
having cirewiation mainly in the Stala of Uttar Pradesh. Company also displays its quariedy resulls and signilicam corporate informalion on its website
Oswalfert.com. Half yearly Unaudiled Financial resulls are senl io the Stock Exchanges. where the Company's shares are listed.

9. {NTERMAL AUCITORS:
Tha Company has appeinied a firm of Chartered Accountanis as Intamal Auditor to review internal control systems of the Company and to report thereon.
The rapons of 1he interna? Audilors are reviewed by the Audii Commiitee.

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:
The compary has ne pecuniary relationship ar transaction with i1s non-exacutive Diractors, other than payment of sitting fees for atending Board nnd
Committee Maetings.
The remunsmiicn being paid 1o Execulive Directors was approvad by the remuneralion committes in iis maeting held on 30.01.2003 by the Board of
Diractors In the meeting held on 30.01,2003 and by the shareholders of the Company in its meeting hatd on 13.09.2003. The said remuneration Is within
the revised limit of minimum remunasalion in case of inadeguacy of profit ¢t no profit preseribed in Section - Wef Part 1! of Sehedule X of the Companies
Acl, 1956. The company does not have any incanlive plan linked to performance o achisvement of the Company's objectives. There is no stock option
schemg for any of the Directors or Empioyeas of the Company.
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12.

Details of ramunaration/sitting lees paid tp Directors ol the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2005 are given below:

(AmL in Rs.)
S.No. Name of the Direciors Sarary PF, Perquisites Sitting fae for allending
Board/Committaa meetings,
1 Shri Abhey Oswal 18,00,000 2,156,000 17,40,828 Nil
2 Shrt Anif Bhalla 18,00,000 2,186,000 15,11.400 Nil
3 Shri Ranjan Sharma 18,00,000 2,16,000 15,11,400 Nil
4 Shri P. Kumar Nil Nil il 40,000
NOMINEE DIRECTORS
S Shii 5. C. Mawaha Nl - Nil . Nil 45,000
8 Shri A. Karati™* Nl Nil Nil 40,000
7 ShriC. M. Bhamay N Nil Nil 25,000
8 Shri S, €. Bhandari Ni Nil Nil 20,000
2] Shri U. P Singh* Nl Nil Nil 20,000
hiv] Shd R. Loonker NI Nil Nil 45,000
1 Shri €. P. Philip Ni Ni Nil 20,000
12 Shri M.C.Jha =" Ni Nil Nil 5,000
13 Shri Sandeep Bakhshi**** Nil Nil Nil N.A,
* Nomination withdrawn by UTl on 18.01.2005 ** Nomination withdrawn by IGICI on 17.02.2005
***  Nominated w.a.f 18.01.2005 by UTI, **** Nominated w.e.f. 17.02.2005 by ICIC1.
GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION;:
Annual General Maoting s propesed to bo held
Date : 24* Seplembar, 2005.
Venue : Vilage & P.0. Piprola, Jalalabad Road, Shahjahanpur — 242 001 (U.P).
Bock Closure Date © 21% Seplember, 2005 to 24% Saptember, 2005.
Dividend Payment B Due to nel luss, the diractors have not proposed any dividend for the Financial Year anded 3151 March, 2005.
{a) FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Unaudited Financla! Results
For tho quarter endod Tentativa Dates
30.06.2005 4" waak of July, 2005
30.09.2005 4% woeek of Ocl, 2005
31.12.2005 a™ waek of Jan, 2006
31,03,2006 4" week of April, 2006
Naxt Annuai General Meeting Last waek of September, 2006
(o) Sharea of the Company are llsted on the following Stock Exchanges :
S.No.| Name of the Stock Exchange Stock Code_No. of Company's Shares
1" The Caleutta Stock Exchange Association Lid., 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata- 700 001 10025044
2" The Stock Exchange Mumbai, Phiroze Jeejesbhoy Tower, Balal Street, Mumbai — 400 001 500063
a The Stock Exchanga Ahmedabed, Kamdhen Complex. Opp. Shahjanand Golege, Paniarapole, Ahmedabad - 380015 Not available
4.~ | Madras Stock Exchange Ltd., 11 Second Line Beach, Chennai — 600001 Not available
5.** | The Ludhiana Stock Exchange Lid., Feroze Gandhi Markei, Ludhiana — 141001 och
8."*" | National Stock 08 of Indlia Lid, Exchanga Plaza, Bandra ~ Kura Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400051 |, Bindal Agro
Annual Listing fous uplo 2004-2005 ware pad to The L.P.Stock Exchange Assoclation Lid., The Slock Exchango Mumbal, Tho Ludhiana Stock Exchanga Association Lid, The Dehi Stock
Exchange Arsodialion Lid., Madros Stock Exchange LId. and National Slock Exchange of India Ltd.
~ Pursuani lo SEBI guidatings, 2003 lor vohuritary defisting ol Securiies ol the Company and approvat ol sharcholdara ol the company in itg magling held on 13.09.2004, appfications lor
dalisting of tecurities ol tha COmpany are pending wilh Lhe Stock Exchanges 24 given abowo, whereas the share of lhe company has bean defisted from Kanpur gnd Ot Stock Exchanges.
*The Sharas ol tha Company have &inca been delisted I7om Madras and Ludhlana Stock Exchanges.
=+ the Shares ol the company continue lo b lisias wilh Lhe National Stock Exchanga ol India Lid, Mumbal
{¢) MARKETPRICE DATA {Figures in Rs.)
Mortth Bombay Stock Exchange National Siock Exchange
HIGH LOwW HIGH Low
April, 2004 6.15 4.50 6.10 4.50
May, 2004 8.24 431 6.40 : 4.25
Jung, 2004 - = 5.20 4.00
July, 2004 N - - 535 4.40
August, 2004 - - 470 4.00
Seplember, 2004 - - 6.60 445
Deiohor, 2004 - - 6.05 5.20
Nevembar, 2004 - - i -
Docember, 2004 - = 1190 5.50
January, 2005 - - 10.80 7.00
February, 2005 - - 15.15 7.65
March, 2005 - - 12.00 8.25
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() REGISTRAR & SHARETRANSFER AGENT
M4 Skyline Finangial Services Pvi. Lid. 123, Vinoba Pur, Lajpat Nagar - 1I, New Delhi - 110024, Phone No. 29833777, 20847135, Fax No 20848352
(e} SHARE TRANSFERSYSTEM
The Sharas of the compaay fall under tha category of cempulsory demat form for all the investors., The Share Transler request raceivad in physieal
form are registered within 30 days from the date of lodgment of shares and demat request ived from the [ i Panicipants ars p d
within 21 days {rom the date of receip!.

( DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31.03.2005

| No.of Shares No. of Shares hold % No. of Sharsholders, b
1-500 AS2TET Y 18.02 303100 93.63
501-1000 9805077 3.82 13278 4.10
1001-2000 6351014 2.47 4285 1.33
2001-3000 2835204 1.11 1111 0.94
3001-4000 1544508 .60 432 0.13
4001-5000 2235974 0.87 470 0.15
5403-10000 4214292 1.84 562 0.17
100Q4-and shave 183542362 71,47 AB5 0.15
TOTAL 256409150 100.00 23T 100.00

{g) SHAREHDLDING PATYERN AS ON 31.03.2005

Catagory Ho.ot Shares %age of hetding

A Pramaters and Assocciates 13,82,07,452 - 54.21
8 Banks, Financial Institutions and Mulual Funds 2.34,32,681 9,12
[+ Indian Fubli¢ 8,85,52,538 - 34.48
D NRI/QCB/FIi's 58,168,508 ‘218

TOTAL 25,58,09,158 100.00

{h}  DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES
The equty shares of fagunder . J v domat fomm for allthe irvestors. The pany f for nnd P

yol for si
of shatres fo ity inwestors through its Flagistrar & Share Transter Agsnt. About 74.76% of the Equity Share Caphal of the company has been domated (il 31,3.2605. Tha sharas:
the Company sre traded in Demat mode under ISTN Number INE 143451810,

{l)  PLANTLOCATIONS

1) Uraa Divislan: 2)  Pnoaphatic Fertllzer Division:
Fugd. Otfics : Vikaga Piproia, Jelalabad Read N Vihage Musadia, Distt. Jagai Singh Pur
Shahjahanpur-242 001 {UP} - Parsdesp ((rissa)—754 142
{il INVESTORS' CORRESPONDERCE
Thal k (e

3] Transisr and cemal#rialisation ol shares,
b)  Norn-receiplof dividend,
oy Query relating to Annual Repar,
d)  Quary wl2ing 1o any othee mater tor e sharey heid in the company al the tohowing addresses ;
1 OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LTD., 7> FLOOR, ANTRIKSH BHAWAN, 22, K.G. MARG, NEW DELHI - 110 001, PHONE Na. 23715242, 23322080

® SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES P¥T LTD.
[Pagisirass & Shara Trengtes AQan, 123, VINOBA PUR, LAIPAT RAGAR-I. NEW DELHI- 110024 PHONE No.- RUBSG777, 29847134,

Sharehokiers hokiing sharas in Demal Form are 10 Inferm (hek raspaciive u-pul'uvy Parliclpatita for mny change ln tha Banik Detsls, Mardate. Powst of Altomey of Change of Address.
)  The Company wil oty with thie W raqulremonta givenin Schodule — i of Clause 49 of tha Listing Agr 1t wilh the Su;ck ch 23 and when raquired.

Ansexue - [¥
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
OVERVIEW

Tha cemac of tactiizt products e, DAP and Lirea has shown an nCraase 43 compared toast ywar. Thisis dus 10 the growth in ho lam sactor, which has benwiiad dud to betier monsoona
a3 wallas mock [scusad spproach of the Govi. lowards egriculure. The intemaliona! market for raw materialy and finished products is facing 4 shoringe which is raflocied in a rise in pricos

0 e pest . the Govemment of INda s undir iremandous prassLre o prund s Subidy outgo whils remaining commited 1o providing Much nooded fenizer nputs 1o the Isrmars

srcontrolled prioes.

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE

Ures Plant ) ) )

Ura Plant continyas 10 ogoraie satisiaciory Avainbiity of naturs! gs as ket and fual was s constsant. Howe!, due o availablity of ALNG, this pioblem has 1o some axtent bean sotwd.

To make U ok more Hactive, i 1$ o ge In for anargy saving schemes which will Mad 10 reduction i Y O e i nyp ion Ievalato 8.50

Lakh MT consistently,

DAP Planl

The DAP Plnt did nol paricnm oplimatly for 2 ke per of the year dud to vark Th ranap is seized of the problama and is taking eftectve slaps 1o sirengihen the manageral

wchnical st up atthe Piam,

HUMAN RELATIONS N

Inckysirial ratations of the Company b i ghout the ysar. Total nUmbar of #Mployess ks on March 31, 2005 was 2113,

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Compesity his & BFOPE? BNd ATSGUALE Ty316m ot MMl CoNYTols 1o #nsura nccuracy bt reoords, comp with milaws lions &nd with alrules, p and
icteli d Tha phservations and SOOMINGs paimad out by he audions are discussed al varicus forums, he lopmos: being tha Audil comm ktes of ho

Beard of Direciors.

RISKS AND CONCEANS

Thaiing prices of raw malerini3 vz natural gas, suptha, rock phosphate, Sulphr end ammonia on ong hend and fiscal pressure on tha Ge, of India o prune 13 burgesning cutge are

Tikely to resultin cash ow mismatch. (n addilion, fartilizer business is crlticaly dependent on |imaly arsival ol monsoons.

OPPORTUNITY AND QUTLQOX

Your company babeves thal due 10 increated lcus ol the Gouseneant on e SErc»Ae Lacter, factilize: butinesa in e ¥ fiad & ervical ol 10 iy inthe Sverall scanomie growdh
of the courtry, The Govemmant palicies @ also now being modulatod in such & way s0asto load towards the eventuat decontrol A tha tartilizer wacior, In this stenario, low cost produceny
such 88 your Compauy S1and [0 gain substaniizly Al the samaums, ‘staps.urw in hand to «ugment production lovels in bah the plants 10 rea the benali of sconomies ol 4cale.and for optimum
racovery of fixed cosm. .

14



¢

OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

ESWAL

AUDITORS' REPORT

To tho Sharsholdora of Oswal Chemicals &
Fartilizers Limited

1. Wao have audited the attached Balance Sheat
of Oswal Chamicals & Fartliizers Limited as at
March 31, 2005, the ralated Profit and Loss
Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the
yearended on that data annexed thereto, which
wo have signed undar reference to this report.
Thesa int usarether ibiity
¢l the Company's management; our
rasponsibility is ta express an opinian an these
financial statements based on our audit.

2. Wa have conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted In
India. These Standards require that we plan
and parform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance mbout whethar the linansial
statements are [ree of matarial misstatemant.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

. evidance supporiing the amounis and

W disclosuresin the linancial statemants. An audit
also includes mssessing tha accounting
princlples used and significant estimates made
by managsment, as weil s evalualing the
overal! financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reaspnable
basis for our opinion.

3, Asrequired by the Companias (Auditor's Report}
Order, 2003 issuad by Govemment of India in
larms of sub-section (4A) of Saction 227 of
The Companiss Act, 1956' (the "Act’) and on
the basis of such chacks of the books wnd
recards of the Company as we cansidersd
appropriate and accerding to the infurmation

and explanations given 1o us, we give in the

being appeintod as a direetor as on March
31, 2005 in terms of clause (g} of sub-
section (1) 1o Section 274 of the Act.

(f) In our oplnian ana 16 the bast of our
Information and according o the
explanations given o us, the Balance
Sheet, Profit & Loss and Cash Flow
Statament, togather wilh the nclas thereon
and attachad thereto, give in the prascribed
mannar, the information required by the
'Act', and, read with nota - 25 on schoduls
XXii regarding the proparation of these
accounls o0 a going corcem basis, and
subjact 0 our comments in paragraphs
5.1 w0 5.6 below, give respeciively, a trug
and tair view in conformity with the

i inciples generally d

in tndia:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of
the siata of atlairs of the Company as
a1 March 31, 2005;

In the case of the Profit and toss
Account, of the doss tor the year ended
on that date; and

o

in tha case of Cash Flow Statsrnent,
of the cash flows for the year ended
on that dals,

5.1 Note ro. 9 (¢} on schedule XX regarding nor
provision of debtors amounting to Rs. 175.27
Iecs against whom loga! cases have bean filad
by the company for the reasons siated
tharein.

5.2 Note 3 (a} & (b) on schodule XXil reganting
naon-reconciliation of accounts of cartain
suppliars of DAP division, and inleres! payable

(¢!

Annaxure a siatement on tha matters sp
in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Ordar.

4. Further %o our commants in the Apnexura
refamred to inparegmph 3 above, we repost that:

fa} Subject to our comments In paragraphs
5.2 balow, we hava obtained alil the
information and sxplanations, which 1o the
bost of our knowledge and belisl wers
necessary for tha purposas of our audit;

(b

have bean kep: by the Campany as required
by law 50 far as sppears fram our
axamiration of these books;

{(¢) The Balance Sheet, Prolit and Loss
Accaunt and the Cash Flow Statsment dealt
with in this repart ars In agreament with the
bocks of account;

{d} In our opinion, the Balanco Sheet, Profit
and Less Accounl and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report have
been prapared in compliance with the
applicable accounting slandards referred
1o In section 211 (3C) of the ‘Act’;

In our opinicn. propar books of account

to grstwhil bond holders and
paymants mads to them based on their laims.

8.3 Note 6 on schadule XX1i regarding non-provision
of subsidy relund dus fo downward revision of
retantion price contested by the Company, the
recovary of which has been slayed by the
Han'bie Delhi High Coun, astimated o be Rs.
21,768.92 lacs, the ultimale tizbility of which
could not be readily ascenained.

5.4 Note 20 of dule XXII regardi
of prefarence shares as at 31.3.2005 for Rs.
24805.58 tacs (Prawious Year As, 2185.95 lacs)
ang conversion of interast into funded interast
tarm loan amounting [o A, 752289 lacs during
the year, Rs. 21166.54 lacs as at 31.03.2005
(previgus Year Rs. 12568.85 lacs) pursuant to
8 Debl Restructuring Scheme far secured icans

of DAP division as approved by tha Corporats-

Deb! Restructuring Coll being subject to
reconcitiation/confirmation by the lenders.
Further accounting of modifications of COR
package sanclioned in April, 2005 relating ta
reliaf, recuction in rate of interest resuiting in
fower interest provision during the yeer of Rs.
7072.23 lacs, defarment of payment of

alc. inths. asal31.03.2005

{#) On tha basis of written rapri tions
given by the Directors of the Company
oiher than Nominae Directors who are
exempt, and taken on record by the Board
of Diractors, and based on legal opinion
cbtained by the company, we repar that
nune ol the Directors are disqualified from

»

Is pending approval from rospective authontias
of the lendars.

55 Nols no. 21 regarding non redemption of
debentures of Unit Trust of Indip on due dates
of Rs. 2115.231acs and non payment of interest
thereon amounting [o As. 4998.65 lacs.
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5.6 Note 11{b) of Schedule XXIi roganding managesiafl
remunerglion amounting to As. 108.11 lacs paid
1o directars, being subjoct to approval of Central
Govermment.

Wa further report thal without considering our
commenls In paragraphs 5.2 o 5.5 above, the
impact of which we are unable (o quantify and
aftar considering adjusirments arsing on account
of our commenis in paragraphs 5.1 above, to
the axtent quantifiable, would result in the loss
befers tax of Rs 31436.03 lacs a5 4gainst RS,
31262.76 (acs as shown in the Profil and Loss
Account. Consequently, nat current Bssets
would change to Rs. 61124.62 lacs as against
Hs. 61299.89 lacs and debit balance in profit
and foss account would change io Rs. 88274.78
iacs as against Bs. 88099.51 lacs as skown in
thes Balance Sheet.

For T.R.Chadha & Co.

Chartared Accountanis
Placa: New Dalhi {Kapil Kedar)
Dated: 30" June, 2005 Pariner

M. No.- 094902
ANNEXURE TO AUDITORS’REPORT

[Referrad to in paragraph 3 of the Auditors' Repen
of even date]

iy &) The Company has mainiained proeper
recards other than for closed divisions, and
fumnfture & fixturas 1o show full particulars
including details and sl
of its fixed assets.

b)

According 1o information and sxplanations
given to us, the fixed assets of the
Company are physically verilied by the
managemant in a phased programme
designad 1o cover all items of the Ursa and
the DAP clvisicns over a period of two years
which in our opinion is reasanabla. No
matasial discrepancies were noticed on this
vedfication, sxcept for Fumilure & Fixiures
In raspect of which we are unable o
comment in view of para (i) (a} above.

¢) In our opinion and accerding to the
information and explanations given 1o us,
substantial part of fixed assets has not
been disposed of by the Company during
the year.

i} a

The inventory {excluding stocks with third
paries aggregating Rs, 739.08 lacs, which
has rot been confirmad] has bean
physicaily veritied by the managemeni during
the year. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonakle.

b]

n our opinign, the procedures of physical
varllication of inventory followed by the
managemant ara reasonabla and adequata
in ralation 10 the size of the Company and
the nature of its business.

£) ©On the basis o} our examination of the
inventory reccrds, in our opinien, the
Coempany Is maintalning propar records of
inventory. The discrepancies noliced on
physical verification of inventory as
compared 1o book fecomts were not matarial,
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iiy  The Company has neitner grinted nor taken any loans, secbred or d, trom vos, firrng orother pas U gisler MANLA 4 ofme Act, Oy, dausce
3b).(cha {d)D(NOIdBI‘ Ay noy applicable.

i) Inourop and given 1o ua, In general, tham d 0 with the size ol lho Company and iho nature of ks
mh-mwmmm(mmmuwmdm Further, mwmdmremmdmmunmmmmu Wnpany.lmncoumlghmwﬂrrmlbnam
XPLANATONS GIvEN (0 us, we Nawe MINEr coMS ACTOSA NAr have been iniormed of amy continuing falur to comact Major wigresald intomat ¢

v o Innurnm'!luﬂlnd relew to tha L ud ¢l 2 us, L w-mmummmmhwmtumm HMMWWWW

. and wvm ogist of Seciion
301 of tha Act &nd lkm the value gl ripees lm lacs in respec of anyparty during the yitar, which hawve been mads ot prices which are nol f98sonadlo having mqll’d tothe pravalling markel
prices at the rolavan lima,

Vi) The COmEany roas 1ot sCCaptad wy G&bosils 10 e pullic wiihin e meaning of Sectiong SBA 2nd $5A4 of the ACt & tho Aules ramed inere undar.

¥} (0 our ppinken, Ihe Company’a prayan! intemal oudi| §ysiam is genomly commansurata with its size and natune of ils business.

viii} W have broadhy invirwed (he booka of accoun] maéntained by U Compay in respest of products whars, purstian i the Rules made by the Céminl Govemmont of India, ine rutintanance of cost recoms
S DN NIESCRbeS under thause [9) of sul- -SDUAEN 11} of SECoon 208 of tha ACt and mre of (e opinion that prima facke, the prascribad accounts and rcorts hava Deen maud &nd malitained. We have
nol, howdver, made a detailod examinatian of the records with a viow 1o dotamine whoiner thay ame accurale or complela.

b8 Accarding o i o Qiventa mmdmcmpwumodb'w 1 our gpinicn, lhe(:ompmy gy i Slatutory duoa

ion tund, sLalg insurmnce. iNCOra-| i Gustoms duty, y and gthar mlhﬂa\mtu\m&miﬁawm With the hppropriatt
lumnmles Dutstanding sLalutory dues for more lhan six months A5 on 31.03.2005 are qu below:
Mame of the StHute Neture of the Dues Amount (Re. inlecs) Remarks
The Companies Act, 1956, Invextor Educetion & Protecbion Fund 1315 Since depasded
b)  Acgorging 1o Lha intormation and #xplanaliens given 1o us and 1he racords of the Company uxpmingd by us, the pacticulars of duss of aalas-tax, incoma custome duly, waalih LA
wrciga duty and cess ws &t Maich 31, 2005 winch havie no! besn depounted on account of w dispute, MiE as folidwd -
Nareolgm Nawire of e Amound | Perdodic which B Forum whers the disputs
statm (R laca) | 2 dinount mlates i3 penaing
ingomy Taz Ach, 1R8I thtome ap including interes; 1329.01 [ Asseszment Ve tnsome Tax Appe Teidunal, Cakha for
1858-98, 2000-01 Ry 11420 facy have been Jacided in favous
and 2001-02 of the Company in May, 05, balente demand
adfusted doains! réfynd eiter 31-03-260%.
income Tan Acl, 1867 Incema tas ittiuting intereal 7204 ) Asawszmant Year r of Jngome Tax (Appeals),
1391-82 nd after 31-03-2005
Waalth Tax Act, 1857 Wealth taz intluding intertat 483 | Asssximent Yoar tncome Tix lp_u Tribunal
1993-94 rg 1997-08
Sarvics Tax Swivice lan On tramaporier 3240 BN TAN ~| Additionsi Commisgionar, Cantral Ercins, Lucknow,
Service Tav Sarvice rav on ltansponier ’ 1.3 ] 18.11.97 to 1.6.90 Oepuly Commissipnar Cantral Excise, Sitapur.
Bihar Finance gt Sates Fas including imerssi 322,14 | Finsncial Yudr 2000-61 § Joinr Commiasiensr ot Commarcisl
HIH md penally 2002-03 Texws (hppeal], Paina
Bindr Finance Act, 1981 Saler Tax including inrerest 121.37 | Financial Yesr 2000-01 Commissionar of Commercist tavss, Patna
and panalty & from 1.4.2000 lo 31.10.2002
Qriasa Safen Agl, 14T Saian tac iacluding fnlerest 255.7% Y juns 30, 3000 1o March 33, 2003 won'bte Migh Cewrr of Orissa
Utiranchal Trade Taz Sules Tar inciuding 0.37 | Financial Year 2002-03 Joint Commisslaner
intermar and pannity
MP Sales Tar Saisa tax inciuding ipteras! 27.09 | Firarcinl pade 19928 Revition petition belors Addilionsl Commissionst, Bhoptt
x}  Thaaccumulsted (casea of the Company #3 at March 31, 2003 ure more Irunm‘ly parcant of (L networth and il a3 also incumed cash Koasas during he finandial yaar snded on that dats anc in the:
iately preceding financial yaat.
il m 10 tha rectdy of e Compuny, it by detavited n cypaymant of fofewang duss to finarcis) Satiubona/oarig dabentore huldacs duing ha year
BanhFinsncisl ; AmouwT: of Defsult Pariad of Default {day s} Remarka
IngtittionyDabant:ae holce [Ra. lacz)
Financisi Inglitutions 284875 various smounts nging
[wanous exeapi UTI) From 83 0 81 days
Daventurs hokders (UT]) 712395 Various #mOunts mnging Qul of which R 10.08 lncs i disputed.
Radsmpitionamount & inenest from 16 1o 12 dayy
A et MERTUCANING Schewmy for acuned Kars of DA P division of e Company hay been 2pproved by the Corporkta Debt Reskructuring Cell undar which, int ull Gatnuits {other than in respact
&1 loany 8MounUng to Ra B, 875 Iaca dud to Uit Trust of India) have bean restuctured.
2l The Gompany has not grantad sny loans &nd Acvancas on e baris of securty by way of pledge of shares, deDentures And ifv( ¥Clnias.
xii}  Tha provisions of any special statuse spplicatie 1o chit fund / aidhl / mutus! banefil i e nol ap| 1o the Company.
xiv]  In guropinion, tha Company is nat a deatar or trader in sharey, securities, debsntures £/ ollar R SITanLE.
W) o ouroinion, B IKSORRG 1D he iR DAMALon and wAslanalions Ghven 1o Us, Tie Campuny s <t pivan ity guarsntea for ioans taken by others fram banks of finarncial ingttulions during tha
yaar.
xvi)  TheCompany hasncd obtained any Lem ioans during (he year. Howsrir, uner the Debi Retructuning Schme refermed toin Note 28 on Schadult XXIE intores: conmvarnsd lofunded interest s
Ioan i 101 been considered under this cizuse.
xyi)  On e basls of review ol ulisation of fund3 on an oviral basls, ilabis to us snd a3 tous by Tands mised:
10 b used o finEncs KonQ term Rxssts (other yn Ra. 4932 T tucs which hive baen used (o inance com working chaitel).
xviil)  The Company hew not mada any pratarsnul aliotment of shar#s 1o parties and companias coverad in the regisier maintaied undes Section 301 ol e Aot dudog b year,
xx]  The Company hed el iszuad &y diring he yarr gnd Xities have d.
0} Tha Company has not reisat! Any Money by putdic i3suss durl® tha year.
=y Dumﬁ\m:nrnuw iraiicn ol e booky ot it Company, clmimd 541 in Bcoordance with the penanily sccecied Suditing praciices in Indi, nd #ceording 1o tha information
a Qe 10 Lo, ACTOLS ANy i y she Company, notcsd of Peported taring Lhe yas, ncr have wil Diin i bry
For TR, Chahs & Co.
CTrattred Sccouniarks
Piace; Nurw Delhl - (Hrpil Kadar)
Cabnat: 0% Jur, 2005 . Parner 1%, Ho. DAL
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CISWAL,

Balance Sheet
As At 31st March, 2005

Particulars

Schadule Na.

As At 31.03.2005

As At 31.03.2004

{Rs.in Lacs) {Rs.In Lacs)
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders” Funds
Capital | 74,486.50 51,866.87
Aeserves & Surplus It 54,662.84 54,662.84
129,149.34 1086,529.71
Loan Funds
Securad Loans 235,503.22 249,036.02
RE- 364,652.56 355,565.73
AppHecatlon Of Funds o NO- — —
Fixed Assets “Ph5gs
qross Block 369,134.08 369,667.19
M oss: Depraciation REG No 164,279.30 147 ,615.53
Net Block Foa Rl bl *] 204,854.79. 222,045.58
Capital Work In Progress 'VI j‘ ")57'1'"6) 4.977.08 6,072.65
b 2;‘/2@‘,3” 209,831.87 228,118.23
Investments " laog 4,898.23 4,508.44
Deferrad Tax Asset {nat) 4 Sgp .
{Note 16 on Schedule XXII) 2
Current Assets, Loans & Advanc gy
Inventorles ! i 54,356.19 39,660.34
Sundry Dabtors 33 il 28,921.17 47,105.31
Cash & Bank Balances 2pgs X 1,072.77 2,734.45
Loans & Advances ; .,.,:,‘; 3,310.44 2,752.87
K - 67,662.57 82.292.97
Less:Current Liabllities & Provisiong
Currant Liabilities <X 25,759.82 28.909.41
Provisions X 602.76 - 727.38
26,362.68 27,636.77
Net Cument Assets 61,299.89 64,856.20
Miscelianeous Expenditure
{To the extent not written off or adjusted)}
Dalerrad Revenue Expenditura 523.06 1,046.11
(Note 10 on schadule XX)) ’
Profit & Loss Acoount 88,099.51 56,836.75
364,652.56 355,565.73
Significant Accounting Policias and . .
Notas to the Accounts XX

This is the Balance Sheet
referred 1o in our repert of even date

Kapil Kadar H.K.Gupta SP Arya
Partregr Company GM (Finance)
Mambership No.094902 Secretary

For and on Behaif of
T.R.CHADHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Dalhi
Date: 30th June, 2005

The scheduies referced to above form an integral
Part of the Balance Sheet ’

For and on behalf of the board

Anil Bhafla
Diractor

Ranjan Sharma Abhay Oswal
Finance Chaiman & Managing
Director Diracter



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

¢

ciswAL

Profit & Loss Account
For the year ended 31st March, 2005

Particulars Schedule No. For the year For the year
Ended on 31.03.2005 Ended on 31.3.2004
(Rs.in Lacs) {Rs.In Lacs)
income
Sales {Note 8 on schedule XXII) 154,055.51 120,884.36
Other Incoma XNl 553.14 2,189.58
154,608.65 123,073.95
Expenditure
Raw Material Consumption X 83,425.85 45,894.20
Cther Manufacturing Expensas X 43,205.59 34,167.57
Empleyees' Cost pAYl 2,9408.81 30747
Selling Expenses Xvil 13,095.59 12.164.?7.
Financa Expenses XVl 27,047.61 30.,273.63
Depreciation 16,774.38 17,5450
Administration Expenses XX 3,684.02 4,069.32
Adjustments due 1o {IncreaseyDecrease in
Stock of Finishad Goods and Work In Progress XX {5,135.79) 3,467.50
185,346.06 150,599.47
Loss before Prior Period Adjustments and Taxation (30,737.41) (27,525.52)
Prior Pariod Adjustments XX 525.35 709.43
L.oss belore Tax Expense {31,262.76) (28,234.95)
- Deferred Tax Asset (Met ) of earlier year written off - 101.96
Loss a'ter Tax Expense (31,262.76} {28,336.91)
Loss brought forward from Previous Year (56,836.75) (29,499.84)
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (88,099.51) (56,836.75)
Earning Per Share (Nominal value of Rs.10 sach)
Basic / Diluled (Note 22 on Schedula XXI¥) {Rs.) (1217 (11.03)
Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to the Accounts XXl
This is the Profit & Loss Account The schedules refarred to abova form an éntegral
referred 10 in our report of even date part of tha Profit & Loss Account
For and on behalf of the board
Kapil Kedar H.K.Gupta S P Arya Anil 8halla Ranjan Sharma Abhey Oswal
Partner Company GM {Finance} Diractor Finance Chairman & Managing
Membership Ne.094302 Secretary Dirscter Diractor

For and on Behalf of
T.A.CHADHA & CO.
Chariered Accountants

Place: New Dahi
Date: 30th June,2005
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED tﬂsw&!
‘ CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

‘Year Enced Yaar Ended
March 31,2005 March 31.2004
Amaount Amount
{Rs.in Lacay {Rs.in Lecs}
A Cash llow from operating sctiviiles:
Notioss bafare fax (1.2527§) {%8,234.95)
Adjusimenty for:
Capraciation 1706624 1758472
Finance Expenso 27.047.61 30,582.90
Inleres! tncome {133.07F {40430}
{Profh)/Loss on salaiwrile off ol Fixed Assots/CWIP ™21 8d4.47
Dwlarred tevanus #xpandiure witten afl 523.06 523.05
Loss!{Profi) on salotwrile off of Invesiment 0ol 112.54
Liabilty no longer raguired writlan back {20.80) {686.81]
Unrenkised Foesign Exchangs Fluciuation {1.28) {65.95)
Provisioniwrito ofl 1or bad & doubltul dobts/advances 450 134,38
Frovision for Gratuity & Leave Encasiment 507y 88.53
Provision for inventory tor obsolate/ damaged sock 178.48 -
Prigr Feriod Expansas!(Income) {Nel} 23348 35B.52
Waalth Tax Pravislon are 1797
QOperating profit belode working capital changes 14,460.53 20,6520
Adjustmants lor changda in working capital: '
- {Increwse)Decrenss in Sundry Dablars 18,150.14 (787.04)
- {imcragse}Ducranse ln Citer Raceivables [597.83) 1,186.62
- (IncreasaUacraase in Inveniors (14,878.33) 720.08
~ Incraasa/{Docrenss) n Trade nnd Othet Payablas (381.22) 4,940.14
- Inceaasc/{Docranse) in Net Currant Assets 2303.88 6.067.80
Cath genaralad liom d0erations 16,764.19 25,033.00
+Prier Pariod {Exponses)/incoma (Nat) {233.45) (358.52)
-Wankhh Tax Paid : 00 (470)
«Taxws Adfund (Payment . 76.29) (256.88)
Hat cash lTom oparating activities 16,454, 44 26,212.90
8, Cauhtlow fom Investing activiian:
Purchase ol lixed assain {300.12) {3.445.75)
Procaods from Sale/tatum of fixed esseta/Capial work in progress 2703 358.08
{Purchase)Sake of nvasimens 020 106.74
Interast Ascalved (Revenus) 155,74 378.09
Net cash usad Inffrom lnvesting sctivillan 582.85 (2.593.58)
€. Cazhllow fromiinancing acllvities: -
Procoads from ungecurad koana
Procesds Irom long i bodowings 128091 1,658.95
Repay f long tarm b Ang: {5.245.28} {12.511.58)
Proeeads (Repaymants Jrem tho term bortowingsieash credil Bozzzy (4,880.78)
Finance Exponss Pad {11.676.02) {7,320.20)
Dividend Pal {41.36) {0.21)
Nat cash usad in financing activities {18,692.97) {23,085 TT]
Nalincrensaf{Decrense) In Cash & Cash Equivalents {1,661.63) 663,04
Cagh and cagh aquivalenis msat 31,00. 2004 273445 2,071.41
Cesh and Bank balances 273045 207111
Cash and cashaquivelents an at 39.03.2005 172 2,734.45
Cash and Bank balances 1072077 2,734.45

Notos:
1 The above Cash llow statement hay been prsparsd under the ndirge) method sglout in AS-2 issued by the Inslitute of Chartered Accountants of india.

2 Figuras inbrackals indicate cash dulga.

3 Cagh and cask equivaients includes balances with the. under dividand payabk nta As. 0.45 (Pravious Yoar As. 41,28 lacs) wnd Rs 850.83 | Provious Year Ry 232116
HaCs. Jagaingtthe maigin mongy fof Letter of Cradit \Bank gusranides and Rs 37.71 lacs{ Previous Year 33.70 tacs] against the security Seposit 1oceived Irom amployess which are not
available for uso by the Company.

Following non cash ions have not baan consi in (e cash llow Batemant.

— Tax deducied at sourca {on income} f3.31.22 Lacs { Previcus Yoar H2.20.75 Lacs).

5 Long larm batiawings Bmaunting to R, 24.805.58 have beon converted imo Ameunt Panding Allotmen/ Adjustmsnt against Prefargnce Share Capital { Refer Nots 204a){iland 20¢b)(1))

] Pravvious you!'s figures nave baan rg-groupedy re-arranged wharovar necossary io conform to the current years presantaton.

Thisis tha Cash Flow raterad Noles 1o accounts (Schadula XX11) forma an integeal Pert of the Cash Flow Statement
I inour fkpon ol ovan date.

Forand an behal! of the baard

Knpil Kedar H.K.Gupta SPAya Anil Bhalla Ranjan Sharma Abhey Oswal

Partnar Company GM {Finance) Dirsgtor Finance Chairman & Managing
Membarship No.094302 Secretary Director Diractor

For and on Behalt of

T.RCHADHA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Plzce: New Delhi
Date: Hth Jure,2005
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

®

ciswal,

Schedules To Accounts

Schedule ! As At 31.02.2005 As At 31.03.2004

(Rs.In Lacs) (Rs.i Lacs)
Share Capital (Nota 18 On schedula XXiY)
Autherised:
375,000,000 (Previous Year 375,000,000) Equity Shares of As.10/- each 37,500.00 37,500.00
27,500,000 {Previous Year 27,500,000) Redeamabla 27,500.00 27,500.00
Preferance Shares of Rs,100/-each
12,500,000 (Previous Year 12,500,000) 2ero Percent Opticnal Convertisle 12,500.¢0 12,500.00
Preference Shares of Rs.100/-aach

77,500.00 77,500.00

Issued & Subscribed: = —
256,809,158 (Previous Year 256,809,159) 25,680.92 25,680.92

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- sach fully paid up

24,000,000 (Pyevious Year 24,000 ,000) 0.01%(Previous Year 10%}) 24,000.00
Redgemable Non Cumulative Prefarence Shares of Rs.100 each, fully paid up,

redeemable on the the expiry of 20 years (Previous Year 15 Years) from the

data of allotment i.a. 31st Qgtober 2001 Asfer Nota 20 b {il) in Schedule XXN

24,0 00.00.

Amount Pending Allotment / Adjustment against Preference Shares 24,805.58 2,185.95
{Refer Note 20 b {i) in Schadule XX [
74,486.50 51,866.87
S¢hedule |1
Reserves & Surplus
Debentura Redemption Reserve * 4,549.94 4,549,904
Share Premlum Account 44,252.90 44,252.90
Caplta! Redemption Reserve 5,860.00 5,860.00
TOTAL 54,662.84 N 54,662.84
* Nota 25 on Schedula XXII
Schedule (Il
Secured Loans (Note 15, 19, 20 and 21 on schedule XXII)
A, Debentures
1) NIL (Previcus Year 11,00,000) 19.5% - 78.48
Secured Non-Converiible Redeemable Debentures
of Rs.100/- vach Fully Paid up Quistanding
Amount Rs,NIL each (Previous Year Rs.7.14 each)
W} B0,00,000 (Frevious Year 80,00,000) - 16% Secured Non-Canvertible 8,000.00 8,000.00
Redgemable Debentures of Rs.100/- aach Fully Paid Up.
1), 1B,75,000{Previous Yaar 18,756,000} 15.5% Secured Non-Convenible
Redeemable Debentures ol Rs. 100/ each Fully Paid up. 1,875.00 1,875.00
v} 3,39,00,000 {Pravious Year 3,39,00,000) - 10.50% (Pravious Year 14.031%)
Sacured Non-Convertible Redeemable Dabentures of
Rs. 100/~ each Fully Paid Up. 33.800.00 33,900.00
Interast Accrued And Due 5,997.84 2,791.32

Contd........ on page no, 21



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

EswalL

Contd.... from page no. 20

As At 31,03.2005

As At 31.03.2004

B. Term Loans: {Rs. in lacs)
1) RUPEE TERM LOANS
— Fram Financla! Institutions B80,932.41
— From Banks 66,885.36
Interest Accrued And Due
~— On Term Loans fram financial Institution 1,676.94
= Qn Torm Loans from Bariks 182.70
C. Weorking Capital Loans - Fram Banks 36,703.67
- From QOthers 2,075.00
Interest Accrued And Dug .
- On Working Capital Loan from Banks .
D.  Intorest Free Loan From The Pradeshiya Industrial & Investment
Corparatlon of Uttar Pradesh Limited (PICUP) 7,274.30
235,503.22
joles:

3 Debontures anc term loans are secured by morgags on whole of e movabk propertios Save and mxcapt Dok detns of the Company
the Company's bankers tor working capial raquiremonty. Thass are further sycured by & joint mongaga crastedic ba Srvated in tavou of

(Rs. in lacs)

95,431.58
57,865.54

16.08

39,190.89
2.600.00

18.39

7.274.76
249,036.02

Ao be eroated in favour ot

{othar than a3 refarmed 1o in note 2 balow).

of deposi of the titke desds with respect 1o the . I’

chargas
Al tha linancial nsttutions and banks by way

2 Tormn loand sggregating ta Rs.2410 lacs (previous ysar R3.2410 acs) from & bank arg further secured by morigage by wey of daposi of ife deods of i thys at vitlagr parh,
District Dwwas, Madhys Pradash, .
3 i Debantyres subscribad by UTIas mantionsd &1 A (§) and A (i) above re recesmable at par in 28 quartery instol d Irom 1540 T L 2003
il 10.50% 5 bl Non Cor O 0f Ra.10C aach subscribed by IFCI mentioned at A (iv) Kbove are rec g n 38 nstatmer eing
rom 200708

4, Working capital ioans from banks and otrwrs ard securad by first charge by way of hypothecation of (e wholo of the curmem assits and baok debls of the Compary Thase are furthar secured

by &30cond charge by way of & j0in mogags in faveur ofall tha lancars for working C2pital reguirements by way of deposit of tha tile deads wi

Propesties {othar than Ak raterred 12 in nola 2 abova).
5 The loana, olhet than wacking

loans from othars, ere guaranteod by the Managing Dirscior.

B Lo from PICUP is saCursd by seoand chargs onth bk
chargas erodlad for securing working caphal fackities.

ith respes 1o the Campany’s immovable

fixad 2ssets of the Shahjahanpur lwntifizer plant of tha Gompany and shalf rnk pari passy with the

Schedula IV

{Noto 3ff){n), 3{1) {b), on Schoduls XXI1)

Fixed Assets (Rs.inLaca.}

Gross Black Depreciation Net Block

Paruculars s Addivon Saln/ At ol Upta Fod the  Written Backd Upta A st Asat

01.04,2004 Adjustment Adjustmest 31.03.2008  01.04.2004 your Adjusied dyring  JLOL2005 11002005 31,03.2004
during the year  during theyans the yrar

Land

Leasohold * 1,006.78 . . 1.006.78 no 1020 . 8323 918.55 92675

-Frashokd Ir2s? - - IT2E7 - - - - arasy r2s?

-Ste Owwioprment SAG8TI - - 648573 226.23 7641 - 30564 6,161.09 8.237.50

Bulldings

~Leasahold 068 - - A58 215 1024 - 1238 e 2383

Fresheld ** 2084403 1030 - 2085433 5530.11 127,79 1642 B,B02.45 14.051.85 15304 92

Plant & Mathinary A orTLE 470.5¢ 102580 32652181 12988554 1495014 39683 124,439.18 18206766  1§7.191.08

Plant & Machinary - held for disposnl  9.837.25 - - LAIR2S 1810 508.31 - 9.700.22 13893 4824

Machinery Spares 1.008.95 - - 100885 304.78 B1.42 - 38620 6227s 70417

Furshure & Fhawre #1323 34s - 164 T14.46 s - 75238 184,55 19887

ehiclas 210477 2038 804 2.119.00 1,660.82 127.25 6554 1,791.53 32755 434.95

Total 6068111 50482 1021.84 360 134.08 147 81553 17,082,665 41885 164.279.30 AMB54T9 22204558

Previous Yaar 368,218.52 2,692.54 124255 35985111 13024837 17.588.72 219.56 14761553

Caplial Work In Progross™= 497,08 8,072.65

TOTAL 208187 2811823

' Includes lng amounting to R3.0.07 lacs (Previous Yaur Re B.07 lncs) located at

respect of which is ya 1o be exacuted and 5o Includes 7 acres L

- Inclues Raiwzy Sldings, costing Rs.527.84 1Rcs (Prvious Year R 527.841acs) nol localed on Company's Jand.

Capilal Work in Progreas includas Capital Advance As, 479,79 Lacs { Pravious Yaar Rs 491,14 Lacs}

Paradoep and Rs. (.62 lacs (Proviouy Year Ais. 0,82 lacs) Located al Mandidesp, IJ;\- Laasy Dewdin
for cor o 6! & hospital by Aruna Abhay Oswal Trusl.
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Schedule V As At 31.03.2005 As At 31.03.2004
(Rs.in lacs} {Rs.n lacs)
INVESTMENTS - LONG TERM-NON TRADE (Notes 5 (s} &
{b} and 12 an schedule XXii}
A. Quoted {Long Tarm}
In Equity Shares (Fully Paid Up)
152000 {Previous Year 152000} Equity Shares of
Ae.10/- Each of Mashville investment & Trading Co. L1d. 13.8% 13.91
8324099 {Previous Year 8324099) Equity Shares
ot Rs.10/- Each of Oswal Agro Mills Lid 4,884.85 4,884.85
B. Government Securities:
Unguoted:
In Govt. Securities 7 Yaars National Plan
Saving Certificate (Lodged with Govt.Authorities) .01 021
C. Others ~ Unquoted 9.57 85
4,908.24 4,008.44
Less:Provision For Diminution of Investmants 10.01 -
4,898.23 4,908.44
Aggregate Book Value:
Quotad Investmants 4,888 .65 4,898 .86
" Unguoted Investments 9,58 B.78
Schadule VI
Deferred Tax Asset/(Llabllity) (Net) {(Note 16 on schedule XXil}
Brought Forward - 101.98
Defarrad Tax Assets .
Unabsorbed Depraclation and Carry forward Losses 41,661.30 a7,023.84
Othar Timing Diflerence 3,090.76 B,472.45
Total 44,752,086 45,495.28
Grand Total 44,752.08 45,508.22
Deferred Tax Liabllity M -
Fixed Assets 44,576.00 44,952,789
Deferred Revenue Expenditure 176.06 543.47
Totat 44,752.06 a5,428.26
Deforred Tax Asset {Net) - 101.86
Legs: Deferred Tax Assat written off - 101.96
Carrled Forward - -
Schedule VII
INVENTORIES
Raw Matarials {including in Transit AS. 1339.38 Lacs- 15,868,13 6,060.47
Pravious Year Rs.NIL)
Waork In Pragrass 6,381.08 3,626.42
Finished Gogds 25,403,386 23,022,22
Stores & Spares (Including in Transit Rs. NIL 6,705.47 6,944 86
Previcus Yoar Re.388.74 Lacs)
Loose Tools 0.15 0.37
54,358.19 39.,660.34
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As At 21.03.2005

Schedule VIl Az At 31.03.200
(Rs.in lacs) {Rs.In lacs,
Sundry Debtors (Considered Good)
Qvar Six Menths
Securod 16.38 12.07
Unsecured 10,026.59 12,548.39
Others
Sacured 34.41 119.67
Unsecured 18,868,78 34,424 18
26,46.17 47,105.31
Lass:Provisicn for Debts/Claims 2500 ;
28,921.17 47,105.31
Schedule IX
Cash & Bank Balances
Cash & Cheques In Hand Including Postage Imprast 143.75 29317
.‘Balances With Scheduled Banks
Current Accounts 28.06 32.37
Dividand Accounts{ Refer schedule XI) * 0.45 41.26
Fixed Deposit*™ 850.83 2,321.35
Margin Money 1.97 12.50
Employee Security Deposit-Fixed Deposit 34.51 32.72
Employge Securty Deposit-Saving Bank Account 3.20 1.07
1,072,717 2,734.45
** Pledged against Bank Guarantees,Letters of Credit and with _— e
Govt. Autharitles Rs.850.83 Lacs (Previous Year As.2,321.18 Lacs)
Schedule X
Loans & Advances (Notes 13 on scheduls XXN)
{Unsecurad and Consldared Good Unless Otherwlse Stated)
Advances Recoverable In Cash or in
kind or for vatue to be recelved in 3218.12 2611.10
Less: Provislon for Doubtful Advances 387.25 2830.87 367.56 2243.54
Intarast Acerued but not dug on Deposits 9.86 58,26
Balance With Central Excise Etc. 15.48 15.28
Security Deposits 454.23 475.7¢
3,310.44 2,792,867
Schedule X!
Current Llabilitles { Note 7 & 9 on schedule XXII)
Sundry Creditors .
i) Total outstanding duas of Small Scale Industrial
Undertakings 0.39 188
1} Total outstanding duas of Craditors Other Than
Small Scate Industrlal Undertakings 14,035.94 15,548.07
Deferred Income 2,026.61% 2,628.81
Advances from Customers 2,005.09 1,639.49
Other Liabiliies 3,098.16 2,759.44
Investors Education & Protection Fund
{Appropriate amount shall be transferred to “Invastor
Education and Protection Fund” If and when due)
- Unpaid Dividends {refer schadula iX)* 0.14 41.50
- Unpald Matured Debenture & Interest Due thereon - 13.15 13,29
Interest accruad but not due 3,680.44 4,377.13
* Undar reconciiiation 25,759.92 26,509.41



SWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED ISB\MAI.
chedule Xil As At 31.02.2005 As At 31.03.2004
As.in lacs
Provisions { ) (Rs.in lacs)
Gratuity 268.98 266.2
Leave With Wages 112,68 $50.69
Waalth Tax 9.45 17.97
Current Tax (Net of Advance Tax As.762.85 Lacs —Previous Year Rs.554,84 Lacs) 21167 319:68
602.76 “727.36
Schadule Xill For The Year For The Year
Ended on 31.03.2005 Ended on 31.3.2004
Prafit on Sale of Assets 0.37 7.62
Interast on Fixed Deposits - Gross (TDS Rs.22.72 Lacs 139.07 404.10
~Pravious Year Rs.30.75 Lacs)
Forelgn Exchange Fluctuation {Net) 50‘83 352.98
Misceltanaous Income 323. 756.08
Provision no longar required written back 28.80 568.81
553.14 2,189.59.
Schedule XIV
w ns ion
Opsning Stack 6,066.47 3,965.01
Add: Purchases 91,920.78 47,995.66
97.987.25 51,960.67
Less: Closing Stock 14,561.40 6,066.47
Schedule XV
facturing Ex
Steoras Consumed 5,406.84 - 5,272.20
Packing Matedal Consumed 3,388.67 2,565.43
Power & Fuel 32,765.78 25,066.27
Qthers 883.14 516.96
Hapairs ~ Buiiding 20.47 27.89
— Machinary 694.88 6§06.34
~ Others 45.81 112.48
43,205.59 34,167.57
Scheduls XVI
Employess’ Cost (Note 18 on schedule XXII)
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and other Allowancas 2,649.08 272113
Contribution o Provident Fund & Employaes State Insurance 151.57 144.81
Welfare Expenses 14B.16 151.53
2,948.81 3,017.47
Schedule XVII
Selling Expenses
Freight ,Handling and selling Expanses 12,808.35 11,692.94
Rebate & Discounts 287.24 471.83
13,095.59 12,164.77
Schedute XVII i
Finance Expenses
Interest - On Fixed Loans 15,152.37 17,910.45
- On Debentures 7.359.37 7.392.74
) ~ Qn Qthars 3,682.38 4,627.68
Bank Charges 853.49 342,76
27,047.61 30,273.63

24



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CISWAL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTESTQ THE ACCOUNTS

1) Significant Accounting Pollcies
a Accounting Convention

Schodule XIX For The Year For The Year
Ended on 31.03.2005 Ended on 31.3.2004
(Rs.In lacs) (Rs.in {acs)
Administration Expenses (Note 18 on schedule XXIlj
Rent 99.24 B8.72
Aates & Taxas 104,48 88.40
Insurance 794.96 775.29
Loss on Sale / Wrtteofl of Assats 793.58 842.09
Othar General Expansas 1,465.13 1,617.39
Pravislon for Obsolete Stora 178.48 -
Bad Debi/Advances Writtan Of/Provided 25.00 134.38
Miscallaneous Expenditure Written off 523.08 523.05
3,984.02 4,069.32
Schedula XX
Adjustment due to{lncrease)/Decroans in
fpanlng Stock
inished Goods 23,022.22 28,462.88
Work tn Prograss 3,626.42 1,653.26
26,648.64 30,116.14
Less : Closing Stock -
Finlshed Goods 25,403.36 23,022.22
Work In Progress 6,381.07 3,626.42
31,784.43 26,648.64
(5,135.79) 3,467.50
Schedule XXI
Other General Expanses 317.15 344.34
Miscellanaous Incoma {83.69) {1.16)
Rates & Taxes - 15.34
Depraciation 308N 41.71
Depreciation writtan Back {16.42) -
Interast - 3a09.20
525.35 709.43
SCHEDULE XX

Tha financial statements are prepared undar #islorical cost convantion on accrual basls in accordance with tha mandatory macounting standarcs reed with notes and ralevant
of tha C:

Azt, 1958,

b Flnd Assets arid Depracistion
Flxict Assots

Fixed aszms are staled el cost leas sccumulated depraciation. cw includas uhiincidental sxpendiiure ned of MODVAT/TENVAT wharever applicable.
Them.wmmumkumdalmummuml-mumm |1 thars 5 any indicetion of impaiment thareo! basad on sxtamal / imwmal factors. An impaimmant
Joss I3 reconisad whergver tha casrying emount of &N asset axceeds its recovarabie amourt, which reprasents the gradter of i 'net sailing price’ of asaets and their vatue in use’.

Depracistion
The Company provides for depraciation as fofllows:
1} Urou Division

Urea and Powar prants: Based

! s usetul lite, the Company I charging depreciation at & rate of 25% which Is higher than that providad

tachnical
in Schedule X1V 1o the Compariss Ast, 1958 on Written Down Vaiue (WOV) of the assats. The cthor assets are dapraciated on WIN basls attha ritas provided in Schedule

Xl tathe Companias Act, 1966,
] LDPE divislon

The assats oiher (nan plant and machinery (vahued &t lowor of net 1sallsatie vatue basis o cost) 4re depreciated on WOV basis at tha rates provided in Schacule XIY o the

Companios Act, 1958.
Iy  Di-Armwecnium Phouphate (DAP) Divislon

Process Plani & Machirary on Siraight Line HM(SLH) basts at thé rates proviced in Sct XV 1o thie G

par achnical gvatuation.

Merira material handling squi ingtalied on the leass

amonized avar the paricd of lkase.

fcable bo COMINUOUS PrOCESS plant as
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3

Pipas & fritkwgs, slectrical storage ranks on SLM basiy a1 the rates provided In XN 1o the C Act, 1038 J
plant & machinery oiher than continuous process plant.

Pailway sikiing at 20% par annum.
The othar assms ars depraciated o WDV bass at the mtes provided in Schedule Xi¥ 10 the Companies Act, 1950.
iv]  Othwr Divislona

OnSLMbnshur" p Schadule XIY to the Comp Act, 1958,
) Leasehold Pramiumimprovenent
L r o pr P Is belng i Crear the pariod of lease.

vi)  Capital Spares

Capitat $parss which can b usad only in connaction with an tem ol fixed asssts and whose use a3 Pef tachnical assassment i3 expoctad ta e noc-ragular are capltatised
and deprociztad over the balance usoful lves of the ralated plant and machinery.

Investmnts

:gml&mmmmmmmalmmmmjmu i nvalue of such i othar Y. Cument ars stwind ot lower of coel and
ir vatue. -

lventories

Rew metarals, components, finishad goods, work I prograss and stores & spares are vakuiad &t 0ost o nst valus, L1 valua of Ursa and OAP

is inclusiva of e Retenition Price Concession as notiflad by the Govermnmant of India. The basts of determining cost iofvlﬂoua catgorias of invenionios 1 as follows:

1} Slores and Spanes, Rew matsrialy anc Packing matsrials Weighted averige cost

Iy Wark in Progress end Finished Goods Malerial cost plus appropriate share of lebour and production ovechaads

Ravenue Recognition

Sains 419 recognised upon tha ranstar of significant risks and of P tothe Concassion onUrea under Group Pricing Schemn |s recognised ea per the

price notifiad by Govarnmant of India and is subjact 1o adjustment on finalizarion of ascalation ¢laim on Inputs ks and when Hotifed. Equeiad reipht on ured is racognised a3 noome
o its accrual. Concassion on DAP/NP is recognissd af rates notilied by Sovt. of India from timeta tima,

Incoma from investments and inensi wre neetnied for 60 accrual basis. Incoma/ loss from share i Assaciation of Persons (AQP) ls accounted 197 on recaipt of intition from
respactiva AGR.

Foreign Exchangs Transactions

Trarsactions in korskgn currency he @changa on tha dates of the ranaactions axcept br goods in ransdt and ralaled Labilties, which ara staied a1
he axchane rite pravailing al the year and. LLabuIity inrespact of imported materials remaining Unpaid are stated st (hs exchangs mies prevailng ai the yea: sod

lneucofFanwnrdExm-ngnc«mm:t; tha difference batween tha fomward rlumdh-mhangemomrnrm-dmmmumﬁzﬁumwﬂmtbn n the Profit &
Loas Account cver tha lile of the contract

3 Ratiremarts Benedits
[» 1o provident tund sch Is 0ad 1o the profil knd loss aocount a3 incurred. Liablity for gratuity and lave sncashment is provided on the basts of actuartal vauation
carriec oul at the year sxd.
h Borrowing Costs
Bomowing oosts altribytabi to tha Acquistion or ol qualifying assets are patof: ot il asset upto the clate when such azsets aro roady lor intended
use. Othar borrowing costs are eharged £3 un expens in tha year in which thiry ra incurmed.
L Taxstlon
Current tax Ia detarmined as tha amcunt oflax paynble v respoct of tuxable incoma for the perlod. Delerred tax is subject 1o iona of prydence. on timing
difazences, being tha difference botwesn Laxabie Ncome and accounting income that originats in one petiod and ara cazz-bl- of reveraal in one of more subsequant pericds.
J ' Deferred R
tha Company upta e cate of o il operations nos directy table to fixed assats is treated ns Dedemod Revenus
Ewonmlunm‘mmkmo#cmn pariod of threato five years.
k Provislon .
A provision i3 rocogrized when thi company hes a prosont # resull of past. 1t is probabe that an outfiow of rE5ource3 will ba requined 1o saitie such obligation,
In ra3pect cf which & rellable astimate can 56 made.
L Contingant Linbilities
Contingent liabilities are not provided 1or i the sccounts and are separately disclosad in the "Notes to Accounts”™,
amocund of Contricts I to be swecuied on capial account and nol provided for (nal of advances) Rs. 520.73 tace (Prwious Year R 725.25 lace).
(Rudn Lace)
Cortingant Liabilities not provided for in respect of Yoar snded Yaar snded
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004
{i a Land raforence cases fied by land owners for additonal [:2]: 13 480
compansation {excluding imenest)
B) Dispitec cosl of motor vahicla purchased 69.00 @mn
c) Elecu-lcwydutyoncuptwegeummn oipovm at Prraconp 1908.60 921.86
(pending for want
ik i ] In ¥ “,_ of Indusiries)
d) D#mancs/show causs notices recalved from Sales Tax dapartmant. 808 5 366985
a) D#mand racaivad for waler charges disputad by the company. 55344 30852
f Demand received for Entry Taxin Orissa 1048.08 5IT9
Q) Di ntin 1 disputed by tha Company. 1206.18 1C1846
h)  Custom Duty on Raw Material imparted for DAP Linit is subject Amount nat Amount not
Lo tnal assessmeant by tha Custom Authosities. : quantifizble Qquantifisbie
i} Import Peas Fea for impon of incusisfal alcohol in the Siate of Wast Bengal 285 4208
I Cthor claims againsi the Company not acknowiedped ks daity 197,68 145854
k) Guarantess issued by banks 125 om
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] With m view o ancourage sstting Lpof larkzer plants in the Country, the Gavemnent of Incta hins baan lolkwing 4. poliey of graunting the factity of duty free Import of plart #nd machinvery
recuired for setting up the fanilizer plants. Tha Company has imported I aqul for s4tting up fartiiizer plants at Shahjhanpur ang d has f i
L 1 L i lha time of o Ky Th lintifity, 7 anry, woukd ba i on final by customs Kuthgrities.

4} T Income Tix Deparimant has mised gross temands of As. 2763.31 Iacs for the assassimant yodrk 1891-92, 1995-98, 1998-03 10 2001-02, against which the provision of Rs. 1693 80 1scs
has bean made ag sl 31% March, 2005. Provision for amoynt of shortiall is nol Gonsidarad Nece3sary, kince after 314 March, 2005, retia? amountieg 1o Ra. 1617.00 lacs has been gramied in
conein cases on the basis of iched in favourof the y

$) (8] investments (Schedule V) include quity shares in Oswal Agro Mills Lim ted [QAML) Amounting to Ris. 4,884 85 lacs. The shares of OAML ware not Guoled during the yoar wid marks)
vakuo of thedd Ivesiments ua ot March. 31, 2004 was Rs. 120,70 tacs. However, the market vatue of the propanty finvesimants hald by DAML i3 significanily higher than thair cost
andtharelara tha break up value of these oquity shares is higher than the cost of Soquiadion pf such shares. Tha diminution I vaiue of this investmant is considered tempomry are
nocordingly no provision Is tonsidersd necaseary in this regard.

(b} Thashares of CAML and Naghville invastment and Treding Ce. Lid. wete not quoted ¢! irng tha yser Morket valud of quoled investments a1 the clyse of the yoar cannot
be. {Provious Year Re.124.50 laca).

8  Adownward revition in felention prics for 7 and B pricing periods anded on March 31, 2003 was notfied by thi Gevemmen of India (301 vida notification dated September 13, 2002 and
April 10, 2002 dus to 4 of pollcy rasuting in & redund e an sstimated mricunt of B3, 21,788.92 lacs{Pravious Year Aa, 21768.92 acs). Tha Company has sarlier
Fikodd & wik pdtition egaimst the GO! bators the Horble Dami High Court contesting the basis adoptod for cakculation of retontion pricaand obtained a stay againss the racovery fom the Hom'ble
Dalhi High Court and hes accordingly not provided for tha ajorasaid refund. Tha Compary has besn legally advisod that there will nat e Ry material fabity on the Compary,

7} Asperinformislion avalisbie with the Compary, tolal outstanding dues to Small Scale Industria) Underakings (Schedute ) inchude Ws. H. Gury rigs, whoss cuas ara o ing
for more than 30 days.
{Ra.in Lacs)
)] Salga Inchede ; Your snded Yoar endad
March 31, 2005 March 31, 2004
Conceaskon on Unse (Including Armears for Esrlior Yoars Ry, 634.48 lacs— 2743025 2542004
’ Provious Year Ra. 2534.17 lecs).
Equated Fraight on Ures finchuding armears lor Pravicus Years Als. 337.63 facs — 7450 366352
Provious Yoar Ra. NIL).
Conggasion on CAP/NP 2083204 14287 72
-] a} Tha & a2 o! cartain lers and dablory of DAP division o conth ion. A H any, arising trom these eosrcises will
b foron h of the %
0)  Arsconciiation exsrciss s boing camed out for the Intorest prysble o erstwhile h . Pending 1citlation, tha company hae paid Ay, 0.1538ce
{pravicus year Ry, 250.07 aca) durieg the year o certain cabentum hokdars based on chiims recetvad from them,
¢} The oompany hay fled legal cases aguinst dablony of Rs. 175,27 Gcs ko recovery of 9 N gainat e beon considarsd Necessary, sincs inthe
opinion of thy thiese debts

16} Pro-cporative pxpendiiure Ingurredl on DAF Division and not aitributeoke o By oonsiruction activity is bakg whitten off ever 8 period of 5 years trem e date of comnoccias production Le.
1% Aprl, 2001 a5 por dMails given bakow:

Yoar snded Yoar anded

Warch 31, 2008 March 31, 2004

Bance brought torward 104811 1569.18
Liag ; Writien off duing the year 52305 523.08

Total [ o1t

11)  Directors' Remunaration: -
Satary & allowances ‘ 5400 5400
Contribution to Providen: Fund [T 848
Parquistes 478 23
Siting Fees 2m 280

Totsl o 11551
Notes : (n) me;ﬂshmmwh:uzm“mwbmmamamhmmup-rm'h--- E ployad ¢ not avallthie ad therefore haviy

{©)  The abows remunaration ofhar than sitting fes is subjeet ta approvat of Centra! Govermnmam.

12)  The Company is s mombarat (I} Shanenjuls Syndicete, Bombay, (1) Sagar Corporation, Bombay {ll) Unteersa! i Bombey baing Atsottationa of Persons (AQPs) end i
anttied 10 BE%, 5% and 01% share of profiioss raspoctivaly. The fotd] amount ivested in thass AOP's is Ay .57 lacy {Previous Year Re.9.57 Lacs). The share of loxs trom these ADPy,
e tha year snded 31.3.2008 emounting (o s 0.57 nce (Previous Yaar Profit fis. 0.5 lacs) his Bisn accounied kor In the Company’s books.

(R, In Lacs)
Asml Asmt
March 31, 2003 Nprch 37, 2004
13} Lown Advances as ghn in Scheduls X includs:

Maxdmumh Amount dus from Cirectars nd Secrstary 1 any time during the year o 1.58

14)  Auttors’ Remunersiion: .
Augtll Faa 20 210
Coniication work ac Ll
Other Sarvices am 200
O of Pocka! Expansai (Including senvios tax) L¥a] L

15)  The emount of U.F Tada Taxon Urea solscted during the pariod 1.3.2004 10 20,2. 2005 amourtting 1o Rs. 1254.00 tacs (Previous Year Ra. 11B0.18 1acs) has bean cormedad g Interast
Frow Loan ay por Agreemen sxpcuted with Tha Pradeshi industrial § | & of Lhiar Pridesh Limiad [FICUR). The said ioan s répayable o the sxpiry of five years
Troemishe year of collection, The LR Trade Tax ocdected in March, 2008 amounting 1o Ra. 12.44 lacs {Pravigus Ysar R, 17.78 tacs). pending corvarsion into'Interest Frea Losn’ iy
incluced under the head *Current Liatilties".

18)  Tho Company has racognised Detrred Tax Assat of Ry, 44752,08 lacs, which Is anly tothe sxant of Deforrad Tax labillies. The gafrred tax asset on oher accumulatad losses ang

haa nat been in view of due to the fact that as at 31.3.2005 vinuar cortainty of availioiity of $ufficient futura taxsbie ioome i$ ot e,
1T Tha Company and cther consumers of naturs! Gas on the HBJ piceline v been informed by Gas Authortty of tndla Lt that prices of natural gas ding tuppiied ¢ tha Company may ba
10vised w81 1.4.2000. Therm is wlao & poaxibility of vy of wecise &) ™

Y ey of these fiabikties i unasceriainiable and additionat costs, iF any,
ae 1o the Compeny by the O o Indle undar ratention price schame for Line,

7




OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED CIEWAL
18)  Employ t X¥l) and Admint [t X1%) are net o Ps. 125,24 Lacs {Pravious Yees Fis 248,43 L2cs) being astimatod amount of mpenges incurrad
on bahall of a group which have Wy been rai to tha Company.

15)  Financiad tnstitutions have an option toconverta part of ihalr ism loans/debartures/prefgrénce sharad {9t ba issued as given in notes 20(a)(T} & 20{b) ) below) ameunting to Ain. 30225.70
{a0s {Provious Yaar Rs, 3471141 lecs] inle equity sharas of the Company at Aty tima during the currancy of lpan, Addilionally, Financialinstitulions also have & right 1o corvest e loans’

wea shases (yat 1o be isuec as given i nota 20(b) (i} Rs. 134720 40 lacS (Provious Yaar Rs. 128064, 35 acy) into aquily shares in the avent ol detauk
fvg Joarn

25 St inthe
20 a In Augus! 2003, & Debt Restructuring Scheme for secured loans, of DAP Division of the Company was approvad by the Corpocats Debl Restrueturing Call and afl landers, other
than Lnit Trust of Indin. subject to cormpliance of certain 1arms and conditions which inter-gla incluge the folkewing:
[ lpsua o 2ara Paronnt Optkenally Convanible Profereds Staies {OCPS) a8 COMpansation for o iiteres) ressh {or tha i 1enure citerms Yoans by na Fruncisl Insitons
Barks estimated 10 be Rs. 10.651 lacs). Pending of the amaur! from respective lenders, the T has provided for s, 4304.78 s (previous year As. 2160
Kars}. baing ihe net prisent vake 43 on 1% AprE, 2003 of tha ameunt of intersst reduction {ov the yoars ended 31" March, 2004 and 31 March, 2005 required to be compansaled
In the above manner. Pengding issua of Preference Sharay, thi amount has baen inakidect undar ‘Amount pending atlotment’ ediustment against preferonce ehares’ {Sohodulal),
i The imveresttunded by thelanders in terms of Delx Restructuring Schamaas baen corvorted into Fundad Interest Term Loan (FITL). A sum ot Rs. 7622.89 lacs {Previous
yaar Rs. 1256999 lacs) eanveriad into FITL during the year |s pending confimation/raconcillation.

b} InApeil 2005, the COR Call has approved certain modificalions to ha existing Dabt ing Schoms. Thase dicatlons provide lor amcog othar raliefs, reduction In ratea
of mterast on lonoe, k [ e, Thar sceounia for mmm-@sm\mbmurmmanm‘oua‘mmnmsamwm::anmsumunmcmcwm\shw
#0ma lenders ard yat to be rocaived. In terms of the said modificalions:

0 50% of Fundsd Inlgrest Tarm Loan (FITL) aggregating Re. 228 crores is o be converted into Optionatly C. Cumulative f . Sharss (OCCRPS}
with & coupon rata of 0.01 % p.a. Panding reconziiation of emount of FITL t ba corvestad ke QCCRPS, S0% ol the FITL balancs ason 31.03.2006 aounting o Rie. 2050080
lacs has bean included under ‘Amount panding i M agalnst | shemmd’ (Schedule 1)

in The coupon rate of 10%, 2,40,00,000 F Non Cumulal wlarence Shares of Hs 100 each, has bosn brought down hom 10%100.01% w.e.l. 1.4.2004 and the

acamption pariod has bean gxiandad Fom 15 yokrs 1020 years Rom the dala of isspe . 219 Octobay, 2001, Howevar, thess chanpes ird su
in i aosuing Annwal Casvera Meoting.
i) Intarest during the year fas been recognized s por modification to COR package. which has resulted in ntarast provision for Iha yaar belng lowar by Ra. 7072.23 lacs. .
21)  Unil Trust of India (UTI) is ol & participant in the Debt Restructuring Schema and has filad an application for recovery in Debt Ancovery Tribunal (DFRT) agans the compeny. The
haw filed & p#iition w's 3681 of the Companies Act, 1958 bidom Hon'lia Abshabed High Counl. Vida ane of its orders Honlkle High Count. has o the BAT Hom pRSEING tevf
rOeT in raspact of tha interimyfingl reliel prayed 1or by UT1. The 3410 restrainl s sLill atigctive. Rsdemption of debentures of As. 211523 Iace (Pravious Yaar As. 705,08 Inca) and intarest
hergon amounting io Rs. 4996.65 lacs (Previous Year F3. 2791.32 lacs) is dus a3 on 31 .3.2005.

22y Eaming Par Share (EFS) and D insLors U | d diluted earnings per share;
Yaur srided Mprch 31,2005 Year anded March 31, 2004
Loss ansibusabla to Equity Shareholders (Ra.) {A) 3126276968 283.38.02812
Baslc/Waightod svers1a of Equity Sharms outsianding during ihe year (8] BHM K 245008.159
Nominal Value of Equity Sharas (Rs.) 10 0
Basic/Diluted Eaming per share (Re.) (AW(B} (1247 (11.03)

Note: Nong 0f the potential equity shares have diluthe sftectin view of loss during the currani year.
23)  Rolated Porty Disclosures
(A}  Refaied parties and izansaclions wiih tham ag idontiflod by tha management are given balow:
(a)  Major Sharshokiary

Mr. Abhay Oswal th refzth d other 7 s 54.21% shares of the Company.
(b)  KeyManagemam Parsonnel and their rg:atives:
Mr. Anll Bhalla

Wi, Fan|an Snarma
Mrs. Pooram Sharma (Wits of Mr. Ranian Shama)
Mrs. Pratibha Bralls (Wife of Mr. Anli Bhatla)
Mr. Atul Bralla {San of Mr. Anil Bhelln)
{t)  Entorprissa Ovat which Mejor 5* 1, Koy ersonnel nnd thaiz relalives hava signiicant miluence::
Oswal Agro Milla Limitad, Star Advantising Pvt. Limited and Aruns Adhay Oswal Trust, Lucky Star Entarusinmant Limited, Atu) Propriies Limited.
{dy  Enterprises undor tha control ¢f the Compeny.
Snanenjum Syndicaie {Associaion oi Persons)
Seger Corporation (Association of Pargons)
Uiniversat Associates (Association of Persons)
(B} Trensaclions with Fiakitad Partas in tha ordinary course of business.

Foflnkhs
Typa of Relationahip Nature of Trontsactions Yaluma of Transactions
200403 200304
a) Major Sharehoidors Managarial Remungraikn e ¥
b} Key Managoment
Parsonnal & thal: relativey Managarial Asmunaration o5 TT45
Rant paid 18.00 1060
c) Entarprises over which major Renl paid A0 12
shargholdars and key Managemen Senvices svalied o781 490
P sonnsl havs significant infuance PayPhems mate Dy TompaTy on et et 138.40 181
Thalr shere of common ¢xpensss 12524 249.45
Funds Rocehid by Company a0 135
Payments received by Comparry on Lheir pehall am [+1:-]
Paymenis mada on Gehalf o Company a4 1168
Paymeniis mcahed by others on bahetf of Company n0 Q00
3] Entarprisen uncies the control of Proit/(Losa) of AOPs 0.57) 1.3
TwCompany
L] Entamprises ovar which major sharshaldars
have significantinfuence - Invastmants. . 453438 488485
- Aacalvatris fies) k-
-Payabls 47 ace
Enterprizes under the control of -
the Company = Invasiments o057 057
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24)

25)
26)

28
€

The Campeny is cpenating maklly under a singl |a. Fortlizers”, p A Urea and T ium phosphate. Atthough m-Cmnpmyhnsmminmhar units which ara closed,
Iha vela of assals and labilties of these unnl Is not significant and tharetore thers i u NG reportable segmant in lems of the provisions of AS 17 ‘Sngmlm Reporiing” issued bry Iha |l15"1u|ﬂj
of Chartersd Accountants of indis,

No amount has besn d o D R ption Reserve in visw of losses during tha year.
Although the DAP planl has bsen incurring cagh losses, ctial takan by tha by way ok
a) g the neoded 10 achive desqn capacity of the Individ based on ns of the study carried out by Projacts &

Dnvclopmant Indla Lid. [ PDILY Dl'l \houpcclty utllizalion of the DAP complex,
by increasing the market share,
c) rastruciuring tha long term (cans wnd
o reducingthe intarast cost.

Accordingly, tha acoounts have been prepansd an a gaing concern batls,

Basad on tha sstimate cash fow projecticns on managsment's bast astimate of the set of sconomic conditions that will xist ovar th ing usefulllfe of e assats itted and Rpproved
by Financhal Institutions / Banks, e value in use of fixad assets of DA plant is nigher than Its carrying valua ns at 31.3.2005 and hance no provision tor impeimment is dsemod necessary
a3 el 31.3.2005.

Pravious year's ligures have been ra-groupad/re-armanged wheraver necassary Lo conform to the current year's pressntation.
Additionat Information required under para 3 & 4 of Partll of Schedula ¥) of tha Companias Act, 1958 is as follows -

A PARTICULARS OF LICENCED/REGISTEREDANSTALLED ANNUAL CAPACITIES/PRODUCTION

Licgnood( Capeciy Installec Capacity # Production
As Ay As At As At Ay At Forthe Forkhe
year anded ‘yaar ended
Clazs of Goods unit 31.032005 31.03.2004 31.03.2008 31.00.2004 022006 51.05.2004.
AMMONIA MT 135002y 13530ay 13500y 1350Dary 406562 400 454508.800
UREA . MT 2200/Cay 2200Day 2200y 2200May 861081550 57802 150
DAP MT 1500000 A M 1500000/ Annum 1500000ANLmM 1500000 AnNUM 578910495 2R0624.205
MT 420000 Annum 420000 Anruan 4200007 Annun 4200000ANum 27141.260 47530700
LOW DENSITY POLYETHYLENE MT 16367 15367 13000 13000 - -
SOLYENT EXTRACTION PLANT MT 0000 90000 20000 50000 - -

#The Inslalid capacitios have baen taken ds cartifisd by the Technicai heads of tha raspective Plarts and not verified by the Auditars, being 4 tachnical matter.

B PARTICULARS OF SALE §

For the ysar snded 31.03.2005 For tha ysar encied 31.03.2004

Claxs of Goods Unlt CQuanthy LY Quantity Yalus
. {PE.in ‘acs) . {Rs.In lacy)

UREA MT BAT22T A4S0 7103358 S22 550 Fo0e7.080
DAP MT 595460.800 8172308 BIT46.010 402332
NP MT AEIETA L 125048 AN0200 2082 43
GYRSUM N MT 14789680 3451 STRA060 1057
154058.51 12008426

§ Salea axchidns wasiages enc losses.
[+ OPENING AND CLOSING STOCKS OF GOODS PRODUCED
Az at31.03.2005 Aswt 31.03.2004 As 8t 31.03.2003

Class of Goods Unit Quentity Vatue Quantity Value Quantity Valye
{As.in lacs) {Re.In lacs) (Re.In lacs)

UREA MT SamR e 591274 B7H515 Lali:Xil 167060 506280
DAR MT 1212406682 1664580 120611.158 1711242 2P0 65 2250108
NP MT 30448650 204502 16447.550 W00 - -
e _ B0z .2

D RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED )

For the year snded 31.03.2005 For the year snded ¥1.03.2004

Clags of Gaors Unh Qoamity Value Quantity Value
{Ru.inlace} {Ax.in lacs)

NATURAL GAS Millian SM 3 34097 16760, 6 o4 1408278
ROGK PHOSPHATE MT 113245892 ALEER 57724455 1361974
AMMONIA MY 15517264 21807086 8198412 nasesr
SlLPHUR MT- 10653 1433620 TR 674067
SULPHURIC ACID MT - oo - -

CTHERS - 205 - 8934
_boezsts _ASMA20
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E  OTHER ADINTIOMAL INFORMATION

For the year For the yoar
Vol Valve
(Rs. In lacs) (R. In nce}
{a)  GIF VALUE OF IMPORT
RAW MATERIAL 0048 3116388
COMPCNENTS & SPAAE PARTS 218 o m
CARTAL GOODS 820 71750
T0zTeT ey
()  EXPENDITURE IN FQREIGN GURRENCY
ON TEGHNICAL KNOWHOW 5480 ek
NAPHTHA 000 73420
INTEREST 280 1080
OTHER MATTERS 12679 10822
19082 TMATS
F VALUE OF (MPQRTEDANGYGENQUS RAW MATERIAL, SPARE PARTS, COMPONENRTS AND STORES CONSUMED
" ForthsYenr endeq1.08,2008 Forthe Yo endd 31,03.2004
CLASS OF GOODS Valus % Value »
(Ra.in lace) {Re.in lacs)
RAW MATERIALS
INDIGENDUS 1701382 1417213 nee
IMPORTED [ Tzt 6212
B854 WO00 | ASBM20 10000
STORES, SPARES PARTS & COMPONENTS
INDIGENOUS 245 TR flc.\-] [ 1: ]
IMPORTED 1186.84 2158 102960 1908
! S405.04 0000 540815 10000
Signature 1o Schedules | o3I For and con bahalf of tha board
H.K.Gupta SPAmvya Anil Bhalta Ranjan Sharma Abhey Oswal
Company GM (Finance) Director - Finance Chalrman & Managing
Saecretary Director Diractor

Placa: New Dslhl
Date: 30th June,2005
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CISWAL

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE AS PER
PART IV OF THE SCHEDULE VI TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Ragistration Detalls

Registration No, ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

" State Code

Balance Sheet Date E_J1_I DJ_I_:']] 2j]ofo s

Date Month

Capita! Raised during the Year {Amount In Rs. thousands)

Public issue

CT-Infel-)-]

Bonus |ssue

CLINDel-1-]

Right Issus
CLInfofef-1-]
Private Placement

CLInDI- -]

Position of Mobillsation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. thousands)

Total Liabilitias
lelzls [ [s[713]

Sources of Funds
Pald up Capital

[FTeTelelels]o]
Secured Loans
[2TsTs]sle]aj2]2]

Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets

ELlsle e e]7]
Nat Current Assets

[ Left]z]o]efefe)

Total Assets

FEE e

Raserves & Surplus

[fe]se[=Tefe] 7]

Invastments

[(Te]slejsf2]5]

Misc. Expenditure

[T Is]e[2]ols]

Performance of the Company (Amount in Ra. thousands)

Turnovar
[CTe]efefofe] 8] 5]
Profit Before Tax

[ol e[ TaTef2]7] 6§

Earning per Share (As.)

LT folsfe]-T1]7]

Total Expenditura
(TeTsTef7] ] ¢l

Profit After Tax

[ofe]+T2]s [2]7 s |

Dlividend Rate%

CL-Infe el 1-1

Generlc Names of Three Principat Producta / Servicea of the Company

ltem Coda No. {(ITC Code)
DOBNDENDEN
el [ Le[e o]
GleE s e e e]
Grelsi e[ s+ Teo]0]

Pruduct Description
(uIrlefal T [ ]
[ATmIw[o[n] 1 A]
(efafeT T T [°}
(NPT T T T T

3’



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CSWAL

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE
BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS OF OSWAL
CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED ON
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF OSWAL CHEMICALS &

FERTILIZERS LIMITED AND

ITS

SUBSIDIARIES

1.

We have audlted the attached
Consolidatad Balance Sheet of Qswal
Chemicals & Fentilizers Limited {The
Company') and its subsidiaries as at
March 31, 2005, the Consoiidated Profit
ant Loss Account for tne year ended
on that date annexed therato and the
Constlidated Cash Flow Statement for
the year endad on that date (herginaiter
refarred to' as\'Consolidated Financial
Statements'), which we have signad
under reterencas o tnis report. Thesa
consolidated financial statemenis are
the responsibility of the Company's
management; our respensioility s to
axprass a&n opinion on these
consolidatad firancial stalements
based on our audi,

We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally
accepted in India. Those Standards
raguire that we plan and parform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whather the financia! statements
ara prepared, in all matarial respects,
in accordance with an identified
financia? reporling framawork and are
free of material misstatement, An audii
includas examining, ch & test basis,
evidance suppaorting the amounts and
diselosures in the financial statements.
An audit also Includes assessing the
accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by
managament, as welt as avaluating the
ovarall financlal statament presentation.
Wa believe that our audit provides a
reascnable basis for our opinien.

Wa did not audit the financlal stataments
of the subsidiaries, whose financial
stataments reflect total assats of As.
97.68 lacs {Previous year Rs. 105.79
lacs} as 8t 31st March, 2005 and total
rgvenuas of fis.1.48 lacs (pravious
year Rs. 2.65 lacs) for the year gnded
on that date. These financial
statermants hava baan auditad by other
auditors whosa’ reports have bean
furnishad to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relatas to the amounts
included in respect of these
subsidiaries, |s based solaly on the
report of tha athar auditars. Howaver,
appropriate material adjustmants for
the current year, to the axtant
ascartainabkle hava been mads to
financlal stataments of the subsidiaries
to bring them infine with 1he accounting

(a)

(b)

(c)

5.

-

52

5.3

golicies followed by the parent
company.

Wao report that the Consolidated
Financial Statements have been
prepared by the company in
accordance with the Accounting
Standard 21, Consolidated Financial
Statements, issuad by tha Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and on
the basis of separate audit Financial
Staterants of Oswal Chemicals &
Fertilizers Limited and its subsidiaries,
includad in 1he Consolidated Financial
Statemants.

On the basis of the information ard
axplanations given {o us and on
consideration of the separate audit
reports on Individual audited Financial
Siataments of Oswal Chamicals &
Fertilizers Limited and s subsidiarles,
in our opinion, tha Consalidated
Financial Statamants together with the
notes theraon and attached thereto
read with note 25 on scheduls XXi
regarding the preparation of these
Accounis on a going concern DASIs,
and subject to our commants In
paragraphs 5.1 lo 5.6 below, glve
respectively. a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting
principles generaily accepted in India:

in the case of tha Consolidated Balance
Shest, of the Consolidated state of
aflairs of Oswal Chamicals & Fertilizers
Limited and its subsidiaries as at March
at, 2005,

in the case of the Consolidated Profit
and Loss Account, of the consolidated
results of operations of Oswal
Chemicals & Fartilizers Limited and its
subsidiaries for the year ended on that
date; and

in the case of Consalidatad Cash Flow
Statement, of the Caonsolidated cash
flows of Oswal Chamicals & Fartilizers
Limied and its subsidiaries for the year
andad on that date.

Nete no. 8 (¢} on schedule XX
regarding non provision of dabiors
amounting lo As. 175.27 lacs against
whom legal cases have bean filed by
the company for the rpasons stated
therain.

Note 9 (a) & {b) on gchadule XX
ragarding non-reconciliation of
acvounts of certain suppliers of DAP
division, and interast payable to
arstwhila debanture/ bond holders and
payments made to them based on thair
claims.

Nota 7 on schedule XX regarding non-
provisian of subsidy refund due to
downward ravision of ratention price

32

54

5.5

5.8

contested by the Company. the
recovery of which has been stayed by
tha Honble Dethi High Court,
astimatst to be As. 21,768.92 iacs,
the ultimatea liability of which cowld not
ba roadily ascertained.

Notg 19 of schedula XXl regarding
issuance of prefersnce shares as al
31.3.2005 for Rs. 24805.58 lacs
(Pravious Year Rs. 2185.95 lacs} and
conversion of Intargst into funded
intarast term loan amounting to Rs.
7622.89 lacs during the year, As.
21166.54 lags as at 31.03.2005
(pravious Year Rs. 1256999 lacs)
pursuant to a Debt Rastructuring
Scheme for secured loans of DAP
division as apgroved by the Corporatg
Dabt Restructuring Call being subject,

o reconciliation/confirmation by rhe.
tendars. Further accounting of
modifications of CDR package
sanctionad in April, 2005 relaling to
relief, reduction in rate of interost
resulting in lowar intarest provision
during the year of Rs. 7072.23 iacs,
deferment of payment of instalmant
etc. in the accounts as at 31.03.2005
is panding approval from rospeciiva
authorities of tha landars.

Nota no. 20 regarding non redemptiorn
of dabentures of Unit Trust of Indla ont
due dates of Rs. 215,23 {acs Bnd non
payment of interest thereon amounting
¢ RAs, 4998,65 lacs.

Nota 11{b) of Schedule XX regarding
managenal remunaration amounting to
Rs. 108.11 lacs paid to directors, baing
subject lo approval of Central
Govarnmant.

We further report that without
considering oeur comments in
paragraphs 5.2 to 5.5 above, the impact
of which we are unable to quantify ard
after considaring edjustments arising
on account of our comments in
paragraphs 5.1 above, to the extent
quantifiable, would result in the loss
bafore tax of As 31418.87 lacs as
against Hs.31243.60 lacs as shown in
the Profit and L0ss Account.
Consequently, nel current assets would
change to As. §1229.62 lacs as against
Rs. 61404.89 lacs and debit balance
in profit and loss account would
change to Rs. 80274.78 lacs as against
Rs. 8B09Y.51 lacs as shown in the
Balance Shoet.

for T.R. Chadha & Co.
Chartersd Accountants

Prace: New Darhi {Kapil Kadar)
Dated: 27% July, 2005 Partnar
M. No.- 094902



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CISWAL,

Consolidated Balance Sheet As At 31st March, 2005

Particulars Schedule No. As At 31.03.2005 As At 31.03.2004
{Rs.in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs)
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
Capitat 1 74,486.50 51,866.83
Reserves & Surpius 1l 54,662.84 54 662.84
129,148.34 108,528.67
Minority Interast 2.86 1.06
Secured Loans 1l 235,503.22 249,036.02
Unsacurad Loan-Long Term Fram Othars 92.57 9315
235,5695.79 249,129.17
364,747.99 355,659.89
" —_ ==
xod Assets v
ross Block 369,134.16 369,661.18
Less: Depreclatian 164,273.37 147.615.53
Net Black 204.854.79 222 04565
Capital Work In Progress 4,977.08 6,072.65
209,831.87 228,118.30
Investmeants v 4,888.66 4,970.67
Deferrod Tax Asset {net) | - -
{Nota 15 on Schagdula XXI1)
Currant Assets, Loans & Advances
Invantories Vil 54,358.10 3%,661.82
Sundry Jabtors Vi 29,003.73 47,105.35
Cash & Bank Balances X 1.077.89 2.740.20
Loans & Advances X 3,317.94 2,800.37
87,762.75 92,307.75
Leas:Current Liabllities & Provisions
Current Liabilitias X 25,759.99 26,909.57
Provisians Xl 602.87 727.47
28,362.88 27,637.04
Net Current Assets £1,404.89 64,670.71
Miscellaneous Expenditure
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
Delterred Revenus Expenditure 523.06 1.046.11
(Nata 10 on schedula XXII)
Profit & Loss Acoount 88,099.51 56,854.10
364,747.99 355,659.89
Significant Accounting Policies and .
Notes to the Consolidatad Accounts XX
This i the Consalidated Batance Shaet Tha schedules referred to above form an integral
rgferred to in our raport of aven date Part of the Consofidated Balance Shaet
For and on bshalt of the board
Kapil Kedar H.K.Gupfa S P Arya AnilBhafla  Ranjan Sharma Abhay Oswal
Partner Cornpany GM (Finance) Director Finance Chairman & Managing
Membership No.094802 Secratary : . Director Oiractor

For and on Behalf of
T.R.CHADHA & CO.
Charfered Accountants

Place: New Dalhi
Date: 27th July,2005
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Consolidated Profit & Loss Account For The Year Ended 31st March, 2005

PARTICULARS Schedule No. Faor The Year For The Year
Ended on 31.03.200§ Ended on 31.3.2004
{Rs.in Lacs) {Rs.\n Lacs)
Income
Salas (Note B on schedule XXIT} 154,055.51 120,884.36
Othar Income X 573.85 2,191.59
154,629.36 123,075.95
Raw Matertal Consumption XIv 83,425,85 45,884.20
QOther Manufacturing Experises Xv 43,205.59 34,167.57
Employeas’ Cost byl 2,949.20 3,018.25
Selling Expensas Xvil 13,085,59 12,164.77
Finance Expenses xvlL 2704765 30,278.94
Depraciation 16,774.38 17.545.0.
Administration Expenses b O 3,985.14 4,070.30
Adjustmenis due to {increase)/Dacreasea in
Stock of Finished Goods and Work In Progress XX (5,135.79) 3,467.50
185,347.54 150,606.54
Loss bafora Prior Pgriod Adjustmants and Taxation (30,718.25) (27.530.59)
Prier Period Adjustments XX 52535 709.43
Loss before Tax Expanse (31,243.60) {28,240.02)
- Detarrad Tax Asset {Net ) of earfier year wiittan off - 101.96
Loss after Tax Expanse {31,243.60) {28.341.98)
Less:Minerity Intergst (1.81) 0.43
{31,245.41) {28,341,55)
Loss brought forward from Previous Year {56.854.10) (28,512.55)
Balance Carrled to Balance Shest (868,099.51) (56,854.10)
Earning Per Share {Nominal value of Rs.1D each)
Basic / Diluted {Note 21 on Schedule XXII) (Rs.) (12.17) {11.04)
Significant Accounting Policles and
Notes to the Consolidated Accounts XXM
This is the Consolidated Profit & Loss Account Tne schedules referred to abave form an infegral
referred 1o in our raport of even date Part of the Consolidated Prafit & loss account
For and on behalf of the board
Kapit Kedar H.K.Gupta S P Aya AniiBhalla  Ranjan Sharma Aphey Dswal
Partner Company GM {Finance) Diractor Finarce Chairman & Managing
Membership Ne.084902 Sacratary Director Director
Far and on Behalf of

T.R.CHADHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Ptace: New Dethi

Date: 27th July,2005



'OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED CiISWAL
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FORTHE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2005

Yarr Ended Yaar Enced
March 31.200% March 31,2004
Amouwnt (Rs. inLacs} Amourt (Re.in Lacs}
A CASHFLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Nat ioss before tax. {31,243.80) (28,240.02)
Adfushinants tor:
Depraciation 17.066.24 17,588.72
Financa Expsnss 27.047.85 30,562 .90
Inlorest Incoma (13907 {404.10)
{ProlijiLoss on wslewrite ofl of Fixed AssalnCWIP ™2 B34.47
Dutarad revenua axpenditia winen off 522.05 523.05
Lose/{Profith on salatwrile off ol Invastment 19.22) 112.54
Liability no longar raquired wriltan back (28 60) (668.91)
v Foreign F {1.28) {65.95)
Pravisiontwrile off lor bad & doubthul dabts/advances 4469 134.38
Provision lor Gratulty & Leave Encashment {8.07) - 88.64
Provisian tof Invantory for obsolales damaged stock 178.48 -
Priar Parod Expensesi{incoma) (Nal) 28346 358.52
Waalth Tax Provislon am 17.97
QOparating proft bufors working capital changes. 14,460.50 20,860.24
Adjusiments for chengaes in working caplial :
. - {IncreaselMacreasa in Sundry Detilors 18,066 63 {7a7.09)
- {Incranse¥Dacrenss in Cther Ascubvabiey {567.93) 1,186.62
- (IncreasayDecraas In Invenlorisy (14,874.85) 72884
- Increass/{ Dacreass) in Trade and Other Peyables. (381.31) 4.940.72
« Incranse/{Dacrans®) i Nat Currant Assaby 3,112.54 £D88.09
Cash penantied from operstions. 18,673.04 26929.33
- Prior Parod (Expensesiincoms (Nat) {233.46) (360.52)
- Wnallh Tax Pakt 0.00 {4.70)
- Tews Refund /Paymant (76200 (256.68)
Net cash from oparating activities 18,363.20 2630923
B.  Cashflow rom Investing activitles: '
Furchase of fixed mssehy (300.12) {3,445.75)
Proceads Irgm Sala/rstum of fesd a33613/Capilal work [n progress. 72703 IBL08
(PurchasaySehe of Invedtmants 91.34 106.74
ntareat Receved {Aevenus} 156574 379.09
Nl cash ysed Inffeom 758 (2.593.88)
[ Cash flow from finanging activitiss:
Proceads Irom unsecurad loans - 525
Proceads from long lam bormwings. 1,260.91 1,858.95
Repayments of long berm borrawings (5.248.88) {12,511.53)
Procesds { Jtrem shor tamm » credil 13,0122} 14,880.78)
Finance Expensy Pald [11,678.06) (7,32020)
Divicnt Pald 41,96} @21
Net cash used In financing sctivities {13,699.50) (23.050.52)
it inCash & Ci {1.862.31} §64.92
Cash and caah squivatents sa st 31.02.2004 2,740.20 2,075.24
Cashand Bank batances 2,740.20 207520
Cash snd cash #quivalents s v 31.03.200% 147708 2,740.20
Cashand Bank balances 1,077.83 2,740.20

Notes :

1 The above Cash flow stalameni his baan prepared under the Indirect mathod aelout in AS-3 issued by the Insitute of Chartered Accouniants of Indla.

2 Flguras In brackals Indicala cash outgo.

a Cash and cash equivalents Includes batances with the schaculed bank undar dividend pryabla accounts Rs. 0.45 {Provious Yoar Rs, 41.26 laca} and Ais 850.83 { Pravious Year Ry. 232118
laca.)agains the mangin manay lor Latier of Cradit \Bank quarantess and Ra.27.71 lacs{ Previous Yaar 33.79 lacs) agalnsi the Sacurity deposit recaived from smploysss which &t nol svailable
or uss by the Company

] Following non cash Iransactions hava nal baen considerad In he cash How statament,

Tax daducied al source {on Income) As.31.72 Lacs { Previous Year As 30.75 Lacs)

6 Leng larm borrowings amaunting to Ry, 24,805.58 have baen Amount Pending ) agalnstF Shara Capital {Flelar Note 20{a)(ijand 26(h}(0)
[ Pravious year's ligures heve baen re-groupsd/ g wherdver to conform to year’
This s the Cash Flow rafared to In our mpart of aven date. Natas Lo accounts {Schedules XX11) larms on Integrad part of the Cash Flow Siatement
For and on bahalf of the board
Kapil Kadar H.K.Gupta S P Arya Anil Bhalla Ranjan Sharma Abhey Oswal
Partner Company GM (Finance) . Director Finance Chairman & Managing
Mambership No.0949G2 Secretary Dirgctor Director

For and on Behalf of
T.R.CHADHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27th July,2005
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CISWAL

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULESTO ACCOUNTS

Schedulel As At 31.03.2005 As At 31.03.2004
{Rs.in Lacs} (Rs.in Lags)
Share Capital {Note 19 On schedule XX(0)
Authorised:
375,000,000 (Pravious Year 375,000,000) Equity Sharas of Rs.10/- each 37,500.00 37,500.00
27,500,000 (Previous Yaar 27,500,000) Redaemable Praference Shares of Rs.100/-each 27,500,00 27.500.00
12,500,000 (Pravious Year 12,500,000) 2eo Percent Opticnal Gonvertible 12,500.00 12,500.00
Prelerance Shares of Fs.160/-each - —_—
77.500.00 77,500.00
lasued & Subscribed:
258,609,159 (Previous Year 256,808,759} Equity Shares of Re.10/- each tully paid up 25,680,892 25,680.68
24,000,000 (Pravious Year 24,000,000} 0 21%(Pravious Yadr 10%) Radeamabla
Non Cumulative Prelerenca Shares of Rs.100 each, fuily paid up, redeemabla on the
the expiry of 20 yaars (Prevlous Year 15 Years) from the date of aflotment le.,
31st O¢tober 2001 Rafer Note 19 b {ii} in Schadule XXII 24,000.00 24,000.00
Amount Pending Allotment / Adjusiment against Prelerence Shares
{Rater Nota 19 b () in Schaduls XX 24,805,598 2,185.95
74,486,50 51,8868.53
Schodulell .
Reparves & Sumlun
Debenture Redemption Reserve * 4,549.94 4,549.94
Share Premlum Account 44,252.90 44,252.90
Capits! Rademption Reserve 5,860.00 5,860,00
TOTAL 54,862.64 54,682.84
* Nota 24 on Schedule XXl
Schadula N
Secured Loans (Note 14, 18 , 18 and 20 on achedule XXII
ADobetiures
1} NIL (Previous Year 11,00,000) 18.5%
Sacurad Non-Convertible Aedeemable Debanturas
ol Rs.100/- aach Fully Paid up Outstanding
Amount As.NIL gach {Previous Year As 7.14 sach) - 78,48
11} 80.00,000 (Previgus Year §0,00,000) - 16% Sacurad Nan-Comvartiola
Aedeemable Dabantures Of Rs. 100/~ aach Fully Paid Up. 8,000.00 8,000.00
1) 18,75,000{Previous Year 18,75,000) 15.5% Sacured Non-Converlible
Redeqmabla Debenturas of Rs. 100/- each Fully Paid up. 1,875.0¢ $,875.00
W) 3,39,00,000 (Pravious Year 3,39.00,000) - 10.50% {Previous Year 14.031%)
Sacurad Non-Gonvertible Recesmabla Debsnturas of Rs. 100/- each Fully Paid Up. 33,900.00 33900.00
Interast Accrued And Dus 5,997.84 2,791.32
#.  TormLcans:-
1) AUPEES TERAM LOANS
- Frem Financlal Institutions 80,932.41 95,431.56
- From Banks 56,885,326 57.885.54
Interest Accrued And Due
« On Term Loans (rom financial institution 1,676.94 10,08
- On Tarm Loans from Banks 182.70 -
C.  Working Capftal Loans 36,703.67 39,190.89
» From Banks 2,075.00 2,600.00
= From Othere . -
Inierast Accrued Ard Due
+ On Working Capila Loan from Banks - 18.39
D.  Interest Fres Loan FromThe Pradeshiya industrial & Investmant
Carparstion of Uitar Peadesh Limited {(PICUP) 7,274.30 7.274.76
“235,503.22 249,036.02



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED ‘ EWAL

Nolas:

1B

-4
6

Dabentures and term loans &ra secured by morgage on whois of the movable properties save and except book debts of the Company subject 1o charges

created/to be created in favour of the Company's bankers for working capital requirements, These are further securad by a Joint mengage creatac/tc ba

craatad in favour of all the financlal institutions and banks by way of daposit of tha title Ceeds with respect 10 tha Company’s immovable properties {other

than as relerred 10 In note 2 below).

Term loans aggregaling 1o As.2410 lacs (previous year Rs.2410 lacs) from a bank are furiher secured by mertgage by way of deposit of title deeds ot

immovabta properties et village Balagam, District Dewas, Machya Pradesh.

i Debentures subscrbed by UTI as mentioned at A (fi) and A (ji) above are redeemable at par in 28 quarterly instalments commenced from 151h
December, 2003.

1 3 10.50% Sscurad Redesmabla Non Convertible Dabentures of As.100 each d by IFC} mantionad at A {iv) above are redeemable in 36
structurad instalmants commencing trom 2007-08.

Working capital loans frem banks and others are secured by lirst charga by way of hypothagation of the whole of tha currant assets and baok debts

of the Company. These are further secured by & second charga by way of a joint mortgage in favour ol 2!l tha landers for working capital requirements

by way of depesit of the litle deeds with respect to the Company’s immavable propanties {other than as refarad to in note 2 above), .

The abova loans, other than working capital loans from others, ara guarantead by tha Managing Director.

Loan from PICUP Is secured by second charge on the movable assets and immovable fixed assats of the Shahfahanpur fenilizer plant of the Company
angd shalt mnk pari pagsu with the charges craated for securing working capital facilities.

&edula v

(Note 3(i)(a}, 3(li (b}, an Schedule XX}

Flxed Assets {RuinLacs)
Gross Block Dapraciation Net Block
Farticulars A Additlons Saie | As g Upio Forthe  Written Bacd o Mt A
91.04.2004 Adjustment Adjuaimant  31.03.2005  01.04.2004 yorr Adjested during  31.00.2005 332005 31.00.2004
during the yasr  during thaywar e yax .
Goodwill on consolidalion oar - - [ilug - - ©07) Qg7 [o11] Qo?
Lond
-Loassnoid * 100578 - - 100678 bl 1020 - k4] 916,55 926.75
-Freaholg 7287 . - sy - - . . 37287 37257
-Bhe Covalopment 646873 - . 648873 2923 a4 - 305.84 8,161.00 822750
Bulldings
-Loasshol 008 - - €8 215 1024 - 2% 1829 2253
-Fraaholg ** . 20,844.00 Lk s} - 2085433 3.529.11 127979 1842 6,802 48 1406185 15,304 3%
Plant & Machinary 207102 47059 1,08580 22652141 120pas9d 1495014 »650 144 439.15 182082686 19715108
Plani & Machinary - hald for disposal  8,837.28 - - 9.837.25 21910 50931 - 97003 13693 B46.24
Machnery Spanes 1008.9% - - AXBSs 20478 8142 - 288.20 82275 70447
Furnhurs & Fixture MG 158 - 2165 TTHAS are0 - 75236 164.55 19887
Vhicles 230477 0% G604 211908 165082 127.25 554 1,791.53 32255 43495
Tl 0 0 Mmgs118 0 50482 00 103184 36913408 14751553 1708266 41882 164,279.37 45470 2204585
Provious Yaar 364,218.52 289214 124955 369668111 13024937 1758672 21558 14T 8155
Copitnl Work In Prograss™” 4977.08 807265
TOTAL ’ 20983187 2811830

Includes tand amounting to Rs. 8.07 lacs (Pravious Year Rs 8.07 lacs) jocated at Paradesap and Rs. 0.82 lacs (Pravious Year Rs. 0.82 lacs) Located
at Mandideap. he Leasa Deed in raspect of which is yet to ba executed and also Includes 7 acres land eanmarked for consiruction of a hospital by -
Arung Abhey Dswa) Trust,

includes Rallway Sidings, costing Rs.527.64 lacs {Previous Year Rs 527.64 lacs) not located on Company's land.
Capital Work in Progress includes Gapital Advance Rs. 479.79 Lacs { Pravigus Year Rs.491.14 Lacs)

ScheduleV Am At 31.03.2005 An At 21.03,2004

{Rs.in lacs) {Rs.in lacs)

INVESTMENTS . LONG TERM - NON TRADE (Notes &(a) & {1) on schedule XXI1)

A-Quotod (Long Term)
in Equity Shares (Fuly Paid Ug}

152000 {Previous Yaar 152000} Equity Sharas of
As.10/- Each of Nashvills Investmant & Trading Co. Ltd. 1381 13.81
8324099 (Previaus Year 8324099) Equity Shares

of Rg.10/- Each of Oswal Agro Mlils Ltd 4.884.85 492615
10000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/~each of Appu impex Ltd. - 028
1440000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-aach ol Progessive - 26.29
Commercial Enterprises Ltd.

10000 Equity Shares of Rs,10/-each of Alliance Techno Projects Lid, . . 1.02
B0500 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-gach of Lucky Star Entertainment Ltd. - 2.91
Shara Application Money -

Centd.... on page no. 38



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED PiEnAAL,
Contd....rom page 0. 57 As AL31.03,2005 As A131.03.2004
(Rs. inlacs) {Ru. In tacs)
B. Governmaent Securitles:
Unquoted:
In Govl. Securitfes 7 Yegars National Plan
Saving Ceniticaie {Lodged
with Govl. Authorities) am o1
C.Others — Unquoted - -
2,898.87 4,970.6
Less:Proviston For Clminution of Investments 10.01 -
4,858.68 4,970.87
Aggrogate Book Value: - -
Quoted Investmants 4,884.65 A,977.98
Unquoted tnvestments 2.0 0.21
SchedulaVi
Brought Forward - 101,06
Defarred Tax Asssts
tnavsored Depraciation and Cany forward Losses 41,661.30 37.023.81 .
Othar Timing Difference 3,090.76 B8,472.45
Tota! 44,752 06 45,456.28
Grang Total 44,752.08 45,698.22
Datesred Tax Liabllity e
Fixed Assats 44 576.00 44,852.78
Deferad Aevenua Expenditure 175.08 543.47
Total 44,752.08 45,496.28
Deferred Tax Assat (Nat) - 101.96
. — — 10196
Carried Forward 1 ———a ———
ScheduleVll ~
INVENTORIES
Equity Shares in Oswal Agro Mlts Ltd. - 148
Raw Matarlals (Inéluding In Transit As. 1339 38 Lacs 15,868.13 6086.47
Previous Year As.NIL)
Work In Prograss 6,381.08 3,626.42
Finished Goods 2540338 23.022.22
Siores & Sparas (In¢luding In Translt As. NIL - 6,705.47 6,844,080
Pravious Year A5.386.74 Lacs)
Loose Tocls 0.15 0.37
54,358.19 39,861.02
Schadule Vil
Over Six Months.
Secured 16.39 13.07
Unsecured 1G,026.5% 12,548.39
Others
M4 19,67
Linsacured 18.961.34 424
29,038.73 47,105,386
Lass;Provision for Debts/Claims 25.00 -
29,1373 47,105.36
Scheduls IX
Cagh 4 Bank Bajlances .
Cash & Cheques In Hand Including Postage mprest 14675 208,75
Balancas With Schedulod Banks .
Currant Accounts 38.18 32.54
Dividénd Accounts( Refer schedule XI) * 0.45 41.28
Fixed Daposit ** 850.8 2,321.38
MarginMonay . - 197 12.50
Employes Security Depasit-Fixed Daposit 34.51 272
Emgployes Security Deposh-Saving Bank Actount 3.2 1.07
1,077.89 2,740.20

** Plodged against Bank Guaraniees, Leiters ol Credit and with Gevt.

Autherities Rs.850.83 Lacs {Previous Year As.2,321.16 Lacs}.



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED ciswaL

Schodule X As a1 31,02,2005 As at 31.3.2004
(As./n racs) (Rs.in lacs}

Loans & Advances (Notas 12 on schedule XXI1}
{Unsacured and Consldered Good Unlass Otherwise Stated)
Agvancas Recoverabla In Cash orin

kind or lor value (v be recelved 3,218.12 . 261860
Lass: Provision for Doubtiul Advances 387.25 2,838.37 367.56 2.251.04
tnterest Accrued but not due on Deposits 9.86 58.25
Batance With Cantral Excise Etc. 15.48 15.29
Security Doposits 454 23 47579
3,317.94 2,800.37
Scheduto Xt
AS
Sundry Craditors
i)Total sutstanding dues of Small Scale Industrial
Untlanakings 0.39 168
{i)Total qutstanding duss o Craditars Othar Than -
all Scale (ndustrial Undertakings ) 14,035.94 15,548.23
farred Incoms 2,926,681 262881
Advancas trom Customens 2,006.09 1,539.49
Other Llabilltias 3,098.23 2,759.44
Invastors Education & Protaction Fung
(Appropriate arrount shall be transtarred 1o “Investor
Education and Protaction Fund” If and when due)
-Unpaki Dividands (refer schedule 1X) 0,14 41.50
-Unpaid Matured Debentura & Intarest Dua thereon 1315 i 1329
Interest acgrued but not dug 3.680.44 437713
25,759.99 26,809.57
Schedule XII
Provitiins
Gratuity 269.07 266.31
Leave With Wages 11288 - 123.51
Waaith Tax 945 17.97
Currant Tax (Nat of Advanca Tax Rs.762.85 Lacs( Previous Year Rs.655.84 Lacs) 211.87 319.68
602.87 Tar .47
“ Undar Rraconciliation
Schedule XII X For The Yaar For The Year
Ended on 31.02.2005 Endad.an 31.03.2004
Qtherincome
Profit on Sale of Assats 037 782
Inloras! on Flxgd Deposits - Gross (TDS Rs.22.72 Lacs 138.07 404.10
Pravicus Yaar Rs.30.75 Lacs}
Foraign Exchange Fluctuation (Net} 50.93 352,98
Miscellaneous Income 344,88 . 758.08
Provision no longar required written back 28.80 568.81
873.85 - 2,191.59
Schaduls XIV
Baw Material Consymption
Opening Stock ' 6,066.47 3,865.01
Add: Purchases . 91,820.78 47.995.88
: §7,087.25 51,96067
Less: Closing Siock . 14,561.40 8,066.47
83,425.0% 45,894.20

PR



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CiSWAL

Scheduts XV ForTheYear FarTheYear
Ended oh 31.03,.2005 Ended on 31.03,2004
{RAsin facs) {As.1n1acs)
Stores Gonsumed 5,406.84 5,272.20
: Packing Material Consumed 3,308.6T 2.565.43
Power & Fual 32,765.78 25,068,27
Qthers 8.4 516.98
Repairs - Building 20.47 2789
- Machinary 854,88 608.34
- Othars 4581 _ 124
43,205.59 34,167.57
Schedule XVI
Empioyess' Cosi{Note 17 on acthiedule XXI)
Salarias, Wages, Bonys and other Allowancas 2,649.47 272191
Coniribution 1o Provicent Fund & Employees State Insurance 151.57 144.81
Walfars Expansas A48,% 151.53
2,848.20 3.018.2%
Schedule Xv)
Selling Expengaes
Fralght Handling and selling Expensas 12,808.35 ©11,892.94
febaie & Discoums 7.24 471.83
13,0985.59 12,104.77
Schaduls XVId
Elpance Expenses
Interast - On Fixed Loans 15,152.97 17,810.45
- On Debentures 7.359.07 7,392.74
- On Others 3,662,398 4,632.93
Bank Charges 853, 342.62
27 AT 45 0,278.94
Schadula XIX
Administation Expensna {Note 17 on achedule XX}
Rant 99.34 aa.r2
Rales & Taxes 104.48 8a8.40
lngucance 794.96 775.29
{0ss on Sale/Writaoff of Assets 793.58 842,09
Othar General Expensos 1,466.25 1,61B.37
Provigion for Gbsolete Store 178.48 -
Bad DabtAdvances Written OfifProvided 25.00 134.38
Miscellaneous Expenditure Written oft 523.05 523,95
3,085.14 4,470.20
Schedule XX
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 23,022.22 28,462.88
Work In Prograss 3Geb.a2 1,853.28
Shares hald as Stack i Trade - 1.48
26,648.54 3,117.62
Less : Closing Stack
Finished Goods 25,403.38 2302222
Work In Prograss 6,391.07 9,626.42
Shares he!d as Steck in Trade - 4B
31,784,
15,135.79)
Schedule XX!
Other Ganeral Expensas 317.15 4,34
Miscellaneous Income {83.89) {3.16;
Hates & Taxes - 15.34
Depraciation 308.31 41.71
Depraciation written Back (16.42) -
intargst —
5235.35 709.43



"OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED DISWAL

SCHEDULE xxil

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO THE CONSOLIQATED ACCOUNT 8

1}

#athod of Cansolidation:

The Consolidated finarcial stalamen)s compriss of tisancial statemants of Oswal Chemicals & Fartilizars Limied (tha Campany) and the Assaciation of Persons {AOPs) under its conergl
namply Sagar Corporation, Universal Associales and Shanenjv'a Associata (herainaiter rotesred to as "the Group™), all raglstared in india after wlimination of infer group transactions and
balances. Tha Company tonlrols 89%, 81% and 88% by in aach of tha Associ of Parons (AQPS). The consolidaled financial stalaments have been preparac by the Company
in aooordance with tha requirement of Accounting Standard 21 issuad by ICAL Investment maga by AORs in the Equity Sharea of the Company has hoene.miwad with m-rnspondng radhuction
inthe share capilal of the Company and cost ol stch invesimants in excess of face valus of the sharps has besn g Gootwiilintha finar

Slgniticant Aceounting Policles:

a  Accounting Converten
The fiaanchzl slatentents rro pranarod unoe hisiarical cast convenlion on 8c0rual basis in wilh th Y accounting read with notas
oquiroments of the Compnies Adl, 1956,

dral

b. Fizxed Asssts ond Dopreciation
Flxed Assets
Fixod assels are sialad at cosl Iess secumulaled dopraciation. Costincludos affincidents! axpenditure ot of MODVAT/CENVAT wharsver mpplicable.

Tm r.nrrynqamoun(ul ws3ets 13 raviewixd &t each balance shest date to datarmine i thard Is any indiealion ot impaimmant therec! based on axtamal/ intamal faciars. An mpaimman koss
the carrying of 8 asser axceods s amaunt, which the greatar of the ‘ol saliing price’ ol assats and ieir'value in usa’.

Laprecialion

The Company provides for depreciation 25 follaws:

1} Urow Divislon
Ursa and Power Generation piants: Based on tachnical evaluation of the usatutiie, ta Company 1 charging depeaciarion el & die o 25% wich L highar than 1hat provide in Scheduia
:gl ‘109"5: Companies Act, 1955 on Wrilten Dawn Valua (WDV) of the assets. Tha Sther assaty are dapreciaied on WDV basks &t (he rates provioed in Scheduls XIV to the Companies

i} LDPE division

Th thor than plant ingry (vekued at lowar of nel reat hua basia or cost) i WDV basis ot the ralaa provided i Scheduld X1V to the Companiay
Act, 1558, .

1)) Di-Ammonium Phasphate (DAP) Division

Frocass Pﬁ‘!ﬂf A Machineryon Siraight Line Mothod (SLM) basls at this rales provided in Schedule XIV 1p the Companies Acs, 1958 apolicable 10 continLous process piant as pec
techni Maring i g equipmant Instalied on the leaso hold land is amontized cwes the pdtiod of leass, Fipes & trings, efectricalinstaliations, siorage tanks,
&ra dapreciates or SLM basls at the rates providat in Schadie X1V to Lthe C Act, 1856 o ger & Machinary Othar than continudus process plant, Railway
aiding at 20% por annum, The cther dssets aro daprectated on WDV basis al Ine rahes provﬂmnsamcma XV 10 ihe Companies Act, 1958,

Iv) Other Divisions

On SLM basis at the ratos prove to X1V 1o ive C. Act, 1956,
v) Leasehold Premiumimprovement
Li h i 11 is baing | ovar tha period of teasa.

vi} Capital Sparss

Capital sparas which can by used onky in connecion with ar ilem of Hxed as3818 and whoss use 8% per lachnical assessmant & Sxpactad 10 08 non-regular are capitalised and
dapraciatad over the bakince usshl lives of tha related plant and machinory:

o Investmena
LonQiem fvastmanls are SEIBT al COSt i85 provision, if amy, for dhmiutien i vakie of fuch imvasimanty athar than lemporary: Cunmhvwmmlrlsmrodaj Jower of costand tair vale,

4. Inventories

Raw maisrials, components, finishad goods, wark in progress Bnd slorss & Eperss e vaTued N ¢GS! o Nt realisalia valus, wiichaver is iowdr. Realissbie valua of Urea ard DAP iy
inclusive of tho Ratantion Price Goncassion as natilied by the Govammant of India. The basis of datenmining eost lof various calagories of inventorios s as lofiows;

1) Siores and Spares, Raw miterials nad Packing materials. Waeightod averapa cost,
iy Work in Progress and Finishad Goods. Material cost plus appropriate share of labour and production ousrhaads
a  Revenue Rocagm!.lm
SaKsam o thelranster of signifi risnundrmrdlnh. i 10 |h Xe ion on Urea under Group Pricing Schena is recognisad as bar the price
nalied by ol India and iy subj finalization of clain oﬂlmmsanndmmnoﬂfw Equated froighl 0n uraa is recopniased 15 51coma On is sccrual,

Concassion on DAP/NF is racognised At ralas notified by Gov. of India from 1ime to lima.
ncoma from invesiments and intarast are Gccounted for on sccral BRels.

Faraign Exchangs Transactions
Transactions In feraign currency are recerdad sl the Tates ifing on he dales of tha ions ecepl for goods in transit and related liabilities, which ar statad #t the
axchinge fate previiling &t tha Year and. Linbillty in espect of imponad matarials remaining unpaid are S1atd af the exchange rafss previfing ar tha yaar and.
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In case of Forward Exchange Contracts, Lha dith bet Ihe d rd 98 1l at |8 dale of ion i
Account cver tha lita of the contract.

g Ratiraments Benafite

Cantribution went fund schoma is the proht andi0$$ actount a8 incwmed. Liahilty &or greluity and ieave #ncashmani ks providad on the basia of aciuariol valuption carried
out &t the year end.

h. Borrowing Costa

CiISWAL

onizad ascumancy jon in the Profit & Loss

Borowing costs altrbutabla 1o h or canstruction tying Asssls are Capitalised &3 par of the cost of that asset upto the date when such azsols 2re ready lor intandocd
use Other bomowing CosIs Are Chargsd as an axpensa in thy year inwhich they are incurrad,

i Texaion
Curenitaxis ned as Wl o a1k pay inraspact of taxabla incoms for the periad. Datadred tax s recognised, subject to D i P on timing differances,
being the tifferance betwaen taxable income and accounting IncOMa that ariginale in ane pariod and are capable of reversal in one of Mora SUDSOQuent pariods.

I Mi pendi E
Pronperative Expanditura incuired by the Company uplo the dals of comr ol Fl operationa nol directly arril fixad assets is trealed a3 Defarod Rovenus

. Expendiurs to be wiittan off over & parkod of thraw to live yoars.
k Provision

A provision is recogrizad when the company has a prasant obligation as & resull of past evants and it 4 probebls that an cuthiow of resources will ba requirad Lo setila such cbligation,
in respact ol which a réilable estimate can be made.

L Contingant Liabilities )
Contingant liabiithes Are not proviied for in tha accounts and are separataly disclosed in the “Notas 1o Aceounts”™

k1 of Contructs ning toba don thphal M BV FOA I OW0RG Tor {net of advances) Rs. 520 731acs {Provious Year Rs.725. 25 lacs).
{Auln an.
4)  Coningant Liabilities not provided for in raspect ol ; Yant ended March 31. 200§ Yner endect March 31, 2004
i) &) Land reference cases fitad by land gwners {or ndditional compensalion (excluding intarest) B4.80 B4BY
b) Disputed cost o motor vehicle purchassd 69.00 G
o) Edectricity duty on captive ganeration of power at Paradesp (pending axempiion under industrial Policy
F |ution for war of i it b4 issued by Depanmerii of industias) 190800 2108
d)  Qemandyanves ciusa novas sacekred fom Sales Tax depbamem. o5y 380.05
#) Damand raceived far waier charges disputed by the company. 553.44 386.52
1) Demand roceived for Entry Tax in Crissa t48.08 527.8
@ Uemandicr minkmum guaraniead wharage, disputed by the Company. 1206.18 101848
h)  Custom Duty on Raw Material imported lor DAP Unit Is subject o final assassment
by the Cusiom Authorities. Amount net quantifiabla Amoum not quantifiable
) Impon Pass Fee for import of industrial alcohol in the Siate of Wes: Bengal 4265 4205
i} Omar claims against the Gompany nol acknowladgad as debls 1197.68 1458 54
k] Guamntaas stued rybanks hF-) oo
(i) With & vigw 10 sncourage setting up of faniizer plants in the counizy, only i Go f Indis hag bean iafiowing a policy obgranting tha facility of duty frea impars of plant and machingsy

required for senting up the ferglizer plants. The Company has imported cortan aquipment for seiting up fartillzer plants at Shanjahanpur and Paradesp andhas humnishiad undortakings
1o Customs mutharities etihe lima of clsarance of consignments. The iability, i any, would be ascertainable on final reconciliation by customs autharitias.

5) {8} Thalncomne Tax Deparoment has smised gross demands of Ra. 2768.21 lics for the assessment years 1941-92, 195598, 7996-95 10 2001-02, agains; which tha provision of fis. 1633.80
lacs has bosn made a3 al 31* Mareh 2005, Provision 1or &mount of shortalt ks not considired necessary, since after 317 March, 2003, rele! amountingto Rs. 1617.03 lacs has baen granted
in cartaln cases on (he basis of appeals dacidied in favour of the company.

{b) Income TaxAssessment ol ADFshasbe P yoar 2002-03. Demands for an agyregate amoun of As. 33.38 ICS (Pravious Yaar Rs. 33,38 lacs) have boen
raisad by the Incoms Tax Departmant for tha assessment years 1085-89 [0 1990-31 against which appexis are panding balore ITAT Mumbai.

8) (a) Investmants {Schedtlo V) inciude equity sharas in Oswal Agro Mills Limied {OAML) amounting to Rs. 4,884.85 facs. The shares of OAML vk not quoted during tha yeai and markel
walue ot ihese rvasimonts as ot hprch 31, 2604 was B, 120.701acs. Howevar, the market vatua of the property finvislments haid try QAML is significantly highar than their cost and
tharatora Ihe break up valua of thess equity shares s higher than the cost of acquisition of such shares. Tha timinution in vaiug ol this is ik porary and ingly

piovision is inthia regard,

dupto the

{t) The shaies of DAML and Nashville invesiment and Trading Co. Lid. wars nol quoted during the year and hence market valuo of quoled invesimants &i Iha closa of tha year cannot be
ascartained (Previols Yaor Re.124.50 es),

7] Adowiwand rvisionin stention price for T end B* pricing parieds anded on Harch 31, 2003 wo redifiac by the Governmen of inda (GO} vids nolificaion aated September 13, 2002 and
April 10, 2003 duw lo implemantation of policy parameters resulting in a fund ol an estimated amount of Rs, 21,768.92 1a6s(Previous Year Rs. 21768 .92 lacs). The Company has earlisr
Fkecl 2 wrd palflon egainst o GOI batora the Hon'bia Deiht High Court contasting the basis adopted oz calcul 1 relantion price and obtained 4 stay agains! the recovery from the Hon'ble
Delni High Gourl 2nd haa accordingly not providad for tha aforesaic refund. The Company has boen lagaily advisad that thare will nct ba any materiat Liability on Ine Company.

B8)  Sales Include:

(Rs.inLacs)

Yaur gnced Worch 31,2005 Yeorended March 31,2004

Concassion on Urea (including arrears or Egrlior Yoarg Re. 634.46 lacs —Previous Ysar As. 2924.17 lags). T4 25 2042004
Equalad Fraight on Urea lincluding arraars for Provicus Years As, 337 63 lacs ~ Previous Year Rg. NiL). 417499 66352
Concession on DAP/NP 2083294 1426772

% s} Tha of s of corain imrs and dabtors of DAP division are Jubieer iont liath i 11, it any, agising lrom ihese axertises wil be
accounted for an complation of the raconcilialion,
b) A roconcilialion exarcisa is bang carried oul for (ha interest payabla k twhile holdars Pending ifiation. the company has paid As. 0.15 facs

| pesrvious yerT Ry, 250,07 1an3) during the year 1o ceitain Sebanture nooers basad on claims receiivd from them

42



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED . CisSWAL

SCHEDULE xXII

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

1)

2

Method o Conaolidaticon:

Tha Ct i firanciar of inancial siatemaris of Otwal Crarilcals & Fartilizors Limiled {ihe Company) and tha Asseclalion of Porsons LAQRSs) undar its conrol
namaoly Sagar Corporation, Universal Assoclates ond Shanenjula Associate (nereinafier referred to as “the Group?, alf regi d in India atiar gl 0N of inter Qroup lransactions and
balangos. The Company 9%, 91% 8nd BE% raspaciivaly in sach of the Association of Parsens {A0Ps). Tha sonsdlicated tinancial slatsments have bean prepaned by the Company
In aceordarce with it f Anoounting 11s5u6d by JGAL | made by ADPs in thw Equity Shares of tha Company has been efminatad with cormasponding reduction
in thg shara capital of tha Company and cost of such Invasiments in excess of face vefue of the sh baan iZacl a5 Goodil i L fEnanciel statamiants.

Signilicant A¢counting Policies:

& Accounting Convantion .
The linancial siatemenis ara propared undat historical cost convention on accrualt basis in accordance with tha mandatory accounting ds raad with Tlevant
raquiremants of Ihe Companios Ags, 1058.

B, Fixed Assets and Daprecistion
Fixed Asaats
Fixad assats are staied &l CO3! s accumyiatod caprociation. Cost includes all incidental expendiiure nsl 5| MODVAT/CENVAT wharsver applicabla.

Tha carrying amount of essets i8 reviawnd a1 each balanca shaat dale 1o datarmine if there is any incication of impalrment tharoo! basad on exiemal f inlemal lactors. An impaiment losy
s racognised wheraver the CArTying 8MounL of an dsdn! excasds ity , witich the groater of e 'ni saling price’ of A55e1s and Ihel value In use'.

Leprecislion

The Company providas for daprocialion a4 lollows:

1) Ures Division
Uran and Powsr Gararaiion piants: Basad on tachnical evahugilion of the ysetul e, the Compeny |s charging deprecialion at & ralg of 25% which is higher than that prowided in Scheduis
:Ic\l’. Ilng\gaa-cumoanium 1956 on Writlon Down Valua (WD) of tha asyets. The ofhar assats ara deprociatad on WDV basis at (he rates provided in Schedula XIV 1o tha Companiey

ii] LDPEdivision

Tha assats othor (han plant and Y (valued a1 lowar of fi ot b sis or cost). on WDV basis ut the rales provided in Schedula X1V to B Companiay
Act, 1858, B

iil) Di-Ammonium Phoaphate {DAP) Division

Frocass Planl & Machinery on Straight Line Mathod (SLM) basis at thé mtes provided in Schedufe Xi¥ 1o the Comparias Act, 1956 applicabie to camtituous procisd pianl xy per
tachnical gvakiation, Maring matarial handing aquipment installod on the lease hold land is amedized Over Lha period of losse. Pipas & tirings, akecticalinstaliations, siorage anks
are oopreciatod on SLM basts al the rmies provided in Schadule X1V 10 the Cy les Act, 1958 i Iz ganeryl plant & machinary other than cortinuous process plant. Aallway
siding a1 20% par annum. Tha other egsats are depreciated on WOV basis & Ihe rales provided in Schadule X1V to the Companias Act, 1558.

iv) Othor Divisions
On SLM biasls 2l the rates Drovided In Schedule X1V o the Companias Agi, 1956,

v) Lossshotd Pramiumimprovement

Lasashold premi s bwing. ! iatad avel ihe parcd of lease.

¥i) Capitsl Spares

Capilal sparas which can be usad onty In connaction wilh an itam of lixad assats and whase use es Per fachmica: essesament is @xpactad (o b rom-ragulas ars capialissd Bny
dapracialod ovar tha balance usotul lives of the relaiad plant and machinary,

& inveaimantis
Longtem invastmonty are stated at cost kst provision, il any, o timinution in valus of such investments olher thar y. Current lnvastr at iowsr f cust ang fak valua,

d. Inveniories

Raw matarials, components, fimished goods, work in prograss and storas A spares are valued 21 cost o nit realisabla vatus, whichaver is lowar. Realisabla vahue of Ures and DAF is

inclusive of tha Reteniion Price Concession as nollfled by the Governmant of India. The basis of ing cost for gories of ir iax i3 a5 foflows:
ij Siores and Spares, Raw and Packing Waoighind avarzpe cost.
il) Work in Progresa and Finished Goods, Malarial cost plus aparopriate ghare of lebour and production ovarheads,

& Hpvenus Recognition
Salos ara racognised upon he Iranstar of significant risks and rw of ownarship 1o 1he customars. Concession on
natliied by Gevernmant of India and is subject to adiusimant on linafization of ascalation caim on inputs as and i
Concassion on DAP/NP is recoyrised at fttas nolilied by Gowl. of indla fram tima a lima.

Ursa under Group Pricing Schemais recognisac as per the price
LE ght o urea s is6d 25 NCOMB O1 s kocrusl.

Incoms (rom i Imorastare d far on actiual basls.

1. Foreign Exchange Transactions
TranzRElons in lorsign cunency are raconisd & the ey ng. o1 the gates of the 15 #xcept for goods in transil and ralated fiabilities, which are Slated £l the
exchangs teis provailing at the yoar and. Liability in respect of imported malerials. ining unpald el tha [ ing 2L tho yaar and.
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A

4

5

8

B

1n case of Forward Exchanpe Conirticts, the ditfarance batwann the torward rate and te exchangs rale at tha dale of transaction is recognized &5 currancy luctuation kn th Protit & Lits
Account over the lifa of Lhe contract,

g Retirements Bansfits

Contribution Io provident fund schema is chargad b th prafit and oss accoun as incurmed, Liality for gratulty and kiave ancashment is provided on the basts of acruaria! valuation carrled
oul i the ysar and.

h. Barrgwing Conata

B ing costs altri icthe i ion of Qualitying assats isad as pan of Ihe cost of thal psa8! upto the date when such aysets e ready for intondad
vsa. Dihar borrowing costs are charwd a8 En arpnnsamho yoarin which thay arg incurred.

L Taxation
Cumani lax is ined a3 the amount of Y. In respéct of taxatle incom e for the peniod. Deferred lax & i subject i of pruck on Limi H

being the difforance botwaen Laxable incoma and Actounling Mcoma that ariginala in ana perod and are tapatle of reversal in one ermﬂlB subsaquent perlods.
{.  Miscellansous Expanditurs-Deterred Aevanus Expanditure

Praoperttws Expanditurg incurrad by the Compary upto tha date of commencament of i ions not directly to lixad asselsis ieated as Delorrod Raveriug
Expanditura o ba wiitten off over a paricd of Inres (o fiva yeers,
k  Provision
s izad when the pany has & prasent ghligal 3 & rasull of past evarts and il is probable thal an outow of will o jirexs L0 50t $uch oblig

tn rospec: afmwh a raliably esilmdle can be made.
1. Contingernt Liabilitiea
Contingant liabilities &ra nol provided for in the accounts and are separatoly disclosed in the "Notes lo Accounts™,

o fintng to 0@ d on capital account and not provided lor (net of advances} Rs. 520.73 lacs {Pravious Year Rs 725,25 Inoa). L’
(Raln

Gontingent Liabililles nal provided for in respactof : Your ended March 31, 2005 Yoyt ended March 51, 2004
{i} a) Land rolarence cases iied Dy iand ownars for addilional compansation (axcluding interasi) 8480 BA20

b) Dispuled cost of motae vebicla purchased |0 :o10 1]

c)  Elctrichty dufy on capiiva genarelion of power at Parudesp {pending axamption under Indutral Policy

Rasalution for wani of production cartiiicate to ba issusd try Dapartmeant of iIndustries) 180800 186

o) Demandsishow cause noticas recolved from Saios Tax department. 808,69 569.685

o) Demand recafvad for watsr chargey disputed by the company., 552.44 38852

f)  Demand raceived for Entry Tax in Orissa 1048.09 527.%0

@) Camang i minimum guaraniesd wharfage, disputad by the Company. 120516 101848

h)  Custom Duty on Raw Matarial inported for DA Unit Is subject to final assassment

by tha Customn Authorites. AaTiount rk chsamiliabie Amount nek quantifiable

1} tmport Pass Feo for import of mdustrial alcotial in the State of West Bangal 4285 . 4206

|} Otharctaims against the Company not acknomecged as dobis 1197.68 145854

W) Quaranteos ssued by bans 125 am
(i} With a viow I sncolfapa satting up of fortilizer planis in the couwntry, onty the G of Indii hat bean follawi i facility of duty fros impon of ptantand machinary

raquired for satting up the fertilizar piants. The Campany haa imporlad canain equipment for sating up tariifizer nfnmu at Shnhphﬂnpur nnd Parac d hag fumished g8

la3 aithe Uime ol Thia Uetilty, i mry, woukl be ks o finad ATalon Dy cusLoMm authories.

{#) The Income Tax Daparmant has raised gross demands of Fs. 2768.31 lacs for thi Agzassmant years 1991-92, 1995-98, 1596-8% 10 2001-02, agams! which tha provision of Rs. 1693.60

lacs has bean made as at 317 March 2005, Provision tor of shortta is not f Y, Since atar 317 March, 2005, religt amounting to As. 1817.03 facs has badn grantad

incertain Casen ori the basis of appeals decided in favour of tha company.

(D) Incoma Tax Assessmant of AOPs has baan complctad upto iha Assessmant yanr 2002-03, Dernands for an aggregale amount of As. 33,38 lacs {Previous Year As. 33.38 lacs) have been
raised by Ihe Income Tax Department fof the asseasment ygars 1988-84 to 1990-91 against which appadls ara panding beford ITAT Mumbai.

() nvastmants {Schadul V} include equity Eharps in Oswal AQro Mills Limited (OAML) amounting o Rs, 4,884.85 tacs. The sharea ol QAML wara not quated ducing the year snd market
valug cf thess invesimenis as at March 31, 2004 wes Ry, 120.70 lacs. Howevar, e markel value of tha propany finvestiments heid by OAML is significantly highed than iheir cost um!
tharaiore the break up vaius of thesa equity sharus is tighar than the cost of acquisition of such shargs, The dminwuion i vahue of this investment is i
no provision is considered Ascessary in (his regard.

{#} Thesh, 1 OAML and Nashvilk and Trading Co. Lid. were not quoted during ihe yoar arkat value of @ L at tha cloae of the year cannot be
ascartainad (Fraviors Year Rs.124.50 acs).

A AOHTwATG TRVISION I TEtemlon pAGe Tor T anG B> priting penods anded o March 31, 2003 was natified by the Govemment of India (GO} wido notfication dated Seatember 13, 2002 and

Apeil 10, 2003 dua to implementation of policy partmaters resulting in 4 refund of an eslimated amounlof Rs. 21,768.02 lacs({Previous Year Rs. 2176392 lacs). The Company has aeriier

e a writ palilion against the GOl befoio thw Hon'bla Cab High Court contesting the basis adopied for caleulation of raletion prica ard abiained 8 siay against tha recovery from the Hon'bia

DahiHigh Coun ang has noi provigad for I’ id refund. Tha Company has basn fagaily advisad thal there will not ba any matarial liability onthe Sompany.
Sales Include : (Rs.inLacs)
Yearended March 31,2008 Yaar ended March 21,2004
Concassian on Uraa (including arreacs tar Earls: Yerrs fls 834 46 lacs - Pravicus Yeds P, 2934.17 lacs). frd it 2542004
Eguated Fraight on Ures (including anears lor Previous Years As. 337.63 [acs — Pravious Yaar As. NIL). '23: 417499 6352
Conceasion on DAPNP 28032 M 14267.72

#) Tha balances ot Accounts o} cartnin suppliers anc dabters of DAP division are subject 10 conlimation secancillation, Adjustmanls, if any, a¢lting from hese #xarcises wifl be
accounted for on completion of tha reconciliation.

b)  Araconcilidtion exbreisa is baing carriad out for the & blo to arstehil hiriders and bor Panding Hiation, thy yhot peid A, Q.15 acs
{pranious year RS, 250.07 lacs) during the year lo cerain dcbnnlnr- bholddrs bassd on claims received from them.
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¢}

Thocompany has filed Iogal cases against dabiors of Rs. 175.27 lacs for recovary of amaunts. No provish against has bean ¥ nacessary, sincg inihe
opinion ot he mAnegemant, hese dabts ara recovarable.

10} Pro-operative exponchiurg incurred on OAP Division and not attributable o the construciion aclivity la being written off overa period of 5 yaars from tha dele of commercial produclion
1.9, 1% Agrll, 2001 as pet details given bolow.

"

Yanronded March 31, 2005 Your encled March 31, 2004
Balnnce brought lomward 104511 1568.16
Loas : Writton olf during tha year 57305 523.06
Total 523,08 104511
Dirsciens’ Remunaration:

Yonr onded March 31, 2005 Yeor ended March 31, 2004
Salary & allowancas 5400 5400
Conirisulion to Presridenl Fund 848 a4s
Parquisies 4763 5223
Sltilng Fess 280 280
Tatal 1471 11551

[} Provisions lor groluity and loava encashmant have bean made on £ group busis and separsta liguras aningdivi argnolavaitable and

13)

14)

15)

16)

13)

18)

therslora have nol best considerad in tho abava liguras.
(b} Tha above remunaration othar than shiing la4 ia subjact to npprovel of Cantral Govemment.

{As.inLacs)

Loan Advances as given in Schodule X include: As sy March 31. 2003 An ot March 31, 2004
Maxinium Amount dua from Directors and Secratary at any Lima during ihe year 0.7 155
Auditors’ Asmuneration: (As.In Lacs)
Az g1 Maych 31,2005 Aum March 31, 2004

Audit Foo 000 2100
Cariticallon work ae ae
Oihar Sorvicos amw ace
Out of Pockal Expanses (ingluding servics 1ax) an 697

The amount of U.P. Trade Tax on Urea collected during the pericd 1.3.2004 1o 28.2.2005 amounting to Rs. 1250.03 kags (Previous Year Ry, 1150.18 lacs) has been convanad imo Intarest

Free Loan na per Agreemaent axecuted wilh Tha Praceshiya Industria! & Investment Corporation: of Uttar Pradash Limitad {PICUP). The said loan {s repayable on the expiry of e

yenrs from tho year of callaction, TheU.P Trede collactad in March, 2005 amounting 1o Ra. 12.44 lacs (Pravious Year Rs. 17.761acs), paning convarsion into interast Fres

Loan' is Incuced undlar iha heed “Curren: Liabikties™.

Tha Company has recagnised Dofarrad Tax Asset of Ris. 44752.08 Jace, which is onty to the extent of Detarred Tax abillies. The deferred lax asssl on othar accumulated lossas and
has not baen o in vigw of prudence dus tothe fact that as at 31.3.2005 virtual certainly of availoblity of sufticient luture taxablaincoans 13 nat thare.

T Compirty and oihor Consumens. Gf naturl gas on [f HBJ pipaline heva bean informad by Gas Authority of Ingia Lid. that prices of netusal gas being supplied ta the Company may
ba revised w.e.l, 1.4.2000. Thersis aiso o possiilty of vy of nucise duty and contzal saies tx an natural as. The quantum of iablltias.ia ur d addiionat costs,
it iy, rre raimbursable 101he Company by Ine Govamment ot india under retention prica schams for Lirea.

Empioyeo cost (Schodula X} and Adminisiralive axpansas (Schacuie XIX) are net of Rs. 125.24 Leca (Previous Yoar Fis.240.43 £c3) being estimated amount of Sxpansas ncumed
©on behalf of & Group CoMmpary which have subsequanily been raimbursad to the Company.

Fintncial Institulions have an option (0 COMvert A part of thair lerm loana/debentut s/p-8lerance shares [yet to be lssusc &8 gvan Tn netas 20(2K} & 20{b}() batw} amounting ta Rs.
38298 70 ace [Previous Yaar Rs. 34711.41 1acs) into aquity shares of the Company alany time during the currency of loan. Addtionaly, ftaancial institulons 430 hawa a right to convert
thalr kans/debontures/proferance sharas fyat to ba lssued aa given in note 20ib)() below) amaunting 1o As. 134720 40 tacs {Previous Yoar Frs. 120084.38 lacs) into equity shares n the
svant of datault as stipulaled in the rospective oan Ly:eomenis.

In August 2003, & Dett Restucturing Schoma for ecured loans, of DAP Dhdsion cof ihe Ct was 2po) y tho Comerate Deot F ing Celland all iandars, othar than
Unk Trustof Ingia, subjsclio P 1 cortakr which [ntar-afia inctude the Igllowing:

Iysus of Zaro Parcont Optior.ally Convarible Prafarance Shares (OCPS) o compensation for the intarast raset (lor the antire tanure of tems loans by the Financial institutions/Banks
askmalec 10 ba Ps. 10,851 lacs). Pending confirmation of the amount from raspaciive lenders, the Company has provided for Rs, 4304.78 lacy (pravious yazr Rs. 2188 Laes), baing the
il presant valus as on 1% April, 2003 of the amount of interest raduction lof the yaars anded 1% March, 2004 and 31 March, 2005 requined Io ba comperrsated in tha above manner. Pending
issug of Praference Shares, lhis amouni has boen included under ‘Amount pending I against shares’ .

The inlorest fundad by (ho lencars in torms of Debl Restructuring Schema has been converted inte Fundad interesi Term Loan (FITL). Asum of Rs. 7622.89 lacs (Pravious year Rs.
12569.99 facs) convarted Into FITL during the yar |8 pending confirmation/reconciiation.

In Apel 2008, \hes CORA Coll has app in 1 1] isting Dot g Schama. These provide g oifer refists, reduction in rates of interast
on leans, of pay 1o atc. The accounts for tha year 2004-05 hava baan drawn on the basis of thaso moddications athough spacific approvals from soma lenders
ar0yat to b recalved, In lerma of the said modilications: )
50% of Funded intarast Tam Loan {FITL) aggregating Fis. 228 crores Is 1o be convarted inio Optionalty i raterance Shares (OCCRPS) with a coupon
rate of 0.01 % p.a. Pending reconcilation of amount of FITL ioba converied Mo OCCRPS, £0% of the FITL balanca a3 on31.02.2005 amounting 10 As. 20500.80 lacs has baen inch:ded
undar ‘Amount pending alislment/ ediustmeni against preference shards’ (Schedula 1)

Tha coupen cale ol 10%, 2.40.00,000 F o N Iva F Shares of As 100 Gach, has basn broughi down trom 10% to 0.071% w..1. 1.4.2004 and the recemplion period
s been extondod rom 15 yaars ic 20 yedrs from date of lssue e, 31 October 2001, Howevor. these changes.are sublect 1 approvel ol the shareholdens 1 the snsuing Annual Gansral
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iil) Interest during the year has bean recognized as per modification to COR packago, which has resulted in interest provislon for the yaar being lower by As. 7072.23 lacs.
20} U Frust of Inclia (UT1) k& net a participant in the Debt Raestructuring Schems and has filad gn eppiication fof recovery i Detyt Aecavery Tribunal (DRT) against tha compony. Tha company

nas lied a peiition w/s 391 of the Cx A, Hon'ble Allah: High Gourt. Vide on of it ordes Hon'bke Alishabed High Court has rastrined tha DRT from passing
Aany orodr in respect of tha interm/inal raliaf prayed for by UTI. The said ntls stilt oifective, F ption ot f A3, 2115.23 lacs {Provious Year Rs. 705.00 lcs) and
intecest thareon Amaunting (o RAs. 4890 65 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 2791.32 lacs) is us as on 31.3.2005.
21} Earning Per Share {EPS) - Numerators and Denominatars usad io calculate basic and dilutad samings par share:
Year saded March 1, 2005
Loss atiibutabia to Equity Shareholders (Rs.) (A) A12.4540,409
Basic/Waighted average of Equity Sharas cutstanding during tha year (B) 25,68,00,158
Norminal Valus of Equity Shares (R¥.} n
Besic/Diluted Eaming per shara (Rs.) (A)B) (1217

Noie : Nong of the potential aquity shares have cilutive efiact in view of Ioas durieg the current year.

22) Retated Party Disclosurss
(A} Related pariias and transactions with tham as kientliied by the managemant ars ghven below:

(a) Major Sharehoklors :
M1, Abhey Ogwa nlong wilh ra/atives and other associales holds 54.21% shares of the Company.

(b) Key Manzgement Parsonnel and their reletives:
Mt Anil Bhalla
Mr. Ranjan Sharme,
Mrs. Poonam Sharma (Wite of Mr, Ranjan Sharma)
Mry. Pralicha Bhatla (Wifa of Mr. Anil Bhalia)
Mr. Atul Bhalia (Son af Mr. Anil Bhalla)

{c

Enterprises over which Major Shareholdars, Key Managamant Parsonnal ang their ralatives have signitcant influance:-
Oswal AgroMills Limited, Slar Advartising Put. Limited, Aruna Abhay Oswal Trus!, Lucky Star Entertainmant Limited ang Atul Propartios Limited.

{B) Transactions with Relaied Parties in tha ordinary course of businass,
RaSLakhs
Type of Relmtionship Huture of Transactions
200405 200304
n)  Major Shamholders Menaparial Remunemtion 757 26
Pralivioss/in AOPs (0.07} {0.07}
b)  KeyManagement
Parsonnal & their relatives Managaria! Remuneralion A 748
Rent paid 18.00 1080
¢} Entarmprisas over which major sharoholders and key
Management Parsonnel have significant influsnce Ront paid LF:] 1200
Sarvices availed <3 1630
Paymants made by Company on their behall 183.40 nart
Their share of commaon axpansas 12524 249,43
Funds Receivad by Company 4000 3%
Payments racaivad by Company on theit behalt [+1e4] as8
Fayments made on bahall of Company [130) 168
Payments raceived by othars on behall of Company 3800 600
{C} Balance cutstancing at yeer snd .
o} Major Sharehokdars Mirority Intsrast Q18 [R)
b} Entarprises over which major
sharsholders have significant influance - Invasimants 4684 85 4584 85
- Recavable Q0o W54
- Payable, 44T [ele:)
Unsacured loans 57 :<8h]
Slock in Trade Nil 148
23) ThaCompanyis Ing meinty widar 4 single 3agn i.a. "Fertilizers", g of Urga and Di Yurth phosphate. Athough the Companyhias carain olhor Lnils which are ciosed,
ihe value o assats and liabiives of thasa Lnits is nat sig: an s 0 repor o In 1ams of the provisk 1 AS 17 "Segmant Reporting™ issued by the Instiuta
of Chartered Accountants of India.
24) Mo emount has been to Dabeniure ion Aaserva in view of losses during tha year.
23) Adthough the DAP plant has baen ncuming cesh lossas, remacdial steps hava boen taken by tha managamant by way of:
s} im i remedial achiava design copacily of the i e based on wdations of the stutty carrad out by Projects &

g tha i

Devalopmant india Ltd. { POIL) o0 the capacy wtilization of the DAP complex,

b} ingreasing the market share,

€} restructuring tha long Lm ioans and

d]  recucing the intarest cost.

Accordingly, the acoounts have boan prapared on a going concem basis.

26) Based on the ast b on '8 Dast aslimaty of the se of concmic condiions that wil axist Ovor B remaining sl e of the A33ats submitted and approved
by Financial insiitutions / Banks, the valud n uss of iixad essets of DAP plant is higher than its camying valus as at 31,3.2008 and hencs no provision for impainmani is deamed nocessary
asat31.3.2005.

27) Pravious yoar's figures have baen Fa-groupadire-rranged whergvar necassary 10 conform to the current years présentation.
Signatures 1o schedules 1to XXI of consolidated Accounts
For and on bghalt of the board
H.K.Gupta 5P Arya Anlil Bhalia Ranjan Sharma Abhay Oswal
Place: New Dalhi Comparny GM (Finance} Diractor Finance Chkaiman & Managing
Data: 27th July, 2005 ' Sacratary Director Directar
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